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THAIRE LIFE
MILESTONES

2543 / 2000

UsBNY Tdvan:Tounodviduussndna
Tagt#go31 USGN IngSUs:Nu5a 91Ma Aoy
nu Lan:1dguisnisy 200 Auun Us:nou
AoyRUAITYTIUDU 20 AUAU yaARas
3Aua: 10 TN 10 Sun 5 UNsSIAU 2543

usBn Tasulueunyads:noussieds:nu
FBan 1/2543 1003UN 15 DunAu 2543

Registered as “Thaire Life Assurance
Company Limited” with an initial registered
capital of THB 200 million (Twenty million
common shares with a par value of THB 10
per share) Received a license to operate
life reinsurance business (License number
1/2543)

2543

2000

2550 / 2007

2552 / 2009

USGNY TAIBUICUUNIA:IgYWAQNTUA
SounUUSBNUs:AUFSQ Taguuidunmisigoy
nwMsaala Us:nntkd 3vidinalasunis
NoUsALFIaasYGUNWINSAWHR (DRTV) v
iPulasymsitihiaue waafnwiUs:AuZ3a
@hudocve 13U TnshA Ia:AeANDUL Na:
rnsYwauFouninsAwn

Initiated cooperation with life insurance
companies to develop new products and
channels such as direct television and
telemarketing.

2552

2009

UsGNY TAIuNuUYAN:TyURINIGL 200 AYuun 10U 500

Auuin TagnisiauonurkuaUny 1TUNU 9IUdU 30 AURU
yamnasi3kua: 10 UIN tu SUR 7 AVKIAU 2550

2554 / 2011

2555 / 2012

AUs:gu3andnydioRunsui 2/2555
IJo3uR 24 SudonAu 2555 DudouTENTS
WaguIay yarmruRasii3lovaayariun
asMniGuiua: 10 un 10URUA: 1 UIN
IAIDUNU 20n:Toudnsiusu 100 AUuin
iBu 600 Auun

USBNY INsouavunuiidauiaunsuniiu
Tasunisiuosouufuazeounalonuingiu
MscodUNsSNYSa (CAC)

Decreased the par value of each share
from THB 10 to THB 1 and increased reg-
istered capital to THB 600 million at the
extraordinary shareholders’ meeting

The Company has announced its intention
to participate in the Private Sector Collective
Action Codlition against Corruption or CAC.

Increased its registered capital to THB 500 million

(Additional 30 million common shares with a par value of

THB 10 per share)

UsGNY TasanmwiduusBnumau $iia Tautsde
371 USGN ThgsuUs:Nugda s1fa (UK1gu) tu Sun 29

AUYIYU 2554

Became a public company limited under the name of

“Thaire life Assurance Public Company Limited”




th

—
)
O
I
———N

THREL

ANNIVERSARY
THAIRE LIFE ASSURANCE PCL.

2557 / 2014

KnANNSWE THREL TdSumisdarnnauy SET
100 Index NAQUENANUALUGIOIHANNSWHIN
ogluinruifiimsgoneRbamunaovaveg
avlaue TyamousIMaata (Market Capi-
talization) &y a:dadoudiiorusiugoudu
IncuriRrKua MiktinavnudAoWFobutunan
NSWEzoUSENITULINIU

THREL Securities is include in the SET 100
Indices. It represents a highly liquidity trading
with high Market Capitalization. Moreover, the

investors could confide to THREL Securities due
to the ratio of minor Shareholders which meets

2560 / 2017

USBNY FhuruZovusENn 8i8ugiea Thy 91 (‘EMCS”) RusGndioagiurua $uou
1,200,000 Ku Kdonaidusoua: 20 FovAuUNKUOZOY EMCS TAIn THRE RIdugfiorusiy
Tnjaouusuen N

usBn-ldasnuUiuRUANTTY2eY TKI Life Insurance Company Limited Fldran:Tuudadvuusen
1aSvAuluY 2559 Tagd3anUs:avAilioditussivus:Augsaluds:inAald $1udu 2,600,000 Ku
yarRURGsYISKUA: 2,000 AU soUIDURNU 5,200 Aufiu KeIRuIm 21.7 Auuin FvAaidu
sas1$oua: 32.5 Founuean:JuuevusEndunaid Uaauuusenyidds:iRuIGusnuouliad
usBniasunsUs:inus:aumsmnuqianeNIsusENvan:bouingds:910 2559 A darh

TagauALAIASUANIUUNSSUNISUSENINg (I0D) Tus:Au “QIAf" (5 a12) deltioveuiivdaUu

The Company sold all of its 1,200,000 shares held in EMCS Thai Company Limited
(“EMCS”), which is equivalent to 20 percent of the total shares, to THRE who is the major
shareholder of THREL

The Company invested in 2,600,000 ordinary shares of TKI Life Insurance Company
Limited, with a par value of LAK 2,000 each, amounting to LAK 5,200 million or equivalent
to Baht 21.7 million, representing 32.5 percent of the share capital of that company. TKI
life Insurance Company Limited was incorporated in 2016 and is principally engaged in
the operation of life insurance business in Laos. The Company has fully paid up the shares.

The Company obtained financial strength rating of Best's Financial Rating: A-(Excellent),

the criteria.

awarded on the International Credit Rating by the AM Best continuing to date.

2556 / 2013

USGNY TaIBUGNITUMSMUIIUTAUUN
wAantwiIfgoAUNIsUs:AugINIWI
10udsuklvlevnisds:iugdads:inn
Souwcuun

UsGn 1Ivan:ityutuaatarnannswe
InaUs:inAng ||a:|Uon’7ms?}0?nU§uusn
(First Trading Day) Tudun 9 qaAU 2556

Developed health products with life
insurance companies Listed on the Stock
Exchange of Thailand and began its first
trading day on October 9, 2013

2558 / 2015

THRE anAadduUNMstioRUATNY2oIUSEN NIGUSouUA: 41.5 InADSoUA:
24.3 1A:AWAVIUSS:HIWUSBNIVASUMNUSENgouiduusEnsou

USBNIdsUNsTaduGUA Lo fiodUNSNUINANTUU International
Credit Rating Agency: AM. Best Tus:GU Best’s Financial Strength Rating: A-
(Excellent) Fuoglunnurnbnouduaud

usun Tasunisus:idus:aunismnuqQiiaiiemsusBnean:idguingds:sn

U 2558 AvarhlagauAUAVIASUANNUTUNSSUNSUSGNING (1I0D) Tus:Gu “G
uN” (4 and) deitiovd@acionu 2 U

THRE decreased its shareholding in the Company from 41.5 percent to
24.3 percent leading to a change in the Company’s status from a subsidiary
to an associated company of THRE.

The Company obtained financial strength rating of Best’s Financial Rating:
A-(Excellent), awarded on the International Credit Rating by the AM Best.

The Company was rated “Very Good” (4 stars) in the Corporate Gov-

ernance Report of Thai Listed Companies (CGR) in 2009 published by the

Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) for 2 consecutively years.

2562 / 2019

USBNIdsUMsIaduduacu@otio
AUNNSRIUAINANUU International Credit
Rating Agency: AM. Best Tus:QU Best's
Financial Strength Rating: A- (Excellent)
Fuoglunnwininowiunvd duncd 2558
1Bus:g:i0a 5 U doitiov@adionu

The Company obtained financial
strength rating of Best’s Financial Rating:
A-(Excellent), awarded on the Interna-
tional Credit Rating by the AM Best since
2015 for 5 consecutively years.




oY=13/412[V]
VISION

Ing5Us:nusayvidudiustasiunis
THusN1ssuUs:NuNgaeAIuZdI0
WSoUWUU) ASASSAWANTUZ
I1A:USN1S NASIANUATKAU gAY
IASUNIA:AVAUO Y WENEU

Being unique life reinsurance
solutions provider.

wusn?
MISSION

IsIoUcuUn ASIVASSH
WAANTUZIA:USNISSUUS:NUNY
QOGWTIOA29AWIFLIITY
mwuasyuana

We aim to create and develop
insurance products and services
with our international

standard approach.

1S18NIS:AUADWILIUAY
NINISNUWSOUAS I
WAQOUINUOYWEIVEIU
Ingnoru

We confinue to maintain
our financial strength and
create sustainable return
to our shareholders.

ISINOUTUUIFTNENIW
ynaNsiiwsaucionis
IWAgUIUAVAIUCIIV)2OVs SN
We aim to optimize our
resources and platforms to
cope with business
environment changes.
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UOUﬂﬁ'\ﬂtyn'l\'lﬂ'\SNU
(Financial Highlights)

(KU2Y: &AuuIn)
(Unit : THB Million)

waus:noums Sasmsilasundan (Souaz)
Operating Result Change (Percent)

2560 2561 2562 2561/2560 2562/2561
2017 2018 2019 2018/2017 2019/2018

2,157 2,400 2,340 (2.5)

1WyUs:Nungcosu
Gross written premium

IﬁUUS:ﬁuﬁUd0§Uﬁn§ 2,137 2,381 2,324 114 (2.4)
Net written premium
Misneund 542 310 232 (42.8) (25.2)
Profit before tax
nisans 436 253 194 (42.0) (23.3)
Net profit
nlsanscoru (Un) 0.73 0.42 0.32 (42.5) (23.8)
Net profit per share
iWous:Auficiosuans (Auuin) fisqns (Auuin)
Net written premium (THB Million) Net profit (THB Million)
2,381 4.
38 2324 36
2,137 389

253
194
2558 2559 2560 2561 2562 2558 2559 2560 2561 2562
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(KU2Y: AuuIn)
(Unit : THB Million)

FIU:MSAU tU SUAUD Sasmsilasundav (Soua:)
Financial Position at the End of Year Change (Percent)
2560 2561 2562 2561/2560 2562/2561
2017 2018 2019 2018/2017 2019/2018
AunsSwgsou 2,397 2,358 2,426 (1.6) 29
Total assets
HﬁﬁUSDU 854 919 968 7.6 5.3
Total liabilities
NUISYNAS:IAD 600 600 600 - -
Share capital issued and paid-up
NunevnuKsSedouZoNdiioRU 1,543 1,439 1,459 (67) 1.4
Shareholders” equity
yaAKUANUUNY3 (UINcioru) 257 2.40 243 (6.6) 1.3
Book Value per Share (THB)
Nuduwa (UINcivrU) 0.50 0.35 0.26 (30.0) (25.7)
Dividend per Share (THB)
AunSwgsou (Auun) douzavdiioRu (Auun)
Total Assets (THB Million) Shareholders’ Equity (THB Million)
2,426 1,543
2,397

2,358 1,439

2558 2559 2560 2561 2562 2558 2559 2560 2561 2562
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Annual Report 2019 1



USGN Thusus:nuda 9Na (UK1U)

A1sNNssUNIsiia:gonudgnsiney

(Letter to Shareholders)

ISvu dhioru

Ul w.A. 2562 IAsugNengdvayTunId:d:aodd
AWEANS:NUINNST:A0ADIONIASUFARTANAAIUKTY
TdSUwANS:NUYINAVASIUNISAT AITUUINAAaNoU
JanowawISNNIWNISNISIRINIUAIUSIANYONGAYOON
ruNaWMsaunuiNNIASIIIaonguURSVIaTunsouvia
3nnvidnyrnouadzowuls:nnul 2563 lafigiay
Avwaliifsugieinul 2562 IGulaldhsoua: 2.4 Fuainon
Anan1snil31au ru aeudud Asova: 3.8 1a:1duns
wwdachdatuseu 5 U dudiicd 2557

diussieds:NuIdanisagrgaoniuagTunio:
naney FulyUs:Aususoul:isasinisiauiaanay
ndnounseva: 2.7 Fuiduibuds:AuSUSOUNVAU
610,474 AUUTN NNISVLANAUNIA:AUANYGIToV
AgvAvAvwauInUnountn Kanka1edu Tusre:du
AN0:as100n0udl NsT:AaedIzoINIsUADUAUITO
FufUuiuzevsuIAMs NsiVagulavdunnINmuziciig
AN sUs:nAtdnkUdovIuUNMASIAMAUQIASSH?

dwuwanisaltussivSuus:nunycoyouussn
Tud 2562 USBNDITuUs:AURYAOSUTIUOU 2,340 A1UUIN
acavndneusova: 2.5 Taunuuiduiluds:Aunivdosu
INNsUS:AUNYGoAIGU (Conventional Reinsurance)
91UdU 1,262 A uuin acavndnousoua: 6.6 lla:iuy
Soulicuun (Non-Conventional Reinsurance) 97UduU 1,078
Auunn 1Tu3uSoua: 2.8 TagdAadouiluUs:Aunuciosy
IVUANIGUIIAIVUSOUICULNOER 54:46 IRguiudasoulnou
oyR 56:44 nInUovTUYUIOVANUNU:IOVWANNTUY
Us:udsa udl 10uus:fufiucosuaovustnaoulny
aoanaovnunudIduaala Taguivinus:nuganiw
AvaINUsINNSIwATIRYSIUOU 292 Auuin fia:us:inn
Us:iunausiuou 761 d1uuin Adasisoua: 12.5
la: 32.5 awwddvwaanturius:innus:nuauidoriio
Rogondulisasdounsova: 23.9 10uIluUs:Auiuciosu
FIUdU 559 AuuIn uenNTwWAANUKUS:AUAY
s1walnyRseva: 23.3 10uiBuUs:Autodesusuou
545 auuin na:waanturius:innaUdinaaouunna
1Ouiduus:Aufodosusiuou 183 Auuin Adasidou
Asowva: 7.8 9 nanwiAsygneUeqUuUATdNa 1D
Tuilovdu riiwanisdIGuvuUANYN:WAANUA
nnUs:inniddasinaney Ideifgunudnoundn unidu
waoNruriUs:AunauRidasinisiaviansoua: 2.4

2  sovnulds:U 2562

Dear Shareholders,

The Thai economic performance remains lackluster in
2019 due to a number of factors. These include the
anemic global economy, partly as a result of the
prolonged trade war while the strong Baht continued to
undermine the pricing competitiveness of Thai exports
amid limited growth in public and private investment. This
also includes of the late of 2020 Government Budgeting
Approval, the drought situation happened in various area.
As a result, the country’s GDP growth was 2.4 percent
which was less than the prior estimation at early 2019
of 3.8 percent, causing overall economic growth in 2019
to slip a 5-year low since 2014.

Thai life insurance sector adversely show a negative
growth of 2.7 percent with total written premiums of
THB 610,474 million. This is due to the business has
faced the multifaceted challenges which still had
impacts from the previous year, including the low
interest rate trend, the slower lending growth from
bank sectors, and the amendment to applicable
regulations by Government Sector.

From our 2019 results, the Company’s revenue from
gross written premiums (GWP) amounted to THB
2,340 million, which declined by 2.5 percent from the
previous year. This could be broken down into the
GWP from conventional reinsurance business of
THB 1,262 million, decreasing year-on-year by 6.6
percent, and from non-conventional reinsurance
business of THB 1,078 million, up by 2.8 percent.
The ratio of premiums from conventional reinsurance
versus non-conventional reinsurance stood at 54:46,
compared with 56:44 from the previous year. Classified
by type of products, the Company’s premiums were
mainly in line with the market trend and contributed
by the health insurance product either in individual
insurance generate gross written premium of THB 292
million and group insurance generate gross written
premium of THB 761 million, soaring by 12.5 percent
and 32.5 percent. Followed by the commercial and
housing credit insurance shared 23.9 percent with
GWP of THB 559 million and ordinary life insurance at
23.3 percent of portfolio with gross written premium
of THB 545 million. Lastly, personal accident insurance
generated gross written premium of THB 183 million
shared 7.8 percent. As such, with the current economy
circumstances as mentioned earlier; none of those
products grew compared to the previous year except
group insurance that grew by 2.4 percent.




ThaiRe Life Assurance PCL

TudAWIULY USBNIVAVIUVIURY VIU 'un1s
mouauo\mowooumsaouanmlﬂuhan AvNIS
wcuu*nryamnnmsounuusmssuds.nunumoo1uaom
wsounvIadvKTon1anIssivoyaoltov lasfa
JarinisUs:0una:3IASAANYNIWIONUSEN I’NQ’]U
013y 000U Tona na:aUassa 1douiuidady
TAsuMsciTy ) NG Product, Partner, Process, People
na: Branding AuAlicuuaUsudsuns:uounasiiviu
aoandovAulUaguIUaveInsoudiu Tagiawa:
og WIunisiUAaguNlaviisdaidrzevinalulad
lazA2WAINIYdUNDINTUZ A Av:DualvAulY
nvmolulnoias:duaina dnnvidioIluganduaIUISn
TuNIsIIVNIUIOVUSEN la:asSIISINGIUIovNIsIGula
AguinAoulUdwninegwilus:AnSNwavAQ

uonvINd USENIuTKAWANANYAUNISANTUNIU
IlotKDwanTsegwdviu TavAlviivAdwALQa
TuduiAsygne Avau IA:AVID0AOU WSOUAdUSSSNALIA
MIKTUDU usBnlaSunisUs:IDuduMsinuQIANINIS
(Corporate Governance) As:Au 5 anddeitiowduliau
dude 10uusBnADNsAUQIaReNIsogTus:AuaIAn
1ndA1UNVIUANUINSSUNISAIAUKANNS WY llA:
aaranannswyirnvds:inAlng (n.a.q.) la:aulny
aAvlasuanIduNssuNIsUsENing (IOD)
nisiaulazeuustniu Tdsunisativauududan
fioAu WusUasnssfiv ANU:NSSUNISUSEN IA:N1S
unguonuwnao\]wun\nunns QurnTKusenUgu:

IFUIBIA:0UT19:AS WA WIS IYRDHUNIONOVANS
WovducelU

iy

o
n
3
n

wuIonaldgaunruaennniuisauiduaouniv

JOVADWINSTYN1OKUNZOIUSENIaUs:aundWANISY
dcgdunlagaaoa U1 tu Tonal

Last year, the Company remained steadfast in responding
to customer needs through both development of products,
including life reinsurance service, and seeking of business
opportunities. We have also started the exercise of
SWOT analysis to understand our capabilities in order
to implements strategic projects from different angles
i.e. Product, Partner, Process, People and Branding to
response the various changes in the market, notably
the rapid changes in technology and the challenge of
changes in regulations to be enforced both at home and
internationally. This was carried out in parallel with the
development of employee capability and formation of
good corporate image in a bid to enhance the Company’s
competitiveness and build a foundation for growth to
move forward with the utmost efficiency.

Moreover, the Company gave priority to achieving
sustainable profits and, at the same time, creating a
balance between economy, society and environment
while upholding the good governance practices. In 2019,
therefore, the Company achieved the CG scores of “Five
Stars” or “Excellent” for the third consecutive year from
the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) and the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD).

With the support of shareholders and directors, business
partners, and hard-working employees at all levels, the
Company will continue to grow and maintain a strong
market position resulting in sustainable prosperity.

| sincerely thank you everyone for being a part of this
special and accomplishment operation. On behalf of
everyone at Thaire life, we are excited for the future
of the company and all of the possibilities it may hold.

s

(UYANS SPOSVASSH)
nssuMisiia:goudunisiney
(Mr.Sutti Rajitrangson)
Director and President

Annual Report 2019 3



USGN Thusus:nuda 9Na (UK1U)

ATU:NSSUNISUSUN (BOARD OF DIRECTORS)

1. UNYAIUC KIUHKA (ong 83 T)
Mr. Suchin Wanglee (age 83)

Js:saunssuns lIa:NSSUNISAavNU
Chairman and Director of Investment Committee

Uniasumisidvauidunssums: s.n. 2542
Date of Appointment: December 1999

dadounisiioru: Soua: 0.72
Shareholding: 0.72 percent

AfUIAIAVAQNINNISANY:
3ronssuAAaSUrU7a (3ronssulwih) Northrop
Institute of Technology ArSFoILSM

n1sausy/ duuuilavauiauaviasuanitu
nssun1susEniny (IOD):

* Chairman 2000 / 2544

* Role of the Chairman Program (RCP) / 2544
* Directors Certification Program (DCP) / 2545
* Director Accreditation Program (DAP) / 2556

N1SOUSU/AUUUNBUY

* duuuUn Board Forum 2562 dalagdunuiu AUN.

* KAngasdnunMsUs:NUNYs:aUAN (OUA)
sun 2 YalagAdnuiu AUN.

* KANANSEUSHISS:AUAVANUNISUSHISYIUWICUUN
1oV “urniuns” Taganuudauuniio

* KANFOSAUSHISS:AUAIAIUNSANIIANISWITUSY
lagan0udngINIsAM

* HANFOSEUSKHISS:AUAVANTUINYINSaAIaNU
(oan.) sun 9 TaganUu3NYINISaaIaNU

Us:aunisninisnivau:

UsBnean:10yu

8.n.2542 - JaqUu Us:sunssunis

uuR.IngsUs:nudda

w.n.2559 - Jaquu NsSsUN1savNu

uuR.IngsUs:nudda

NSsuUN1Sdas:
uuR.IngsUs:nuzda

Us:sunssuns
uuR.UdNAUSIUNY

w.n.2562 - UaqUu

2544 - J9q0u

4  sgvuds:anU 2562

Education:

B.E. (Electrical),
Northrop Institute of Technology, U.S.A.

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD):

* Chairman 2000 / 2001

* Role of the Chairman Program (RCP) / 2001
* Directors Certification Program (DCP) / 2002
* Director Accreditation Program (DAP) / 2013

Others Training Courses:
* Board Forum 2019, by OIC.
* Advanced Insurance Science, Class 2, by OIC.

* Executive Management “Urban development”,
Urban Green Development Institute.

* Top Executive Program in Commerce and Trade by
University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce

* Certificate of Top Executive Program,
Capital Market Academy

Experience:
Listed Company
Dec 1999 - Present Chairman,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Director of the Investment Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

May 2016 - Present

May 2019 - Present Independent Director,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2001 - Present  Chairman, Navakij Insurance PCL.




ThaiRe life Assurance PCL

2550 - Jequu

2561 - Uequu
2553 - 2561

2552 - UqUu
2554 - J9qUu

2553 - UqUu
2555 - JaqUu

2556 - Uaquu

2553 - UqUu

2537 - Uaquu

2521 - 2559

uUsSuniUldaan:Tou

2560 - U9qUu
2560 - Uaquu
2560 - U9qUu

2557 - JaqUu

2550 - 2562

2525 - JaqUu
2534 - J3qUu

2548 - J9qUu
2511 - Jaquu
2531 - Uaquu
2549 - Jaquu

2550 - UqUu

AUSNUNACUNSSUNISUSNS
AUSnuAnU:NSSUNISaINU
uuR.UdNUS:NUNY

Js:sunssums
uuR.aaMNssutvian:ing

souUs:sunssuns
uuR.90aMNssUtVlan:ing

Js:sunssumsmrkuam
QOUIINUIIA:ASSHY
uur.90aMNssutvlar:ing

SOUUS:8IUNSSUNTS UUR.IASUAR
NSSUNISOAS: UUA.IASUAY

Us:sUnnU:NSSUNISTANSTUNAN
QauIiNU UUR.IASUAY

NSSUNISOSIdOU
UUA.IASUAY

NSSUNMSSAS: NSSUNNSASIAOU
nssuMsaAssHliarHUamMaLUINU
uua.Onioa ndU Toadvd

NSSUNSd4as: uuR.olsunsnl

Us:81UNSSUMS NSSUNMSdas:
nssuNsauNu
U InuSuus:Nunuao

NSSUNS UAR. WCUUAU
Us:sunssuns Ua. 3.9.104

nssums / NUSNuUs:su
NSSUNS UR.WAWA

Us:sunssunis
uUuA. Woanauus:Nuny

Us:sunssums ua. nifole.
(Annduds:Nunylng)

Us:sunssuNS UA. A1sssnl

nssunN1sdas:
U9. Svaawand

ASSUMS UUA. TSVISUS1IANS
NSSUMS UA. KOVKA
ASsSUMS UA. 1ae:1dn

nssuNs
UR. KOVHAWQUUN

NSSUNIS UR. ©1Ad1 Sullin

2007 - Present

2018 - Present

2010 - 2018

2009 - Present

2011 - Present

2010 - Present
2012 - Present

2013 - Present

2010 - Present

1994 — Present

1978 - 2016

Non-Listed Company

2017 - Present
2017 - Present
2017 - Present

2014 - Present

2007 - 2019

1982 — Present
1991 — Present

2005 - Present
1968 - Present
1988 — Present
2006 - Present

2007 - Present

Advisor of the Executive Board,
Adbvisor of the Investment
Committee, Navakij Insurance PCL.

Chairman,
Thai Metal Drum MFG. PCL.

Vice Chairman,
Thai Metal Drum MFG. PCL.

Chairman of the Nominating
and Remuneration Committee,
Thai Metal Drum MFG. PCL.

Vice Chairman, Sermsuk PCL
Independent Director, Sermsuk PCL.

Chairman of the Compensation
Committee, Sermsuk PCL

Director of the Audit Committee,
Sermsuk PCL.

Independent Director, Director of
the Audit Committee and Director
of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee,

BTS Group Holdings PCL.

Independent Director,
Varopakorn PCL.

Chairman, Independent Director,
Director of the Investment
Committee, Thai Reinsurance PCL.

Director, Pipatanasin Co., Ltd
Chairman, CES. Co., ltd

Director / Advisor of Chairman,
Poonphol Co., Ltd

Management Advisor, Chairman,
Falcon Insurance PCL.

Chairman, T.LI Co., Lid.

Chairman, Sathorn Thani Co., Lid.

Independent Director,
Rangsit Plaza Co,, Ltd.

Director, Rajadamri Hotel PCL.
Director, Wanglee Co., Ltd.
Director, The Pet Co., Ltd.

Director,
Wanglee Development Co., Lid.

Director, Aqua Infinite Co., Ltd

Annual Report 2019 5
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2. UNYdNS sFasuAssA (eg727)
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson (Age 72)
NSSUNIS NSSUNISAaVNU ﬂSSUﬂ'\SUgh']SﬂD']UIﬁ:U\l
la:goudunsiney
Director, Director of Investment Committee,

Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee, and President

Unlasunisidvauidunssums: an. 2555
Date of Appointment: August 2012

dAadounisiiou: Sova: 0.00
Shareholding: 0.00 percent

ArUAIFIAQNINNISANY:
wruggMAasSUnunia (A00) INusauuy
UNAINSNUUKIINYIAY

n1sousy/ duuuilavaunAuaviasuaniou
nssun1susEniny (I0OD):

* Director Accreditation Program (DAP) / 2555

N1SoUSU/AUUUIBUN

¢ Fellow (FLMI) aananndunisvanmsaiunisus:nuzda
JovanSYoIUSNN (LOMA's Life Management Institute)

* KANFOSYUSKISS:AUAVANITUINYINISAAIANU
(oan.) sun 6 Tagan10u3NYINSaAIaNU

Js:aunisninasniviu:

UsSBnean:10yu

U.A.2561 - Uequu NSSUNNSUSHISADWIADY

A.n.2555 - Uaquu NSSUNS lla:goudunsikuny

uue.IngsUs:nuzda

N.W.2557 — Uauu NssuNsaINU uua.Ingsus:Auzda

UsSGniyldean:1Tyu

2556 - UaqUu nssuNs U InuSIgosIalsa

2539 - UqUu NSsSUMs
auAuds:Audaing

2555 - UqUu NSSUNISUSKHIS
auAuUs:Nudaing

2553 - 2555 uunauIny
aunAuUs:Nuda

2544 - J330u NSsUMs

uv.nfefo (@annuuds:nunuing)

6 s ovuUs:U 2562

Education:

B.S. Honor (Statistics), Chulalongkorn University

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD):

* Director Accreditation Program (DAP) / 2012

Others Training Courses:

* Fellow (FLMI) (LOMA’s life Management Institute),
US.A.

* Certificate of Top Executive Program, Capital Market
Academy

Experience:

Listed Company
Jan 2018 - Present Director of Enterprise Risk

Management Committee

Director and President
Thaire life Assurance PCL.

Aug 2012 - Present

Director of the Investment
Committee, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Feb 2014 - Present

Non-Listed Company
2013 - Present
1996 — Present

Director, Thaire Services Co., Ltd.

Director,
the Thai Life Assurance Association

2012 - Present Director,

the Thai Life Assurance Association

2010 - 2012 President,

the Thai Life Assurance Association

2001 - Present Director, T.LI. Co., Lid.




ThaiRe life Assurance PCL

3. as.noUs Nnagnstu (019 80 T)
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana (Age 80)

NSSUNISHAS: US:5IUNSSUNISASIYaoU US:s1uNssuns

assrilla:muruanaoUInU

Independent Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Chairman of the Nominating and Remuneration Committee

Unlasumisicvaviunssums: s.a. 2542
Date of Appointment: December 1999

dadounisiioru: Soua: 0.00
Shareholding: 0.00 percent

ArUAIFIAQNINNISANY:
wUAnAquDUu7a Harvard University
Js:nfAiansgoiusm

n1sousy/ duuuilavaunAuaviasuaniou
nssun1susEniny (I0OD):

* Board Forum 2562, by OIC.

* Directors Certification Program (DCP) / 2544
* Excellent Board Decision / 2547

* Audit Committee Program (ACP) / 2548

e DCP Refresher Course (RE DCP) / 2548

N1SoUSU/AUUUIBUN

e AUUUNATUINSSUNTISOISOYAOUZOIUSENUS:NUNY
“IT Governance” TagaUtnuiu AUN. / 2558

Js:aunisninasniviu:

UsBnean:10yu

8.n.2542 - U30u nNssUNsdds:

uuR.IngsUs:nuzda

Us:s1unssunN1sasdvdou
Us:saunssunNisassmilia:mnuQ
ANCDUIINU UUR.TNYSUS:NUZD0

W.9.2559 - U9qUu

Ww.N.2557 - W.9.2559 NSSUNISASIVASDU

uuR.IngsUs:nudda

N.W.2558 - W.9.2559 NSSUNISASSKN

lla:MKuUaADUIINU
uuA. Ihgsuds:nuzda

uUsSUniUldaan:Tou
2543 - U3qUu

AUSNW ddnvudicuun
3nYIMAQS ladNATUTATIKYANA

- '-5
,)

"\ *

Education:
Ph.D. (Physics), Harvard University, U.S.A.

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD):

* Board Forum 2019, by OIC.

* Directors Certification Program (DCP) / 2001
* Excellent Board Decision / 2004

* Audit Committee Program (ACP) / 2005

e DCP Refresher Course (RE DCP) / 2005

Others Training Courses:
* “IT Governance” by OIC / 2015

Experience:

Listed Company
Dec 1999 - Present  Independent Director,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Nov 2016 - Present Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Chairman of the Nominating
and Remuneration Committee

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Director of the Audit Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

May 2014 — Nov 2016

Feb 2015 - Nov 2016 Director of the Nominating
and Remuneration Committee,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Non-Listed Company
2000 - Present

Advisor to the National Science
and Technology Development

Agency

Annual Report 2019 7



USGN Thusus:nuda 9Na (UK1U)

4. as.onsny Inwcwuina (0176 )
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul (Age 76)

NSSUNISHAS: NSSUNNISASIYAOU 1A:NSSUNISASSKHN

la:mKuUQAICOUINU

Independent Director, Director of Audit Committee and
Director of the Nominating and Remuneration Committee

Unlasunisidvauidunssums: s.n. 2542
Date of Appointment: December 1999

dadounisiioru: - Ul -
Shareholding: - None -

ArUAIFIAQNINNISANY:
JSaryrqupununanaduAnd anigudnunia
wWouuusKIsAAEQsS

nisausy/ guuuilavaurauaviasuanitu
nssun1susening (I0OD):

* Director Accreditation Program (DAP) / 2555

Us:aunisninisnivnu:

usunean:1Idyu

8.n.2542 - J9qUu NSsUN1sdas:
uuR.IngsUs:NUZdA

0.A.2555 - Jquu NSSUN1SOSIEOU
uue.IngsUs:NUZda

n.W.2558 — UaUu NSSUNISASSH
lazMKuaAaoUINU
uuR.IngsUs:NUZda

usuniuldaan:dou

2547 - Uq0U nssuMs lla:Us:sWud K
USk1s uueTnads:udda

2533 - U3q0u Js:shunssums
uurIngus:nuaINW

2531 - UqUu nssuns urnfole.

2526 - U9qUu NSSUMS 1A:NSSUNISUSKHIS

aunauds:NuFdaling

8  siovuUds:U 2562

Education:

Ph.D. (Hon), National Institute of Development
Administration (NIDA)

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD):

* Director Accreditation Program (DAP) / 2012

Listed Company
Dec 1999 — Present

Oct 2012 - Present

Feb 2015 - Present

Experience:

Independent Director,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Director of the Audit Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Director of the Nominating
and Remuneration Committee,
Thaire life Assurance PCL.

Non-Listed Company

2004 - Present

1990 — Present

1988 — Present
1983 — Present

Director and Chief Executive
Officer, Thai Life Insurance PCL.

Chairman,
Thai Health Insurance PCL.

Director, Tll Co., Ltd.

Director and Executive Director,
The Thai Life Assurance Association




ThaiRe life Assurance PCL

5. uwAUAY §dsUUn (19 68 U)
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon (Age 68)

NSSUNSHAS: US:S']UﬂSSUﬁ’]SU§H’]Sﬂ3’]UIﬁIU\] NSSUNISASOY
AoU IIlA:NSSUNMISASSHIlla:MKUaAaoUINU

Independent Director, Chairman of Enterprise Risk Management
Comnmittee, Director of the Audit Committee, Director of the

Nominating and Remuneration Committee

Unlasumisicdvavidunssums: n.a. 2559
Date of Appointment: July 2016

dadounisiioru: - Ul -
Shareholding: - None -

ArUAIFIAQNINNISANY:
WaUUINISIASYINY UKIUDU/O an0UUUAQ

WAUUUSKISANAQS

n1sousy/ duuuilavaunAuaviasuanitu
nssun1susEniny (I0OD):

* Directors Certification Program (DCP) / 2546

mMsousu/auuundue
* KANAOSINYINSUS:NUNYS:QUAN (OUA.)
lagAUnuiu AUN. / 2554

* KANAASWUSHISS:AUFVANITUINYINTISOAIANU
(0an.) laganUudngINMsaalanu / 2550

* rangasnisUavnus1zonuINsSNIASISoUIoNIU
(Uso.) TagdngndulJovnusizonnunins / 2546

* KANFASNISWEUUNUNUSHISS:QUAN (UUA.)
TaganUuwcuunsi¥niswalsou

Us:aunisninisnivu:

usSunean:1Idyu
u.A.2561 - JaqUu

n.A.2559 — Jequu

Ww.9.2559 - JaqUu

U.n.2562 - UaqUu
w.n.2561 - Uaquu

Ww.9.2556 - UaqUu

1V.9.2557 — JaqUu

Us:swunssumsu§msn:nmﬁ'w

NSsUN1SdAs:
uuA. Inusus:nuzda

NSSUNISAISIAOU NSSUNNS
assmilla:nKuaAICoUINU
uuA. Ingsus:nuzda

NSSUNNSOAS:
UUR.NSUINWUS:NUZIA

Us:8IUALU:NSSUNISUSKHIS
UUR.NSVINWUS:NAUZIO

Us:sunssumsmnuqiaiiemsna
UUR.NSVINWUS:NUZIQ

NSSUNISUSHNSADWIALY
UuR.NSVINWUsS:NUZIQ

Education:

Master of Development Economics National Institute
of Development Administration

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD):

* Directors Certification Program (DCP) / 2003

Others Training Courses:

* OIC Advance Insurance Program,
Class of 1/2011 by OIC

* Certificate of Executive Program,
Class of 7, by Capital Market Academy

* Top Executive Program,
Class of 34, Civil Service Development Institute

* Certificate of National Defense Course,
National Defense College, Class of 17 / 2003

Listed Company
Jan 2018 - Present

Jul 2016 - Present

Nov 2016 - Present

Mar 2019 - Present
May 2018 - Present

Nov 2013 - Present

Apr 2014 - Present

Experience:

Chairman of Enterprise Risk
Management Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL

Independent Director,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL

Director of the Audit Committee,
Director of the Nominating

and Remuneration Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL

Independent Director,
Bangkok Life Assurance PCL.

Chairman of Executive Director,
Bangkok Life Assurance PCL

Chairman of the Good Corporate
Governance Committee,
Bangkok Life Assurance PCL

Member of the Risk Management
Committee, Bangkok Life
Assurance PCL.

Annual Report 2019 9
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6. 0s.48 Tuna:dd (19 44 7)
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa (Age 44)

NSSUNSTAS: NSSUMSUSHNISADWIALY la:NsSsuNIsSavnu
Independent Director, Director of Enterprise Risk Management

Committee, Director of Investment Committee

Unidsumisidvauidunssums: w.g. 2559
Date of Appointment: November 2016

dadounisiioru: - TUD -
Shareholding: - None -

AMUQAIAYAQNINNISANYN:

PhD. Applied Mathematical Finance Imperial College,
London Us:Infidunnu

n1sausy/ duuuilavauiauaviasuanitu
nssun1susEniny (I0OD):

* Directors Certification Program (DCP) / 2559

nnsousu/&uuundun
* KHANFASEUSHISS:AUAVAIUNISANIA:NISWITUYY
SUN 11 (TEPCoT) / 2561

* handas Leadership Communication Certificate
Program

* hanaasINuINIsUs:NUNYS:QUAN (JUA.)
sun 2 TagaUnvu AUN. / 2555

* HANFASINYINNSAAIANU (2aN.)
sun 24 TagangudngiNisaalanu / 2560

Us:aunisninisnivnu:

UsSBnean:10yu

Ww.9.2559 - UaqUu NSSUNsdds:

uur.Ingsus:nuda

NSSUNNSUSHISAD IR
uue.IngsUs:nuzda

u.A.2561 - UaqUu

w.n.2562 - UaqUu nssuNsavnu

uuR.IngsUs:nuzda

NSSUNSUSHSADWIRDY
AUSNuINSSUNMISEAaNs
uuR.IdavnyUs:Nuny

NSSUNISUSHISADWIAYY
NSsUNIsSUSHIsMIsaINU
AUSNuINSsUNMISEAaNs
NSSUNISSUDYNISUSHIS
NssUNSTUACUNSSUNISUSHNS
IA:ANU:OUNSSUNMSTSTUNTAIZ
NSWIAU UUR.NNSAAZY

2552 - Jequu

2552 - Uaquu

NSSUNSOAS: / NSSUNISASIYEOU
UUR.InST Slaninsund

U.n.2563 - UaUu

10 shgvuds:aU 2562

Education:

PhD. Applied Mathematical Finance Imperial College,
London, UK

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD):

* Directors Certification Program (DCP) / 2016

Others Training Courses:

* Top Executive Program in Commerce and Trade
Class of 11 (TEPCoT) / 2018

* Leadership Communication Certificate Program / 2018

* Advance Insurance Program, Class of 2 by
OIC /2012

* Capital Market Academy Program,
Class of 24 by Capital Market Academy / 2017

Experience:

Listed Company
Nov 2016 - Present Independent Director,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Jan 2018 - Present Director of Enterprise Risk
Management Committee,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Director of Investment Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

May 2019 - Present

2009 - Present Member of the Risk Management
Committee, Advisor of Managing

Director, Muang Thai Insurance PCL

2009 - Present Member of the Risk Management
Committee, Member of the
Investment Management
Committee, Advisor of Managing
Director, Executive Director,
Member of Executive Committee
and leasing assets.

Phatra Leasing PCL.

Independent Director / Audit
Committee, KCE Electronics PCL

Jan 2020 - Present




ThaiRe life Assurance PCL

usSUniUldaan:dou

2562 - U3qUu
2560 - U9qUu
2558 — UaqUu
2559 — Jaquu
2552 - UqUu
2549 - JUu

NSSUMSUSEN ue.loidu
NSSUNISUSUN / NSSUNISUSKIS
AuNMSaINU UR.WIZy 1DuUnes
nndna
sounssuMsgaansondla
IAYUNISANU:SIUDUNISUSHS
NSSUNISUSHISADWIAYY
NSSUNISUSKHISANUNISAYNU
uuA.bovngUs:nugda

NSSUNIS ST-Muang Thai
Insurance Co., Ltd. (Lao PDR)

SouUs:8UANUOUNSSUNTS
USKHISRQNISADUIAYN AuNs
fAnuauAuUs:nudang

AUSnuAoWIADVAUOANQ
lA:ANUANWAADIANUEAINIU
avaunswaiduntau Aru:
AU Mortgage Insurance
APU:I U ALM System
Implementation sUNAS
ONAMSAVINS K

Non-Listed Company

2019 - Present
2017 - Present

2015 - Present

2016 - Present

2009 - Present

2006 - Present

Director, I-Gen Co., Ltd.
Director / Director of Investment,
Fuchsia Venture Capital Co., Ltd.

Senior Executive Vice President,
Secretary of Management
Committee, Director of Risk
Management, Director of
Investment, Muang Thai Life
Assurance PCL.

Director, ST- Muang Thai
Insurance Co., ltd. (Lao PDR)

Vice President of Risk Management
Committee, Education,
The Thai Life Assurance Association.

Advisor to the Market Risk

and Liquidity Risk/ Mortgage
Insurance Committee/ ALM
System Implementation Committee,
Government Housing Bank
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7. uhgs:sa Wugnuun (e1g 55 U)
Mr.Tarate Poshyananda (Age 55)

NSSUNSHAS: ﬂSSUfﬂSU§I’ﬂSﬂ3’]UIﬁ=U\] lla:NsSsuNIsavnu
Independent Director, Director of Enterprise Risk Management

Committee, Director of Investment Committee

UnlasunisideGuidunssums: 1.0, 2562
Date of Appointment: April 2019

dadounisiioru: - Ul -
Shareholding: - None -

ArUAIFIAQNINNISANY:

Master in Marketing, Webster University, St. Louis,
Missouri, USA

n1sousy/ duuuilavaunAuaviasuaniou
nssun1susEniny (I0OD):

* Director Certificate Program (DAP74) / 2551
* Director Certificate Program (DCP183) / 2556

* Anti — Corruption for Executive Program (ACEP) /
2556

* Advance Audit Committee Program (AACP33) /
2562

* Board Nomination and Compensation Program
(BNCP7) / 2562

N1SoUSU/AUUUIBUN

* “3ngNisUs:NunNys:Quan (oU4.) s:ur‘i 5” &nviu

ACU:NSSUNISMNUIa:avIASUNISUS:noussiv

Js:nuny (OIC)

“gulueunnadinsussieluaunna - EVP”,

UK1INUNauoaaudny (ABAC)

“ojdwr‘imﬁosssum” (The Extraordinary Leaders),

USUn aavgeon nsU na

. “s:uumsﬁomsnuurfjdu” (Japanese Management
System), ANUUTNUAOUSKISSSHAAAUNSIIKY
UNAVNSNUUKIINYIAY

+ “anUun>WIdugiuinarnsuanm” (Crossville
Program)”, 13y, WAUUUA, General Electric (GE)

Us:aunisninasniviu:

usuneaN:ITYU
2562 - J9q0u NSSUNISSAS: / NSSUNISUSHIS
ADWIAYY /NSSUNISAYNU

uue.IngsUs:nuzda

12  shgvuds:aU 2562

Education:

Master in Marketing, Webster University, St. Louis,
Missouri, USA

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD):

* Director Certificate Program (DAP74) / 2008
* Director Certificate Program (DCP183) / 2013

* Anti — Corruption for Executive Program (ACEP) /
2013

* Advance Audit Committee Program (AACP33) /
2019

* Board Nomination and Compensation Program
(BNCP7) / 2019

Others Training Courses:

* Thailand Insurance Leadership Program
(Class 5) by OIC

* Future leaders for future business — EVP,
Assumption University (ABAC)

* The Extraordinary leader,
Slingshot Group Co., Ltd.

* Japanese Management System, Sasin Graduate
Institute of Business Administration
of Chulalongkorn University

* Crossville Program, Cebu, Philippines,
General Electric (GE)

Experience:

Listed Company

2019 - present Independent Director / Director
of Enterprise Risk Management
Committee / Director of
Investment Committee,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.




ThaiRe life Assurance PCL

2558 — Uaquu

2559 - Jquu
2558 — UqUu

2551 - UaqUu
2551 - Uaquu

2554 - 2557

usuNniUldaan:dou

2561 - UaqUu

2557 - 2561

Us:81UANU:NSSUNISASIEOU
NSSUDAS:
NSSUMSASSHIIA:NKUQAMADUIINU
UUR. afdy  18uInosiwsd

US:SWUﬂSSUﬂ’]SU§H']SﬂD’1UIﬁU\]

NSSUNISASSKN
Ia:ISTUNIANGOUINU

NSSUNISQOSOvaDU

NSSUNSd4s: .
UU9. 1IBUTR nosUaisdu

g¥unssumsgranisiney
UUR.8UNAISNSUASOYSYN

NSsSUMS / Us:sWINHGA _
USHISNaU UR. lloulwa Toady

nssuMsiia:us:suIKiN
USKIS UN. UNSY U

2015 - present

2016 - present
2015 - present

2008 - present
2008 - present

2011 - 2014

Non-Listed Company

2019 - present

2014 - 2018

Chairman of Audit Committee /
Independent Director /Director
of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee,

S. Kijchai Enterprise PCL

Chairman of Risk Management
Committee,

Director of the Nominating
and Remuneration Committee,

Director of Audit Committee,

Independent Director,
MPG PCL.

Executive Vice President -
Corporate Banking Group,
Bank of Ayudhaya PCL

Director / Group CEO,
Ampak Holding Co., Ltd

Director / Chief Executive Officer,
Marsh PB Co., Ltd
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8. unglowns JvFAAsSWIFYY (01950 0)
Mr.Oran Vongsuraphichet (Age 50)

NSSUNIS
Director

Unidsunisiduauidunssums: 10.9. 2562
Date of Appointment: April 2019

dadounisiioru: - TUD -
Shareholding: - None -

Education:

AfUQAIEVAQNINISANY:

Jstynyion usrisssinquiUnuiaa anuuinAlulag
IKVIOIFY (AIT)

nisausy/ guuuilavauiauaviasuanitu
nssuNIsusEning (I0OD):

* Directors Certification Program DCP / 2559

N1SOUSU/AUUUNdU

* 3nYINSTANU Asian Institute of Technology Koo
International Training Course on Advance Insurance
Policy Management and Practices / U 2562

* KANAAS3NENSUS:AUNYUS:AUANSURS (oUA 3)

* HANAOSEYUSKHNSS:AUAY An0USNYINMSaAIaNU
Sun 22 (oan.22)

Js:aunisninasniviu:

UsBnean:10yu

Ph.D. (International Business), Asian Institute of Tech-
nology (AIT)

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD):

e Director Certificate Program (DCP) / 2016

Others Training Courses:

* Speaker for the Asian Institute of Technology, Topic
“International Training Course on Advance Insurance
Policy Management and Practices™ / 2019

* Thailand Insurance Leadership Program (class 3) by OIC

* Capital Market Academy Programs Class of 22
(CMA 22) by Capital Market Academy

Experience:

Listed Company

2562 - UqUu nssuNMs uu.IngsUs:AuZda

2560 - U930u nNSsuN1IsaINu

2559 - Uvuu nssunsiia:Us:sUIIKINAR
USH1s uueIngSuds:nuneco

2560 - 2562 NSSUNISdAS: lla:NsSUMSaINU

USGniulaean:1Tyu

U AaMsIia:licuuNNSWoINsUn
nAa:duoLon

2562 - UsUu Us:swininiusis
ua.ngs dulupdu

2560 - UqUu SOVIAINBENNS
AUAUUSAUDUNANY

2556 - UaqUu NSsUNs UR.INuSIgosIalya

2560 - UsUu Ussswininiusis
uv.Ingsilondoisuanoudadiy

2556 - UaqUu nNSsUNs N
u.Ingsilondoisuanoudadiv

2555 - J9qUu nssuMs Ue.818u30anYy

2555 - UaqUu nssuNs uu.Woanauus:NunY

2553 - Uaquu NSsUNS Uv.navingNisno

14 shgvuds:aU 2562

2019 - present
2017 - present
2016 - present

2017 - 2019

Director, Thaire Life Assurance PCL
Director of Investment Committee

Director and Chief Executive
Officer Thai Reinsurance PCL.

Independent Director/ Director
of Investment Committee, Eastern
Water Resources Development
and Management PCL.

Non-Listed Company

2019 - present
2017 - present

2013 - present
2017 - present

2013 - present

2012 - present
2012 - present
2010 - present

Chief Executive Officer,
Thaire Innovation Co., Ltd

Deputy Secretary General, Thai
General Insurance Association.

Director, Thaire Services Co., Ltd.

Chief Executive Officer,
Thaire Actuarial Consulting Co., Ltd

Director,
Thaire Actuarial Consulting Co., Ltd

Director, EMCS Thai Co., Ltd
Director, Falcon Insurance Plc
Director, Thong Thai Textile Co. lid




ThaiRe life Assurance PCL

Q. UWAIDMUDA ISOVSQUIUS (91g 44 U)
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee (Age 44)

NSSUMSIIA:IUgENUIMSTHEY NSSUNMSUSHNISADWIALY
Director and Senior Vice President, Director of Enterprise

Risk Management Committee

Unlasumisicdvavidunssums: n.a. 2559
Date of Appointment: July 2016

dadounisiioru: - Ul -
Shareholding: - None -

ArUAIFIAQNINNISANY:
USKH1S8SNAUMIUNUAC UKNDNYNAYSAAUSNY

n1sousy/ duuuilavauinAuaviasuanitu
nssuN1susEniny (I0OD):

* Director Certificate Program (DCP) / 2560

N1SoUSU/AUUUIdUn

* KANFQS TLCA Executive Development Program (EDP)
sun 15 TagauiAuusEnean:Joulng (TLCA) / 2560

* KANAOSUNUSHSS:AUAN “sSsumAnsIlioduny”
(uus.) lagyATSANUUINYINNSSSSUANANS
IWodvAU / 2559

* KANAOS Senior Executive Program (SEP)
logamUuUnUAOUSKISSSNYARUNSIIKY
UNAVNSTUUKIDNYNAY / 2556

Us:aunisninisnivu:

UsSBnean:10yu

u.A.2561 - Uaq0u NSSUNSUSHISADWIADY

uuA. Tngsus:nuda

N.n.2559 — JeqUu NSsUMS UUR. TNgsUs:nuda

2556 - J9Uu @Iudgorudunsikny
uua. Thgsus:nudda

2550 - 2556 @ououmsdholicuussia
uu.IngsUs:Nudda

2548 - 2550 sovgauouMsahy
uue. Tngsus:nudda

2547 - 2548 @Iudeudymsahy

UUA. Thgsus:nuzda

USGniUlaean:1yu
- Ul -

Education:

MB.A., Assumption University of Thailand

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD):

* Director Certificate Program (DCP) / 2017

Others Training Courses:

* TLCA Executive Development Program (EDP), Class of
15 by Thai Listed Company Association (TLCA) / 2017

* Executive Management “Thammasat for Social”
by Thammasat Science Institute Foundation / 2016

* Senior Executive Program (SEP)
by Sasin Graduate Institute of Business Administration
of Chulalongkorn University / 2013

Experience:

Listed Company

Jan 2018 - present Director of Enterprise Risk
Management Committee,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Jul 2016 - present Director, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Senior Vice President,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2013 - present

2007 - 2013 Vice President, Business Development 1
ThaiRe Life Assurance PCL.

2005 - 2007 Deputy Director,
Thaire life Assurance PCL.

2004 - 2005 Assistant Vice President.

Thaire life Assurance PCL.

Non-Listed Company
-TUG -
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10. UWUNINS HOSSUANAY (019 450)
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit (Age 45)

NSSUMS IA:QIF20ESUuNSTHN NSSUNISUSHISADWIALY
Director and Senior Vice President , Director of Enterprise

Risk Management Committee

Unlasumisicdvavidunssums: n.a. 2559
Date of Appointment: July 2016

dadounisiioru: - Ul -
Shareholding: - None -

ArUAIFIAQNINNISANY:
MISYANMISUMIUIUZQ A11NNSAANISESHY (MANILN
OVNNY) INYIAUNISIANISUKIONYIAUUAOA

n1sousy/ duuuilavaunAuaviasuaniou
nssun1susEniny (I0OD):

* Director Certificate Program (DCP) / 2560

N1SoUsSU/AUUUNBUN

HANgas TLCA Executive Development Program (EDP)
sun 10 TagauALUSBNYan:ITuUTng (TLCA) /2555

rangaswcuunlnuskis (EDP) suh 11 Tauyals
AnUUdYYUTYUYIASYININISAAY /2558
* KANFQS Senior Executive Program (SEP)

sun 24 TaganUuUruAOUSKHISSSTRAFUNS
IKNUNAINSTIUKONYNAY / 2553

HANgas Academy of Business Creativity (ABC)
sun 1 TaguranNgauAsUNU

KangasweuunfingMwaUItuboodwaAnSu
@USKHIS (Work Like A Pro: W-LAP)
TauoNYNIAUNISYANIS UKIDNYNAYUROA

Us:aunisninasniviu:

UsBnean:10yu

u.A.2561 - U9qUu NSSUNNSUSHNSADWIAUY

UUA. Thgsus:nuzda

n.A.2559 — Jequu nssuMs uWe. husus:Audda

2556 - Uvuu gIugaudumsinny
uu9. Ihgsus:NuFda

2550 - 2556 @gououmsadhulicuunssie2
uuR.IngsSUs:NUIda

2548 - 2550 sovgououmsdhe
UuR. Ihgsus:nudda

2547 - 2548 gIugonudunsahe

UUR. Thgsus:nudda

uUsSUniUldaan:Tou
- Tl -

16 shgvuds:aU 2562

Education:

MM, (International Program), College of Management
Mahidol University (CMMU)

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD):

* Director Certificate Program (DCP) / 2017

Others Training Courses:

* TLCA Executive Development Program by Experience
Association: Thailand/2012

* Executive Development Program (EDP) by Fiscal
Policy Research Institute Foundation / 2015

* Senior Executive Program (SEP)
by Sasin Graduate Institute of Business Administration
of Chulalongkorn University / 2010

* Academy of Business Creativity program (ABC)
Class of 1 by Sripatum University

* Executive Education Program — WORK LIKE A PRO:
W-LAP by College of Management
Mahidol University (CMMU)

Experience:

Listed Company

Jan 2018 - present Director of Enterprise Risk
Management Committee,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Jul 2016 - present Director, Thaire Life Assurance PCL

Senior Vice President,
Thaire life Assurance PCL.

2013 - present

2007 - 2013 Vice President, Business Development 2,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2005 - 2007 Deputy Director,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2004 - 2005 Assistant Vice President,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Non-Listed Company
- UG -




ThaiRe life Assurance PCL

ACU:GUSHIS (Management)

1. UIWATDASUNS 5SSWAUNSIU (01 420)
Mes. Sirin Dhumma-upakorn (age 42)

IAUNISUSEN lla:gonudums
dodng? na:nsniu

Secretary and Vice President -
Accounting and Finance

dadounisiiou: - TUD -
Shareholding: - None - HN
ANIYAIAVAQNINISANY:

Education:

Master of Science in Finance ANU:WNCUYUAAOSIA:NS

U0y AuaunsniukidNgay
M.Sc., Finance, Chulalongkorn University

Us:aunisninisnivau:
Experience:

uUsBnean:10yu
Listed Company
2561 - Uaquu

2018 - present

gIugaudumsinny

Senior Vice President

o dhyUryda:nsivu

® Accounting and Finance,

o dhonouAuMolula:uls:uInu
@ Operation Control & Budgeting,
e dhousmisdtnuu

o Administration

e dhyUSHISADWIAYY

e Enterprise Risk Management
uu.IngsUs:NuFda

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

@gououmsahy

Vice President

o dhoUngZa:misivu

® Accounting and Finance,

o dhonouAuMolula:uls:uInu
@ Operation Control & Budgeting,
e dhgusmsainuu

e Administration
uu.IngsUs:NuFdQ

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2560 - 2561
2017 - 2018

usunildaan:1IGou
Non-listed Company

2558 - UaqUu
2015 - Present

NSSUNISUSEN UR.I0d01S 119Q
byos
Director, SR Advisory

2. UWA12Q29UM MITYAUINAICT (ong 46 1)
Ms. Duangnapa Kanchanawongwut (age 46)

@gaudumsdhyaunu
Vice President - Investment

dadounmisiioriu:  Sova: 0.00
Shareholding:  0.00 percent

AnUIAIEVAQNINISANY:

Education:

USK158SNAUMIUNUZQ @1RINISINU ANNUUUNUZAQ
weuuusmismans

MB.A. (Finance), National Institute of Development
Administration (NIDA)

Us:aunisninisnivau:
Experience:

usBnean:10yu
Listed Company
2555 - JaqUu

2012 - present

@gououmsdhyavnu
uuR.IngsUs:nuZdQ

Vice President - Investment,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

usBnluldean:idyu
Non-Listed Company

- U0 -
- None -
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3.uAANTYYI BUINSIYSUN (019 49 0)
Ms. Sukanya Yingcharoenthana (age 49)

gousumsdhuinalulag
alsauine

Vice President -
Information Technology

Aadounisfioru: - TUD -
Shareholding: - None- N

ANIdAIAVAQNIINISANWY:
Education:
JsnynynIn AnU:USKHISESTY A1RINISINU

UKNINYIAUSIANIKY
MB.AFinance and Banking Ramkhamhaeng University

Us:aunisnunasnivau:
Experience:

usBnvan:1Ityu
Listed Company

2561 - JaqUu
2018 - present

@geuoumsdhginalulag
Asauinf uue.IngsUs:Nudda
Vice President — Information
Technology, Thaire Life Assurance
PCL.

usBnIUldean:10yu
Non-Listed Company

UuR.I0aIduR Us:Nuny
LMG Insurance PCL.

2538 - 2560
1995 - 2017

4. UWAYEUN 9SSNIDNYISICL (0 41 T)
Ms. Chutima Atthawcthworawuth (age 41)

gousumsdhy
wewunssna 2

Vice President -
Business Development 2

dadounisiioru:  Seowa: 0.00
Shareholding:  0.00 percent

ANIdAIAVAQNIINISANWY:
Education:
JsnynynIn IAsUgMANSSSNY ACUKIASYIAAOS

UNAVNSNIUKIINYNAY
Master of Economics, Chulalongkorn University

Us:aunisnunasnivau:
Experience:

USBnean:1I0guU
Listed Company
2562 - JaqUu
2019 - present

@ouoyMsdgwicuussia 2
UuR.InusUs:Nuda

Vice President — Business
Development 2,

Thaire life Assurance PCL.

usBNnIUldean:10yu
Non-Listed Company

2552 - 2558
2009 - 2015

NSSUNIS

uuR.Inus Tad neadsud
TusnINoS Director,

Thaire Life Assurance Broker
Co. ltd.

18 sgvuds:aU 2562



ThaiRe life Assurance PCL

Us:aunisndnisniviu:
Experience:

USGnean:1I0yu
Listed Company

2562 - J90u @gououmsdhylicuunwAONTuA
2019 - present lla:cheoWIwunagns
: uu.IngsUs:NuFdQ
mEm Vice President — Product

Development and Strategic Planning,

5. UWAWE" SUadesty (49 D) Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Ms. Panida Vimootti-aran (age 49) 2556 - 2557 gIounssumsvanmisirngdhe
2013 - 2014 oWIwUNagnsiia:doya
uuR.IdavngUs:Nuny
Senior Vice President -
Corporate Strategy,
Muang Thai Insurance PCL.

goudymsdhodcuuneaaNTuzlAa:dgI WILUNAYNS
Vice president - Product Development and Strategic
Planning

dadounisiiou: - TUD -

Shareholding: - - None - USGNITAaN:IGuu

Non-Listed Company

AAFIAANINISANY: 2557 - 2561 @¥unssumsvansinegonala
Education: 2014 - 2018 dhuonwunagnsiia:doya
Usrynynln AnU:USKISESTY 3311I0NNISAaI0 UKIINYIAY uuR.Ingwnrdggds:nugda
INVASANAOS Senior Vice President -

Master of Business Administration (Marketing), Corporate Strategy,

Kasetsart University SCB Life Assurance PCL
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ulvurgia:NIwsouNIsUs:NoUssN9
(Policy and Overview of Business Operation)

RN}

USGn Tngsus:Nudda 97na (Urkgu) (“‘usen”)
Tavadvaulul 2543 logSuleussiivmssuds:nunucio
nauUs: AuFdanINSwyAUNA:nUAURIRYFOVAU
AvKUQ AlldidudituRsmMsTag USEN Tnusuus:Auiuco
NQ (UK3U) (“THRE”) |uJoTh|UuTLJmous.S’1?Jurytym
Js:nudana:ws:s1unyngads:nudunAng w.A. 2535
r‘in"whucﬂﬁdouDmsuunmsds:neus‘sﬁ'aUs:ﬁu?@o
la:gsfiaus:AusunANgooNINAU KAYIINUU
ssivlnisiGuiaegvaeilov aucaeuliudun 9
qalAu 2556 usenidvan:idouluaatanannswe
invds:inAlng Tagussn TnuSuds:Aunuae 9Na
(Unau) TauRuADYUAdUIAUSIYAUTNAINU
nolU 1loAs WA WLUAVIUNISIIUSSTRIUOUIAQ
auiduinodArydnrinonliveoumsiesryiauinog v
gudu

10 rnuNgTlunisanidussig

USGNTIUKUIEAL:IduuINNI G TRUSNS
SuUs:ungdenuuduIauIliovegwidud FldLvAe:
weuwevAns TRauIsniRusSNIsaNANUSBNUS:AUZIN
Tdnsuoves wsauThusNisSuds:Nudaae Taunis
1F1SoUWCUUNSSHY D WIWUNISAANA WCUUNWAONTUA
la:AKuUQIUININISTANSUISUUS:AU aa9QU
AUSnuIuoNWIISNUNAUTKUNAInU

A mSunwuviudiunissSuds:nunuce 1Uu
JgrgniIsSuviuTulaawaantuz 9 INgnATTK
AsOUAAUUINIU lIAa:SnuIdasinisidulaoyy
deitiov TaglduluurgdanisdunuIoINISITIIU
aWKANNISAISYNUNSYNUY Ia:Atiivwaaouinu
don1sTdiTunevnuatus:aundWIAYIAA AN
Wauurssheihaoanaovnunisiyaguidavaoy
ssnvds nudana:AdIudaINIsIoNEUSInA ANv
uocmssuThuq iBounldlunisorviwunisaaia
UouuwAQNUATAIKUI:AUAUY ©uN1IN1sITun
KHaINKHAIUASOUAAUNNNAUANAT
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Thaire Life Assurance PCL. (“the Company” or “THREL”)
was established in 2000 by getting transferred the
entire life reinsurance business and related assets
and liabilities from Thai Reinsurance PCL. (“THRE”)
to comply with the Llife Insurance Act and the
Non-Life Insurance Act B.E. 2535 which requires the
separation of life and non-life insurance business. The
Company has since maintained continuous growth. On
October 9, 2013, it was listed in the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, whereby THRE allocated a portion of
ordinary shares held in the Company for sales
to public investors to strengthen the Company’s
stability for future business expansion. This represents
another major milestone on a path towards
sustainable growth.

Business Goals

The aspiration of being more than just a conventional
reinsurance provider, the Company deems to commit
in developing the organization to provide customers
with a comprehensive range of insurance services
by collaborating in business development, marketing
planning, product development, formulation of
underwriting and claim guidelines.

The Company’s reinsurance plan will be focusing on
coverage expansion of each product range as well
as maintaining its consistent growth. The guideline
for this is fo effectively manage the incremental cost
from business expansion based on the principles of
Risk Based Capital and return on the use of capital
at an acceptable level of risk. Business development
will be aligned with changes in life insurance business
and consumer needs. Innovations will be explored for
further planning on marketing and product
development to fit with the diverse sales channels that
could reach all customer segments.




ThaiRe life Assurance PCL

uenNeING USGNIVILI9NISTKUSNISNIS
Suds:Nugdaae TRAIU:UNWAANTUATALQ A
IUdNIWNISSUUS:AUITUIGU wsSoUANWIIUDIUWY
wndnssugusinAa:AaNIO: aanaogdaoitovilio
wewunssius:nniiiasulvngnoudounsiiiiesy
aouwusTnnua aunsnidontddoldogviKunay
sounvIluUNIsUs: numom\m AUSENUS:AUZIQ
AwsnUiIAUOYEIUANMUUNISIVU 13U IIUUUS:AU
AuAsoVAUIFoluuUs:NUIdQIa:gUaIKQ IluuUs:NU
aanw 10udu FviudRwuuildsouzuiussia
TudutinuusenUs:AuddananiKnidudusias
nwsshefusuIAsFulrtuls:InAing 1a:3I5U
msaur]uTuUs:_lnﬂﬁ'eajTuUs:mﬂumsugﬁvmﬁwu
(AEC) U§Gn|§u:n\1||wumsas?pmwﬁnunjao\l
usuoniaiaantunisauiewuuiduinad 2558

AMSUIWUNIUAIUNISAUUAYUNISANTUNIU
us@nlaavnus: UU|nnTuTaUn\1muUs Aunyaola:
S:UUNISUSNISAIUBU 4 19U s:uulnydia:nisiuu
s:uuavnu 10udu 1Te72uIBUUS:ANSNWIA:
Us:anSwalunisniviu nisdalasvniswcouun
unansiBoliiJuovAnsin1od Innovation Tag
lasguynansiKas:nunia:wsousulionunis
|Ua0u||Ua\1ns:>o|sazjoussnws AUNY la:Sudonu
annmnom iAazuldiuounna NISASSHIUAAINS
AdUs:aumsninia:iudAalinde) msauTumsUquau
MSANU lA:ICUUNAUTRTATUNW 1do1druNY
Tunisagunisiaulagovssiinogwdviu

NIWsounIsUs:noussne

ussen Us: noussnvds Aufilgaoadiunis
Jds:nugdannds:inn Towuads AuNYSUAIUKTY
oR nnnuTolfJuluumseoth AUIda a:aIdunis
USHISNUAIsOvUS: nuaomﬂauuToﬂuwTUaunu
woaswwaoouunuThﬂsoumums Ae:fiadu
Guduuoneinnisus:Audsanan nIsavnuiIv
no|fluasnssununowuﬁmrymnmomsmluus‘snv
JOUUSEN
uShasivuavnulauns:e1uniIsavnuiu
nannSwgus: INNAWY n\]S 92 Aullazs:u:o1d Ny
asasuiina: asvaisnu Al N1SAYNUYOIUSEN
umsUguomuaomHuomuUs.nwnﬂmnssums
mfula:avIASUNIsUs:nougsiitds:NUNY 1509
n1savnuus:naugsneduovussends:nuada

The Company has expanded its reinsurance service
and provided recommendations on new products
and additional underwriting guidelines. In addition,
the Company has continuously studiedthe trend of
consumer behaviors and market conditions in order
to develop products that respond to customers’ real
needs as well as select appropriate media, including
products that serve sales through Bancassurance such
as credit life insurance, ordinary life and personal
accident insurance, and health insurance. For the past
previous year, the Companyhas cooperated with
several life insurance companies, the business partners
of leading banks in Thailand, in expanding these
types of business and launched investments in ASEAN
Economic Community (AEC) countries. The Company
has also devised a plan and implemented the
formation a corporate image since 2015.

For operation support plan, the Company has invested
in tfechnological systems, i.e. reinsurance and other
services such as accounting and finance system
and investment system, to help increased working
efficiency and effectiveness. Besides, the Company has
organized a people development program to enable
the organization to enter into innovative organization
by preparing the employees to be conscious of and
ready for a rapid change on insurance business
and be able to cope with future crisis. As such, the
Company has also recruited candidates with
experiences and innovations to join the Company
in improving the business process and developing
a quality team in order to attain the goal of sus-
tainable business growth.

Business Overview

Apart from the core business in providing all types
of life reinsurance, the Company sets aside part of
the written premiums as reserves and invests such
amount to generate returns fo cover its contingent
liabilities. Therefore, investment also plays a crucial
part in the Company’s core activity.

The Company diversifies its investment in a variety
of short-term and long-term securities, both
debt and equity instruments, and complies with
regulations under the OIC’s Notification Re:
Investment in Other Businesses of life Insurance
Companies.
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TnsvAswnIsfioAUIoINAUUSEN

usen Ulasvasunisfiorudalou Tudnistio
Kunuuladrsenuutsidalunauussn vldnoliina
n:nuaouwmucuads TudU (Conflict of Interest)
uoNINT NSEURDSIYNSS:KHIWAU USENIGURUG
muuTuuwmsuaauTomuga.nowuzjonwmu
wads:lyad na:unasnisrsoduaounisoyuanis
N1S19NISSIKOWNU

U290uusBniusSENSou 1 Ussn Tain TKI Life
Insurance Company limited nodvauibjouaiul
2559 Tuaisisrusyus:sulagus:a1guard JaqUu
Unuean:1JguIa:ISuNFIs:IAD 16,000 AWURU HSO
Js:uinu 70 auuin Iuanidussiediuds:nudda
nnuUs:inn TagusoniioAuseova: 32.5 ¥ounu
AISunds:1AD

doyanisiioRulayyunNAdUIOIUSBNSO

USUn TKI Life Insurance Company Limited 15o
(“TKI”) U ajﬁonuou uaniKklioNUsBn Ao USGN
uofeus:Nuny 91Ma (UK1u) foruogysSova: 32.5
la: TK Group Sole Company Limited Soua: 35.0
Tounauwnonuouao\lusunsaumunTonmomuu
TUDAdWALTUS 10 uunnaRIRYoTuNAUANUUEEN
naogwia

A WAVWUSHUNAUSsTivdovdiioRulnny
usuen dnisSuusnisdlunSwyinsynnala:
usSniIsaluinAlulagalsaulinA«In 21nussn Thus
1Fos3daIFa 911a Nul 1o1Jun1susKHiIsIanIsISoV
dunulAinads:Ansnwgvgaiunauusen

22  sgvulUs:U 2562

Shareholding Structure of the Group of Companies

The Company has a clear shareholding structure
and there is no cross-shareholding or pyramid
structure in its group of companies, thus creating
no conflict of interest. Entering into related party
transactions, the Company has complied with the
policy on interest and conflict of interest and the
measures or procedures for approval of related
party transactions.

THREL has one associated company, TKI Llife
Insurance Company Limited, established in Lao PDR
in late 2016 to perform all types of life insurance
business. Its total paid-up registered capitals are
LAK 16,000 million or approximately THB 70 million
of which the Company holds 32.5 per cent shares.

Shareholding in the Associated Company by
Other Parties

Apart from the Company, other shareholders\
of TKI Llife Insurance Company Limited include
Navakij Insurance Public Company Llimited.,
holding 32.5 percent and TK Group Sole Company
Limited., holding 35.0 percent. None of those other
shareholders of the associated company are
THREL’s related parties.

Relationship with Major Shareholder’s Business Group

The Company uses human resource services and
IT system services provided by Thaire Services
Co., Ltd. to ensure the most cost efficient between
Group of Companies.




ThaiRe life Assurance PCL

anuru:nisUs:noussna
Business Structure

usSBnY Us:noaussialrusnisSuds:nunuceo
cﬁuds:ﬁu?ﬁo|lﬂoaﬂuaqussﬁws:ﬁuiﬁoLnno'w
20 U doynisSunisniuloundUIAUNNYYON
usunUs:NuI>a Nns:IwAUIAYIAIUNUUS:AU
ASuds:nuddaldawdanynyrus:Auzdanugion
Us:iudda waannu/inussny Suds:Aufiudon
usgnuUs:Audda Tann Us: nuzromswmury
Us:fiugdanau Us:NuddallloAunsovauIge
Us:iuaUd@inaaouynna I1a:&ryny 1 TuIaunAy
aUaIKqIa:Us:AUAINIW FuSENUs:AUTIA:
AaldonusBnsuds:NunyaolauNIsSTNSTUININ

« FOIAUV ANUNWNISNU IIA:SUGUADULNIFOTO
Tu (Credit Rating)

. NoulanisSuus:Auzdane Fudovaiuisn
QOUAUDVAI UG OINISATUTIUNYIOIUSEN
Js:uddala 13u nas@vistuisSuds:nuny
sUnvudnynyds:nungco dasiiiyds:nunuceo
soufivAUIKGR (Commission) 10UGU

« JRdudiuudnmisag Aatduayutunisdituiu
1¥u TRAUSNUIAIUWARANTUZA AIUNISTANSHUN
SuUs:nuny 10udu

« A2WTvwolena:AwA:aonsaISIATdSULIN

n1sthusnis

n1sUs:NUBIRN
Life Insurance

iGeUsAUNuEIn
Premiun

-y

/

wiods:nAuny
(Insured)

WSuus:nune rso
usBNUs:NUBIM (Insurer)

The Company’s core business is to provide reinsurance
service to support life insurance business for more
than 20 years in aspect of risks transferred from life
insurance companies who share its associated risk
by reinsuring the sum assured that stated in the life
insurance contract. The products that could be
reinsured varied from ordinary life insurance, group
insurance, credit and mortgage term insurance,
personal accident, health and accidental riders etc.
However; the life insurance company will select a
reinsurance service provider from the following
condition;

* Reputation, financial strength and credit rating

* Reinsurance terms and conditions advantages that
meet the life insurance companies’ requirements
such as underwriting guideline, reinsurance
agreement, reinsurance pricing and commission
etc.

Variety of services that support the business
operations such as product development and
underwriting consultation

Deliver high standard and timely services that
respond to their satisfaction

N1sUs:NUBINGD
Life Reinsurance

I0eUs:=nunemo
Reinsurance Premiun

=y

wsuUs:Aunsio ndo
usenUs:Nunuso (Reinsurer)
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Anunu:wAaaNTU7a:N1sTAUSNISIoNUSENY
awasninuvoonididu 2 Us:innaluulguigniy
n1saala avd

1. MsUs:AUFacoUSINNAVIGH

1JunisSuds:nunucaoanussnds:nudda Tay
AUSGNUs:AUFSadan1snnoyudoudoion avia
Uauuiwaanuyi ninisaala lla:uliauodny
@WAONTUYA USBNUS:NUIIA:NSIIYADIVIRYY
daunuds:AuidnuusenUds:Anungaonviuna:
awUs:inAraleg st TauRusenUs:Aufuae
loa:s9fudeovigldiaousouiunisasivia:
wouuwaanturnuusends:nuada nseoniSunon
Passive Reinsurance

usSGnweuuissianiIsSuds:nugdacous:inn
Avidu la:Snuidasinisiescyiauia aounis
TRusNisiasuduci g Tain usmsiuzinwaantuA
Us:ﬁu?ﬁmual:s':)u:)wuuan'l\lmmsrmms
Suds:NuFdaliuiay usSN1slifNsruSuUs:NUNY
Ia:uSNMIsAvIASUADIWSNWINATAC N AiNuddo
nussNaUs:NUIdN

2. msus:nugdaceous:innsaunuwcuun

aarasuUs:nunvaeiduaaraidanustn
Suus:nungaoanads:inAaiuisnidiuiiaaaaaq
USBNY FuIunuINtuMscItiussiv dounsriesiv
IIUUIAINKITONANINISOA1QTKU (Active Reinsurer)
TavmisigUiadUSOUTUNNY APNSSUSOUNUUSEN
Us:fugda avidmsbauuniia:iniauowaantuniihge
AldundIudovnisaoavaala FanIwuNIsSaala
lIlatKkIFouNINISaaIa NMIKUSHENY AuisnniiKkuQ
sUluunsusssyia:dasToUs:AufgnIKuI:aL
Funisus:nuIdacous:innssunulcuult usseny
'o:Td§ua':>u||u'\1mss“ULJs:ﬁuﬁUcf0|U udQaou
(Quota Share) Tudasi@dungunsisasiaou
nisSuus:nunuaauds:innaviay

usSUNY DTASYNISWAUUIWAQNTUZ SOUNAU
usBnuUs:AuF3aoyuaolliov TagyviduAaAU
UUUNWAQNTUA 1a:d9INIIN1SIIYNAOUAUDY
aonisiagundavdovwnanssugioils:Auny
1Juran ofIdu TasunisWcuunwaanuridrnsu
daveony Tasvnisweuunwaantuidiuganiwiay
nisdawaanturiibqalaulanawAulun a:
nauFovorydionds:Auny

Characteristics of Reinsurance Business are divided
info 2 types following Marketing Policy.

1. Conventional Reinsurance

Conventional reinsurance is the reinsurance service
that all arrangements are made by life insurance
companies, ranging from product development,
marketing and sales of products. Risks associated
with the sum insured are transferred to several
reinsurers at home and overseas.

The Company has developed the conventional
reinsurance business and maintained its growth by
rendering services in product advice, joint set up
additional underwriting guidelines, and the provi-
sion of underwriting services as well as any other
technical knowledge in relation with life insurance
business.

2. Non-Conventional Reinsurance

Since domestic reinsurance market is an open
market where international reinsurers can enter at
any time; the Company therefore has proactively
served as an active reinsurer by participating in all
activities with life insurance companies, ranging from
new product development and launches to respond
the market demand, set up marketing activities as
well as explore new distribution channels. By doing
so, the Company can design appropriate policies
and determine suitable pricing as well as achieving
a higher underwriting quota sharing ratios than
conventional reinsurance.

The Company has continuously implemented several
joint development projects by focusing on offering and
developing products through various channels that
respond to the end-user needs such as developing
products for senior age, health products that suits for
each different customer age.
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TAsvaswsold
Revenue Structure

2562 2561 2560
s1gla 2019 2018 2017
Revenue N N N N = N
aluun Sova: aluun SoyaA: aiuvin SoYA:

iBoUs:Nuniudosuntiolusuld Net eamed
premium income

« msUs:ugdacous:nnAviau 1,261.5 52.8 1,306.8 53.9 1,149.4 52.6
Conventional Reinsurance

« MsUs:NuIdacoUs:nnsouwasun 1,020.0 427 1,040.7 429 947.1 43.3
Non-Conventional Reinsurance

s1wldaNNsaINUANS 100.1 4.2 74.1 3.0 82.4 3.8
Net investment income

swidmdwia:mdikie 17 0.1 29 0.1 35 0.1
Commission and brokerage income

s1elddu 56 0.2 1.8 0.1 39 0.2
Other income

souswld 2,388.9 100.0 2,426.3 100.0 2,186.3 100.0
Total Revenue
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(Market Situation and Competition)
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Js:nunoaadiuuds:nudda U 2562

ssheUs:NUF3a ul 2562 fo3dudnUntv
nmmano'\ummsrﬂumsm|uussnfoua nsIGula
JOUUSENA VY TuqomhnssuToumwsau
nUrduniguandonisiauiadovifsugnalngn
JUNUAITYVS OYA: 2.4 1a:AIUAUWOUYDON
@WAOBUINUNISAYNU SNNVNISY:ADAIIOINIS
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fio nisiVAguNlavnnINouZicIy « Jovddnuiu
AnU:NSsUNIsSANUIla:AVIASUNIsUS:NoUssAv
Js:nung (adn.) o1n UswwumwumuzjuTums
IAUOININSUSSSUINIUITouns:GuuIasYIU
wnANSSUNINISOANIQIDNS:UUUSNUIIO (Market
Conduct) Ns UNISAISYINUNOINUAIUS:AQU
AdWIAYY (RBC2) 10udu naegwisfia Jedon
dvlasunisi@uiazoviussieidiFunu 97n
aduayuzouninsgidovulouiruns:duls:a1au
TK1oSyuwsousSulonunisidddanaoviwu
NISINUKAVINGYNU awnudidunisidngavay
dgvony (Aging Society) Jovlny soufivulasnNIs
mumun'rhﬁnsaohuoumumuToaauunnamn
ANTuUs:AuFdana:us:Auganiw uonvniiu
niAssAvIovusBnavg AUsullaguuluuny
nis1giiaeandovnuanIuNIsnidaquundUA
ﬁumsuicuuwﬁmﬁm}_/iua:lquomaTua'o\lm\l
N1sAUTKY 9 wsSounvulinAaluTagigiuidcuun
usnisiia:USudsuns:uounisnviuidaoandoviu
Digital economy 1DelKAsoUAAUNNNAUITIKLNY
ﬁwTH‘Us:mmmswamu|UUUs:ﬁu§5m§usaq
Jovssiivogn 610,474 AlUUIn ITSAsIACAIN
Soya: 2.7 |[";0|ﬁauﬁudﬁcu'1um Tagnviudu
nsusssUFdantwatvAuld ru Ful 2562 091udU
Us:neu 26.6 Aunsussst Fuidunsusssuus: nuaoo
snolulaw :dd $IuduU 3.2 Awunsusssy A:lo
wmsmwoosmusds.nuansooculaonmmupasou
JovUds:nfA (GDP) :wudUs:aunanavegnsova:
3.62 IyAWISNOEUIWAIWIAIT AUTNYTSasIADU
N1SY19109US:AUFIITUV 3.62% Jovsruldinitiu
gubToniatunisiduladnuinidolfguiiuds:ina
AlkAoWAIATYAUNTIsUs:AUF3a ADdAs1AoULIN
fiv 10% vovuswid
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Life Insurance and Reinsurance
Market Situation in 2019

2019 was a tremendously challenging year for life
insurance business in terms of ability to carry on and
grow their business. The overall industry faced some
threats from external factors such as Thai GDP growth
of just 2.4 percent and also the volatility of yield on
investment as well as the slower banking lending
growth, as such had an effect on premium growth rate.
Nevertheless the amendment to regulations announced
by the Office of Insurance Commission (OIC) such as
the increase of intensity of sales of insurance policy
to improve market conduct in insurance system, the
framework for risk based capital adequacy (RBC2),
and so on has created the difficulties for the life
insurance industry to grow as prior. Despite that, there
still were factors contributing to the premium growth
such as the government sector’s stimulus measures
for Thai people to prepare for their post-retirement
living and financial planning as Thailand is entering
an aging society, together with measures for personal
income tax deduction for life and health insurance
premiums. At the same time, companies in the business
sector had fine-tuned their selling policy to fit with the
prevailing circumstances, while also implementing
product development, increasing opportunities through
new sales channels, and employing technology for
service development and business process improvement
to align with the digital economy and reach all target
groups. As a result, total life insurance premiums
written is forecasted approximately THB 610,474
million which was 2.7 percent lower than last year, and
the number of in-force life insurance policies at the end
of 2019 was about 26.6 million policies, of which 3.2
million were new policies taken out during the year.
The ratio of life insurance spending to GDP expected
slightly lower at 3.62 percent, suggesting that Thai
people spent only 3.62 percent of their revenues on
insurance premium and that there is still room for life
insurance growth in Thailand when compared with 10
percent spent by people in other countries that are
more educated in life insurance.
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GoUs:Aunusy Ia:sas1msiaula U 2558 - 2562
Gross Written Premiums during 2015 - 2019

KU2Y: AlUUIN

Unit: Milion
627,606 610,474
5.8% 5.7%
600,303
5.4%
568,002
536,839
2558 2559 2560 2561 2562
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
GuUs:Auiosy %EuTa
GWP %Growth
JoyaanassioUs:nugda U 2558 - 2562
Life insurance business statistics data for 2015 - 2019
iDyioUs:Nunvdo 1JyUs:fufusucdowaaituiuoasoy
Reinsurance Ceded Premium in Thailand Gross Written Premium per GDP in Thailand
KUog: &Auuin KuoY: Sova:
Unit: THB Milion Unit: Percent
14,790 3.91
3.89 388
12,933
11,063
8910 9,479
2558 2559 2560 2561 2562 2558 2559 2560 2561 2562
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
nsussstius:iugsantuatuiu ru Fud nsusssuUs:NuIdas19irl
Number of policeies in force in Thailand Number of new policies in Thailand
KUDY: AUNSUSSSK KUDY: AuNsuUsss
Unit: Milion Policies Unit: Milion Policies
26.6
26.2 26.3
249 24.6
2558 2559 2560 2561 2562 2558 2559 2560 2561 2562
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
SasrdAduFounINISIYUsAUFIO wamls (31anu) NNIsaItuvIU
Direct Premiums, Distribution Channels Profit (Loss) from Operation in Thailand
3.6% 3.9% 3.4% 4.3% 4.9% huoy: Sova:
9.0% 9.0% Unit: Percent
44.9%
77% 8.2%
5.8%
49.2%
2558 2559 2560 2561 2562 2558 2559 2560 2561 2562
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
W iU MW siAs w Insfiwr 3uq
Agent Bancassurance Tele Marketing Others

AU: AdNVIUANUENSSUNMSAUIA:AVIASUNISUS:NoUSSTUS:AURY./ AUAUUS:AUZIAINY A TNIUTUUINISIASUIARIA:AVAUIKIE
Source: Office of Insurance Commission/The Thai Life Assurance Association and Office of the National Economic and Social Development Council
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alussneus:fiufivae Tud ds1uduIly
1onUs: nunvooﬁnsoun 14,790 ajuuin Aaidu
okoswlouTms ova: 14.3 Fuiaulaasunivfiu
IDuUs:unyzovssnehidas1faau 1advav
ﬁoa’ouzlo\lms|§’1LJs:ﬁuﬁucfoTnﬁ|ﬁwﬁuUFi
&uun Tagilduilylonds:nunuaoulrINguan
funauUs:Aunuusitgalinyla: azjmuuﬂ unan
funidadounisionUs:Aufocole: ogTus:qu
nTUﬁ\anoun IoIfguiuUs:aunisnitucy
Us:inf ncidoveinnisionUs:funudeidunayns
r‘iﬁwﬁms‘hnéuu%nds Augsafunisusuisvanis
A IALVIUGIUNTSSuUS: AUy Gudu |uossn'\>
Us: nuzomuuuaTuumuTcnwuzJu ssfiaus:nunuco
nuwnv uuu:)TuUmumeuaumuTUooU Tagludgov
30 duncid 2560-2562 iDyioUs:Aufivdolisns
nsidulaiiuaulagioascolaivdoua: 15.6

Net premiums for reinsurance in 2019 was at THB
14,790 million at a growth rate of 14.3 percent,
which was in adversely with the insurance premium
growth although the ratio of reinsurance remained
close to the preceding year. Most of the reinsurance
premiums stemmed from the ordinary life and
health insurance product. Despite the marginal
reinsurance ratio compared with the overseas
experience, reinsurance is a key strategy adopted
by life insurers in their insurance risk management
and, as such, reinsurance premium growth usually
mirrors growth in the direct insurance sector. Over
the past 3 years (2017-2019), reinsurance premiums
have grown at a compound annual growth rate
of 15.6 percent.

mswiduus:unudatuUs:nAngs:no Wl 2560-2562
Reinsurance premiums during 2017 - 2019

2562
2019
$19N1S

2561 2560
2018 2017

bz Awuun | dulaeva:) | Auun | 1IGuiaSeua:) | Auuin | Idula(Soua:)
Amount | Growth(percent)| Amount | Growth(percent) | Amount | Growth(percent)

iJuus:nuiusu

Gross written premiums Sl
DuloUs:nungciossin 14790
Reinsurance ceded premiums ’

1JgUs:NUNYaoSUZONUSEN 2,340

THREL's gross written premium

-2.7 627,606 45 600,303
14.3 12,933 16.9 11,063 16.4
-25 2,400 11.3 2,157 9.2

An: Adnviuanu:nssunismnua:AvIAsUNISUS:noussAvUs:AUNY/ AuAuUs:AuFSalng
Source: Office of Insurance Commission/The Thai life Assurance Association
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AmSuusEningsUs:Audsaludd DIy
Js:iungaodiuou 2,340 ajuuin Aaidudasn
idulansoua: -2.5 2 nUnourun Fvaoandoviliu
nﬂmu|00:>nunumS|c1uToao\1|uvssn'oUs fuda
nncmou Tagnuwidu 1GoUs:AufucoInUs:Au
AIMWNvINUs:INNS1I9AIYsIUdU 292 Auuin
na:Us:innUs:AUNAUSIUOU 761 A1uuin RASAs
soga: 12.5 IIa: 32.5 aWUAdYWAANTUZUS:INN
Us:iuaudelliohogonfvionsdoundova: 24. 2
1Iuiduds:Aufiuciosusiuou 559 A1Uuin uen Nt
cupmnmmds.nunvswmumnsoua. 23.3 10u
IWgUs:iufuaosudiudou 545 aauuin la:
waonnuiUs:inngUaikaaouunna 10uluds:Auny
doSuTIuduU 183 A1uuin Ndas ddURSova: 7.8
MnamwiAsygivdeUuAlanardtuifoudu Mikea
MsaNtUIUMUANYIU:WAANTUANNUSINNTS0SY
naNoY |Ua|ﬁUUﬁUUdQUHl31 gNIBUWAONTUAUS:NU
naungdasNsidulanseya: 2.4

2 nIudTdugovaalafaousuulouuzoy
mnsvlso\lmsaonaoumwmuTounnasssum
NAITYUS:AUAINIW N1A: msmuuﬂﬁhﬂamw
gouUs:anzu TagusENgvAITUTUITNINISAANQ
AuIdulcuUN@AOAUZIA:USNISa N Aagloma
Neshv (Value Added Service) n1a:souIJuAAN
AuusBnUs:NUFIanNnUsen 1adountvidudiusdas
AAITUssNATUG29AU  FuFounuNIsTInUIgIoN
usGn4 9:0acdelagasviunauaNAIZOYUSENAD
USBnUs:NUFIaRUs: noussanuUs INFAY 22 USGN
Taga:AdIMININMsSSOulaUUNIAUNIAUD WAONTUZ
@udecvq 13U TnsnAu Sny oeoulad a:rinisyy
@wlnsAwn Aoinu A:aNTUNISINU- wAQNTUZIN
agTunuoluduzeovaania drogwIdu waaNtuAaKSU
@dvony (Insurance product for Senior) WAONTUA
Jds:nungagudirkqna:us:nuganiw (Accident &
Health insurance) TagidulthiausinsunisiGusuiuu
N1s3IAs1:AMIsIIanuUIaNIASINIS NSAQWANNTUA
TRdoapaovNUNAUIdIKLIY MsUNIAUONAUNQADY
soufivqQala:fiKuaIUAOUNISTIHUNYWAQNTUY
IGotRTdIdHUNoRKUQ uanendiunda: Anyryn
AldsousuUs:AuFdaaenuaAl usBne:souqIa
usmiswanisSuds:nuddalddmisia:usiisianisia
ogwUUs:ANSNIW LYuIiun1sAdUAUSAsSIADU
ANAUTHUNAINU (Loss Ratio) TRagTuNtuinikuT:al
dognisatuayuliadIugaluinala 1IUdNINIS
UstunSuds:nuna:dNsnunaulHunuUaANAN

Thaire Life Assurance Company’s
competition in 2019

In 2019, THREL's reinsurance gross written premiums
(GWP) totaled THB 2,340 million which declined by
2.5 percent compared to last year, which was in
line with the decline of the industry’s life insurance.
The Company’s GWP were mainly in line with the
market trend and contributed by the health insurance
product either in individual insurance generate
gross written premium of THB 292 million and
group insurance generate gross written premium of
THB 761 million, soaring by 12.5 percent and 32.5
percent. Followed by the commercial and housing
credit insurance shared 24.2 percent with GWP of
THB 559 million and ordinary life insurance at 23.3
percent of portfolio with gross written premium of
THB 545 million. Lastly, personal accident insurance
generated gross written premium of THB 183 million
shared 7.8 percent. As such, with the current
economy circumstances as mentioned earlier; none
of those products grew compared to the previous
year except group insurance that grew by 2.4
percent.

Spurred by positive market response to the
government’s policy on tax allowance for health
insurance premiums and the public’s greater
health consciousness, the Company still focused its
marketing policy on development of products and
value-added services and creation of business
partnership with all insurers to conduct business
together. As its distribution channel, the Company
transacted business directly with all 22 domestic life
insurance companies in Thailand so as to develop
and launch products through all types of media such
as television, radio, on-line media, telemarketing,
agents, and financial institutions. Successful products
include Insurance Products for Seniors and Accident
& Health Insurance plans aimed at specific target
markets. The Company’s reinsurance contracts
signed with insurance companies allow for an active
role to be taken to jointly manage underwriting
and monitor claims to strive for good underwriting
results. The Company also supports the technical
considerations that accompany the acceptance and
payment of claims.
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Compliance with all the regulatory requirements
and high standards of corporate governance
have built up a level of trust with customers that
strengthens its ability to be a leading player in the
life insurance market. The Company’s CAR at the
pre audit CAR at the end of 2019 was approximate
409.5 percent, considerable, exceeding 300 percent.
The credit risk that life insurers carry in their CAR
calculations is at the lowest possible level when
reinsuring to THREL, equivalent to a AAA rating
for a foreign reinsurer and in 2019, the Company
obtained a financial strength rating of A- (Excellent)
Stable, from AM Best.
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Life Insurance Business Trend in 2020

Life insurance business will expect no growth in
2020 based on the following factors

1. The volatility of yield on investment which currently
stands at 1.4 - 1.5 percent which consumer
tremendously seeks for high yield like the
past while life insurance companies are facing
difficulties to response to the consumer needs
on high yield on investment.

2. The rapid technological development, which
leads to digitalization of sales and marketing
systems to suit the lifestyle in the digital era
and provide quick and easy services through alll
distribution channels for life insurance.

Nonetheless, in 2020, the business will also
experience numerous challenges such as first-year
of fully aging society, a stricter control from
the rules and procedures for domestic sales of
life insurance products, tough competition in
health insurance which is exposed to risk of loss,
changes in the international financial reporting
standards through the upcoming enforcement of
TFRS9 and IFRS17, the entrance into the digital
world which will induce a greater number of
competitors to switch away from other businesses
to the insurance industry, and a timely adjustment
to modern technology.

In view of both the encouraging factors and
the challenges discussed above, the Company
accordingly places great importance on personnel
skill and knowledge enhancement, seeking of new
professionals or partners to work with the Company,
digitalization of service and operation systems,
and exploration of new investment opportunities in
a bid to increase the Company’s competitiveness
and ensure consistent and sustainable growth.
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Risk management and Capital management

Capital policy

The company has policy to maintain Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) not lower than 300% to keep
competitive advantage from reinsurance credit risk charge. OIC" RBC framework has defined the
lowest 1.6% reinsurance credit risk charge for domestic reinsurer who maintains Capital Adequacy
Ratio: CAR not lower than 300%, which equal to AAA-rated off-shore reinsurer.

As of 31 December 2018, the company has 1,237.5 M. of Total Capital Available: TCA and 316.3 MB of
Total Capital Required: TCR which resulting in 391% of Capital Adequacy Ratio: CAR. As of 31 December
2019, the OIC has implemented Risk Based Capital phase 2 (RBC2), however the company still maintain
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) under Risk Based Capital phase 2 (RBC2) is 409%, unaudited.

Risk Based Capital phase 2: RBC2

The Office of Insurance Commission (OIC) has implemented Risk Based Capital (RBC) regulations to ensure
that the insurance company has sufficient capital to cover risks arising from the business which varied by
character, size and complexity of the company.

At the end of 2019, The Office of Insurance Commission (OIC) developed the capital regulation to Risk
Based Capital phase 2 (RBC2) In order to better reflect risks of insurance company which vary between
companies. The adequacy of capital measured by the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of Risk Based Capital
2 (RBC2), calculated as below;

Total Capital Available : TCA
Capital Adequacy Ratio : CAR =

Total Capital Required : TCR

« Total Capital Available (TCA) represents the fair value adjusted of shareholders’ equity
corresponding to the OIC’s requirements.

« Total Capital Required (TCR) represents the amount of capital required in order to cover risks
arising from business activities, consisting of 6 key risks;

1. Insurance risk 2. Market risk
3. Credit risk 4. Concentration risk
5. Surrender risk 6. Operational risk
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s:Gy MADIEDY

(Soua:)

1 2 300 AAA Aaa AAA A++ 1.6
2 > 200 AA+ Aal AA+ A+ 2.8
and AA Aa2 AA
< 300 AA- Aa3 AA-
3 2 150 A+ Al A+ A 4
and A A2 A A-
< 200 A- A3 A-
4 < 150 BBB+ Baal BBB+ B++ 8
BBB Baa2 BBB B+
BBB- Baa3 BBB-
5 BB+ Bal BB+ B 15
BB Ba2 BB B-
BB- Ba3 BB-
6 B+ B1 B+ C++ 25
B B2 B C+
B- B3 B-
7 ccc+ Caal ccc+ e 485
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The OIC required the insurance company to maintain CAR not lower than and 140%. The Company has
policy fo maintain CAR above 300% to keep competitive advantage from reinsurance credit risk charge as
RBC model required the insurance company to hold the capital fo cover reinsurance credit risk. Considering to
this requirement, if the insurance company make outward reinsurance to domestic reinsurer who has CAR not
lower than 300%, the insurance company will be allowed to hold the capital at the lowest level of risk charge
1.6%, equal to making outward reinsurance with the AAA-rated off-shore reinsurer.

Reinsurance Credit Risk Charge

Risk Grade D ore (Credit Rating) Risk Charge %
0k AR AM. Best
1 > 300 AAA Aaa AAA At+ 16
2 > 200 AA+ Aal AA+ A+ 28
and AA Aa2 AA
< 300 AA- Aa3 AA-
3 2 150 A+ Al A+ A 4
and A A2 A A-
< 200 A- A3 A-
4 < 150 BBB+ Baal BBB+ B++ 8
BBB Baa2 BBB B+
BBB- Baa3 BBB-
5 BB+ Bal BB+ B 15
BB Ba2 BB B-
BB- Ba3 BB-
6 B+ B1 B+ C++ 25
B B2 B C+
B- B3 B-
7 CCC+ or Below Caal or Below CCC+ or Below C or Below 485

Source : Office of Insurance Commission
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Risk Management

In conducting business, the company has to face changes of both internal and external factors that may
affect its business. Hence, the Company develops risk management framework to help accomplish its vision,
mission, long-term and short-term goals as well as maintain its financial stability, reputation, image, competitive
advantage and sustainability. This framework is developed from Insurance Core Principles (ICP) of the
International Association of Insurance Supervisors (IAIS) and corresponds to risk management standards of OIC’s.

The Company determines Risk Appetite and applies in the formulation of strategy and operational policy as
well as the establishment of enterprise risk management guidelines. The company risk appetites are;

1. The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) must not lower than 300%
2. The chance of loss must lower than or equal 1 in 20 years

In the process of risk management, key risks that may affect capital fund, financial stability and reputation of
the Company are identified, assessed and analyzed their interrelation. In addition, the Company also sets key
risk indicators, appropriate thresholds and risk measures to manage these risks to be within acceptance level;
and continuously monitor the effectiveness of these measures. The Company also focus on learning from actual
loss experience and then revises both risk measures and key risk indicators to cope with changing environment.
Moreover, the company regularly monitors key risks and reports the results of risk management to both
Enterprise Risk Management Committee and Board of Directors every quarter.

Report

Risk Management Process

Response Assessment

Top risk
The company has identified risks that may affect the strategic plan and daily operations and has assessed
effect of risks to prioritize the top risks for 2019 as follows;

1. Credit rating risk

In life insurance business, credit rating is one of the key criteria for reinsurance conditions. The downgrading in
credit rating might affect to the competitive ability. The Company had rated at A- by AM Best rating agency
for many years. In order to maintain this rating, the Company had continued developing business plan and
monitoring to align with the credit rating agency criteria such as Balance sheet strength, operating performance
and risk management.
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2. Capital management risk

Since the level of capital is life insurance resource and also is one of the risk charge criteria in Risk-base
capital (RBC) requirement for reinsurance risk. The Company have to maintain CAR ratio af risk appetite level
or 300% which is the lowest reinsurance risk charge for our customers at 1.6%. The Company had monitored
and performed the internal stress test to ensure the adequacy of capital requirement.

3. Insurance portfolio management risk

the risk that the Company might have underwriting profit lower than target which the result of product portfolio
mix is not align with the plan. Include, new products performance have higher combined ratio than target and
the insurance products portfolio mix is deviated from target by higher mix in high combined ratio. The Company
had managed the risk by controlling the product design and pricing process and monitoring the impact of
new treaty to ensure the portfolio performance at company level would be aligned with both short-term and
long-term plan.

4. Insurance risk

the risk from inefficient underwriting process may affect the Company performance or business reputation.
4.1 Product design and pricing risk
The risk that actual experience may deviate from pricing assumptions as a result of insufficient statistical
data or incorrect marketing analysis, etc. Consequently, the insurance premium does not reflect the risk,
resulting the underwriting profit lower than expected or loss. The Company has Product development
committee to monitor the quality of the pricing and also performed the feasibility study.
4.2 Underwriting risk

The risk that the underwriting process is not promptly response to customer needs. The Company had
set the service level agreement, SLA for each process and monitored to ensure the timeliness and also
continued improving the underwriting tools/system to facilitate the process with quality result.

4.3 Reinsurance risk

The risk that the reinsurance policy of the Company by obtaining the Excess of loss protection treaty
may not enough to cover catastrophic damage or the group claim from the Concentration of the insured,
for example, multiple group life insured in single office building. The Company had managed the risk
performing the stress test and setting the threshold for underwriting guideline and XOL terms and conditions.

5. Human capital risk

The risk that the Company may lose the key position without successor. The Company had implemented
succession plan program to develop knowledge, skill and experience for successors and also monitored the
employee satisfaction survey to ensure working culture and company value for the employee.

Annual Report 2019 39



(Ungu)

AUFIQ NNa

nusus:

ustn

InsvasvovAns
Organization Chart

ACU:NSSUNISUSEN

ANUINSSUNISASSHN

ANNSSUNTS ANJNSSUNIS

Ia:nInuanasuIinu ARENSSUNISANU USHISADWIADY asovdeu

Nominating & Remuneration Investment Committee

Committee

ERM Committee Audit Committee

dhoasovdeu  dhequanisupia

=0 ‘ molu aWNHHUIY
e.. JCUGDJ@.—IE _=_m‘:o_>cm= mosv:o:nm

President

ggregerusemsinny | dddegsusumising gswodgmsdhe

Senior Vice President Senior Vice President Vice President

. I

dhodicuun dhodicuun dhodouun droownwu  dhe
ssnv 1 ssfv 2 waanNtun nagns  W91StulSU
Business Business Product Strategic Us:uny

Development 1 Development 2 Development Planning Underwriting

dhy
aluauu
Joya
Data Support

ggdugorudssnisinnj gewdsmsdhy gsudemsdhy

Senior Vice President Vice President Vice President

: l l : . .

dholryd  dhonouau  dhousms  dhousms  dhoavnu  dhousms  dhoinalulad dho o dho
na:N1siiu mgluna: dlnviu AUIAYY Invesfment na:weuun asauinft pruaAaas USnuNY
Accounting guUs:uaru  Administration  Enterprise Risk nuuuyyg Information Us:fiufiy nsiwng
& Finance Operation Control Management IE.:Q: mu_uzu_ Technology Actuarial Medical
& Budgeting Management & consultant
Development

u 5uf 31 SusiAU 2562
As of December 31, 2019

U 2562

40 s gvuds



ThaiRe life Assurance PCL

TAsvaSIINISNOAKUINIA:NISIANTS

(Structure of Shareholders and Management)

ahoAu
swogfioRusuinny

s1wFonqugiioRUAYAQ 10 S19IISN U SU
Uaauan:10uunSIHAYAQ tu SUR 3 AUoU 2562

Shareholders
Maijor Shareholders List

Ten major shareholders as at the latest registration
book closing date of September 3, 2019 are as follows:

s1wFodiioRu SUDURURTIO daddu (Sova:)
Shareholders’Name No. of Shares Percentage

1. UsBn Thesuds:Nunude 100 (UKFU)
Thai Reinsurance Public Company Limited

2. novNUITaUIHAINAUS:8:1D
Bualuang Long-Term Equity Fund

3. navnuida awesdu dlauansa Insn
Aberdeen Standard Growth Fund

4. navnuida ©IUSSGU AllaUANSQ KUS:Y:U1D
Aberdeen Standard long Term Equity Fund

5. BNP Paribas Securities Services, London Branch
BNP PARIBAS SECURITIES SERVICES, LONDON BRANCH

6. neownuida o1uasau alauansa Auea AW
Aberdeen Standard Small Cap Fund

7. N.CB.TRUST LIMITED-NORGES BANK 11
N.C.B.TRUST LIMITED-NORGES BANK 11

8. nounuila UdKAdNRUS:U:81D 75/25
Bualuang Long-Term Mutual Funds (LTF) 75/25

9. USGN nsvinwus:Nuny 91Ma (UK3U)
Bangkok Insurance Public Company Limited

10. USGN Ihuiduddens sina
Thai NVDR Company Limited

SoV
Total

11. ﬁJﬂOHUOU
Other shareholders

soufvAU
Grand Total

TusnoFonaug oK udvNa 123 19d Ul
usen Tnwidusdens vra Fudugoonasiais
1ISusdoisnsolunaavansiuwaus:Tugdninaan
KANNSWY88VINY (NVDR) fioKuzouustn tu 5u
Jaauan:i0uunsvarqaiiosun 3 AUYIU 2562
F1UdU 9,743,557 Au Aaidudadoudoua: 1.6 IuRUADU
UTOSJUﬂC]’O TuTaansoemﬂu\ﬂumsUs Jugihioru
Nt GAYNUAIUISNASIVEOUTIUDURUAIAOYONY
USBNATGETAUUSEN TNuISUSG0Ns 910 IdnNISuTyd
Jovaaranannswainuds:inAINy www.set.or.th

60,597,430 10.10
34,030,500 57
18,914,913 3.1
17,124,603 29
16,935,616 28
16,230,529 27
14,463,200 24
13,250,100 22
10,744,800 18
9,743,557 1.6
212,035,248 35.3
387,964,752 64.7
600,000,000 100.0

Among the shareholders listed above, Thai NVDR
Co., ltd., which is an issuer of non-voting depository
receipts (NVDR), held 9,743,557shares or 1.6 percent
in the Company as of the latest closing date of the
shareholders registration book on September 3, 2019.
Normally, the voting rights on these shares are not
exercised at the shareholders’ meeting. For the latest
update on number of shares held by Thai NVDR Co.,
ltd., please visit website of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand at www.set.or.th.
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For the latest update on the top ten major shareholders,
please visit website of the Company at www.thairelife.
co.th and the Stock Exchange of Thailand at www.set.
or.th after the closing of the shareholders registration
book.

The major shareholder who, by actions, has a significant
influence over the determination of policy or the
management or control of operations of the Company.

- None -

Shareholders’ Agreement

- None -

Issue of Other Securities

The Company has not issued any preferred shares,
debt securities or convertible securities that may affect
rights of the shareholders.

Dividend Policy

We have a policy to pay dividends at not less than
40 percent of net profit from the separate financial
statement after corporate income tax and all types
of reserves as required by law and as specified in
the Company’s Articles of Association. However, the
dividend payment is subject to change as deemed
necessary and appropriate by the Board of Directors.
The Company’s dividend payment must be approved
by OIC pursuant to Section 32 of the Life Insurance Act
B.E. 2535 (and the subsequent amendments).
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n1sfioRUZOINSSUNISIIA:GUSHIS
Shareholding of Director and Management

UDUARUNTI® UDUARUNTIO _9younru dadoumsiioRulu
tu Sun U Sun niJgoundag USGn (Soua:)
31 Sud1AU 2562 31 sud1Au 2561" 1WUAU (AOAV) Percentage
No. of Shares No. of Shares Tud 2562
as of Dec 31, 2019' | as of Dec 31, 2018’ Change Increase
(Decrease) in 2019

Jovauloy | AAUsA/ |deovauiev| AAUSA/ [Jevauiev| fausda/  |vevauled| AausA/

Held yasngv Held yasngv Held yasngv Held yasngu
Personally | TUussa | Persondlly [ TUussa | Personally | TUussa |Personally| Tuussa
aano: Ganno: Gano: aano:
Held by Held by Held by Held by
Spouse/ Spouse/ Spouse/ Spouse/
Minor Child Minor Child Minor Child Minor Child
ANJINSSUNIS
Director
1. ugddud HOVHA 1,341,471 3,000,000 1,341,471 3,000,000 - - 0.22 0.50
Mr. Suchin Wanglee
2. U1YgNs SROSVASSA 3,360 - 3,360 - - - 0.00 -
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson
3. as.nous nnagnstu 8,018 672 8,018 672 - - 0.00 0.00

Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana

4. as.onsny Inwcuuna - - = = - - - i,
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul

5. UWAUMY SASIUUN - - - = - - B -
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

6. 0s.d8 luna:04 - - = 5 - - - -
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa

7. UWAMUA ISoNSauIUS - - - = s - . .
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

8. UWUNRINS AISSTUATIOY - - = > = = - -
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit

9. unws:se IJugnuuri - - - . = . - -
Mr.Tarate Poshyananda

10. unglowns ovFASTIYY - - S = c - - -
Mr.Oran Vongsuraphichet
Qushs
Management

11. UWADASUNS 8ssUUNSNI - - S s - - - -
Ms. Sirin Dhumma-upakorn

12. UWADQOIUNM ﬂ']fIJQUO\lﬂ'D‘Cﬂ
Ms. Duangnapa Kanchanawongwut

13. UWARANTYNYT BYIRSIYSUN - = 2 - . - B -
Ms. Sukanya Yingcharoenthana

14. UNADYAUT OSSNIDNYISICU 1,500 - 1,500 - - - 0.00 -
Ms.Chutima Atthawcthworawuth

15. uwAWION Syadosty - - S = c - - -
Ms.Panida Vimootti-aran

1,500 = 1,500 = = 0.00 -

AUEIMG : | FIUDURUAITYRDONIA:SHIAD 600,000,000 KU
Remark : ' Number of common stock issued and paid-up 600,000,000 shares
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AsshIllaMIMUOANIAOUINU ATUINSSUNISAVNU
IA:ANUNSSUNISUSHISADWIAUN

ACU:NSSUNISUSEN

JoUuAnUNSSUNISUSENUS:NOUADUNSSUNIS
IUdU 10 N US:noudaanssunwsr‘iTLJﬂuajuéms
97udu 7 Mu na:nssumsidugusissiuou 3 Mu
UnssunishnruaudaIdunssun1sdas:awduI
JOVUSBNIVADOAAOINUKANINIUZNNIY N.A.0.
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NAQYOUNSSUMS NSSUNNSAAS: lla:NsSUNISYagoy
13 1tovanustn s110udeviinssunisdourtivhidu
g wsAUIFuIIInYdIuNIsSUs:AURURToY
uouINa

Management Structure

The Company’s management structure is composed
of the Board of Directors and four subcommittees,
namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee, Investment Committee, the Risk
Management Committee.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is composed of ten members
of whom seven are non-executive directors and three
are executive directors. Six of them are qualified as
independent directors, as defined by the Company
based on the SEC’s guideline. Each term of directorship
is three years, as stipulated in the Company’s Articles
of Association. However, there is no limitation on the
number of terms of office of the directors, independent
directors and members of subcommittees because
the Company needs to especially retain some board
members who are knowledgeable and specialized
in insurance business and are scarce. Profile of each
director is presented in Board Members.

s19FoANU:NSSUNISUSEN tu SUf 31 SudAU 2562 DavdolUd
As of December 31, 2019, the Board of Director are listed below:

%o diruv
Director Position

1. uwoaRud ndna
Mr. Suchin Wanglee

2. UwaNs SAOSVASSA
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson
Committee

3. as.nous nnagfistu
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana
Nominating Committee

4. as.onsnyY Inwauuna
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul
Committee

5. UWAUMY gasuun

Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon ADIAYY

Us:81UNSSUNIS NSSUNISAAS: IA:NSSUNISAINU
Chairman, Independent Director and Director of the Investment Committee

NSsUMS @ausuMSTHOY NSSUNNSATNU IIANSSUMSUSHNSAWIALY
Director, President, Director of the Investment Committee and Director of Enterprise Risk Management

NSSUMSas: UsS:s1UunNssuNIsasodou lla:us:siunssumisasshilia:nnuanaauiinu
Independent Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Chairman of the Remuneration and

NSSUNISIAS: NSSUNISASIVADU llA:NSSUMISASSHIllA:MKUQAADUIINU
Independent Director, Director of the Audit Committee, Director of the Remuneration and Nominating

NSSUNNSSAS: NSSUNISOSIVEOU NSSUMISASSHllA:NKUQAABUINU IA:Us:SIUNSSUNISUSHIS

Independent Director, Director of the Audit Committee, Director of the Remuneration and Nominating
Committee, Chairman of Enterprise Risk Management Committee

6. 0s.A8 Tuna:0a
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa
Committee

7. UMD ISOVSAUIUS
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

8. UWUNINS HOSSTUADOY
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit

9. unglowns ovAASTIIYY
Mr.Oran Vongsuraphichet

10. uws:isA IJuguun
Mr.Tarate Poshyananda

NSSUNIS
Director

Committee

NSSUNSBAS: NSSUMSUSHISAWIADY II1A:NSSUNISAVNU
Independent Director, Director of the Investment Committee and Director of Enterprise Risk Management

NSSUMSIIA:JUESUIIMSTHEY IA:NSSUMSUSHISADUIALY
Director and Senior Vice President and Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUMSIIA:EUESIUIIMSTHEY IA:NSSUMSUSHISADUIALY
Director and Senior Vice President and Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNSBAS: NSSUMSUSHISADWIADY lla:nssUNISavnu
Independent Director, Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee and Director of the Investment

HUIHG - US:D820unsSumISIIaia:nUIAQuegTUROde ANU:NSSUNISIA:GUSHISIOUUSEN ) )
- NssuN1sa1aun 9 - 10 Idsunisiiavdvidunssumsuson ru Suus:auaiinydnoru 10odun 23 1.g. 2562

Note

- Profile of each Director is listed on the board and company management.

- The Directors No.9-10 were appointed to be the Board of Directors at the date of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

on April 23, 2019
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The authorized directors on behalf of the Company
are Mr. Suchin Wanglee, Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson,
Miss Navadee Ruangrattanametee and Mrs. Nutchakorn
Suwansathit whereby any two of them shall co-sign
with the Company’s seal affixed, except Miss
Navadee Ruangrattanametee and Mrs. Nutchakorn
Suwansathit are unable to co-sign. Miss Sirin
Dhumma-upakorn acts as the Company Secretary.

Term of Office

At every annual general meeting of shareholders,
one-third of the total number of directors shall vacate
office. If the number of directors is not divisible into
a multiple of three, the number of directors nearest to
one-third shall retire from office. The directors to retire
from office in the first and second years following the
registration of the Company shall be drawn by lots. In
subsequent years, the directors who have remained
in office for the longest time shall vacate office. A
vacating director may be eligible for re-election.

The Scope of Duties, Authorities and
Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

1. Supervise the Company for duty performance
in accordance with laws, relevant rules, and the
Company’s objectives and Articles of Association,
the resolution of the Board of Directors, and the
resolution of the Shareholders’ Meeting, with
responsibilities, honesty and carefulness on, and
maintenance of the Company’s maximum interests.

2. Consider and give consent on the important matters
relating to the Company’s operation, such as its
vision, mission, policy, strategy, direction, target,
operating plan, and budget as prepared and
proposed by the Management to the Board of
Directors consistency with a risk management
framework and a risk management policy; and
supervise the management and performance of the
Management or any persons entrusted to perform
such duties following the policy formulated by the
Board of Directors.

3. Continuously supervise the normal business
operation of the Company and monitor the
duty performance of the Management following
the Company’s vision, mission, policy, strategy,
target, operating plan, and budget.
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10.

11.

12.

Control and oversee the disclosure of the correct,
adequate, and timely information in good
corporate governance, financial report, and key
information to public and regulatory agencies
following the relevant laws and standards.

Verify and approve the risk management process
and policy, and monitor the performance of the
Company’s risk management in the acceptable
risk level.

Consider for approval and/ or consider for consent
on the entry into the related parties transaction,
entry into the asset acquisition and disposal
transaction, and any executions as prescribed by
laws and the regulatory agencies to prevent the
entry into the transactions that may have a conflict
of interests between the Company’s stakeholders.

Give consent on the good corporate governance
framework and the provisions relating to the code
of business conduct, and business ethics, and
regularly review the good corporate governance
framework once a year.

Give consent on an organizational structure for
clear segregation of the duty in an appropriate
managerial supervision.

Control, oversee, and establish a process and
mechanism for controlling, monitoring, and
auditing a risk management system, an internal
control system, and a compliance with rules,
ensure an independence in duty performance
of the work units or personnel, and perform
auditing duty on the aforesaid work performance
to ensure the adequate efficiency and transparency.

Appoint the Sub-Committees to be appropriate
and adequate in order to support the duty
performance of the Board of Directors and
consider a composition change and a significant
change in the work performance of the
Sub-Committees as appropriate.

Appoint the Company Secretary fo supervise the
duty performance of the Board of Directors and
the Company in accordance with the relevant
laws, and rules and regulations.

Ask for professional comment from the external

organizations if necessary as support of the
appropriate decision making.
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13. Prepare Annual Report and take responsibility
for preparing and disclosing the financial
statements that show the financial position
and overall operation in the previous year and
proposing to the Shareholders’ Meeting.

14. Regularly supervise an assessment of the Board
of Directors’ and Sub-Committees’ performance
on a yearly basis.

15. Approve the criteria and payment of the special
remuneration from an annual performance to the
staff.

The delegation of power, duties and responsibilities
of the Board of Directors excludes the authorization
or sub-authorization of the directors or their
appointees in the approval of transactions in
which they or persons with potential conflict of
interest (as defined in notification of the Securities
and Exchange Commission or notification of the
Capital Market Supervisory Board) may have a
vested interest or may obtain benefits in any form
or may have any other conflict of interest with the
Company or its subsidiary, unless it is the approval
of transactions that are in line with the policy and
guideline approved by the shareholders’ meeting
or the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Scope of Duties, Authorities and Responsibilities

of the Chairman

1. Supervising and follow up the directors to perform
their duty in the scope of authorities and
responsibilities to meet the Company’s objectives
and plans and compliance with the laws and
the corporate governance principles of the
Company.

2. The Board Chairman or person designated by the
Board Chairman has a duty to call for a meeting
of the Board of Directors by submitting an invitation
letter at least 7 days before the meeting date
allowing directors adequate time to fully consider
board matters to be raised at the meeting.

3. The Board Chairman determines the meeting
agenda jointly with the President.

4. The Board Chairman chairs meetings ensuring
that it is efficiently run with sufficient time for the
presentation of information and participation of
all directors from the raising of questions and
opinions to the controlling of discussions and the
summation of the meeting’s resolutions.
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5. The Board Chairman plays a key role in
encouraging all directors to comply with
corporate governance principles.

6. The Board Chairman communicates all
essential information to directors.

7. The Board Chairman encourages directors’
participation in shareholders’ meetings and
acts as chairman of the meeting to control
and ensure that the meeting is efficient
and to respond to all questions raised by
shareholders.

8. The Board Chairman requires the Board of
Directors to perform their duties in compliance
with the laws and the corporate governance
principles of the Company.

Board of Directors Structure

According to the Company’s Articles of Association,
the Board of Directors shall be composed of at least
five, but not more than fifteen members.

1. The board members are categorized into two
types:
Type 1: classified by management into
* Executive director
* Non-executive director

Type 2: classified by independence into
* Independent director
* Non-independent director

2. The directors’ term of office shall be three years
at a time. At every annual general meeting of
shareholders, one-third of the total number of
directors shall vacate office. If the number of
directors is not divisible info a multiple of three,
the number of directors nearest to one-third shall
retire from office. The directors to retire from
office in the first and second years following the
transformation of the Company shall be drawn
by lots. In subsequent years, the directors who
have remained in office for the longest time shall
vacate office. A vacating director may be eligible
for re-election at a shareholders’ meeting.

Apart from retiring by rotation, a director shall
vacate office upon his
(1) Death;
(2) Resignation;
(3) Disqualification or possession of legally
prohibited characteristics;
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(4) Being retired by resolution of a shareholders’
meeting with votes not less than three-fourths
of total number of shareholders attending the
meeting and having voting rights, provided
that their aggregate shareholding is not less
than half of total number of shares held by
the shareholders attending the meeting and
having voting rights;

(5) Being retired by a court order.

3. The independent directors shall have the
qualifications as regulated by the SEC the SET
and the OIC

4. The Board of Directors shall be composed of
independent directors in the number not less than
one-third of total number of the board members,
but not fewer than three persons.

5. The directors and executives are allowed to
assume the position of director and executive of
affiliated companies or other companies, which
shall comply with regulations of the SEC, the SET
and concerned authorities and shall be informed
to the Board of Directors’ meeting.

6. The Board of Directors shall designate a Company
secretary, whose duties are to give advice on
legal issues and all rules and regulations necessary
for the Board of Directors, support the board
activities, to coordinate and ensure that the board
resolutions are implemented, and liaise with the
shareholders, the SEC, the SET and all regulatory
bodies concerned.

Board of Directors

and Subcommittee’ meeting
1. Board of Directors Meeting

(1) The Board of Directors shall pre-determine dates of
the meeting to be held at least four times a year
(once every three months) and shall clearly specify
regular items on the meeting agenda such as
consideration and approval of reviewed/audited
financial statements, etc. The agenda other than
such regular items shall be jointly determined by
the Board Chairman, Chairman of the Executive
Board and the President as deemed crucial and
necessary. In 2019, the Board of Directors held a
total of six meeting, in the event that the meeting
is not held monthly, the Company shall prepare
and submit a performance report to the Board of
Directors on a monthly basis to enable the Board
of Directors to continuously monitor, control and
supervise the management’s operation.
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The Board of Directors stipulates that the directors
should attend at least 75% of all board meetings
in a year. Any director who is unable to attend
any of the board meetings must inform his/her
reason for such absence to the Board Chairman at
the first opportunity and before any such meeting.

Other Subcommittees may hold a meeting to
consider the issues under their power and duties
delegated by the Board of Directors, with the
Company secretary to coordinate the meeting.

The Company Secretary has duty to prepare
and submit a letter of meeting invitation together
with meeting documents to the Board of Directors
at least seven days in advance, except for an
urgent meeting. Such documents shall only contain
a summary of the proposed issues, whereas the
confidential issue which is not to be disclosed in
writing shall be presented for discussion only at
the meeting.

The non-executive directors may, as deemed
fit and necessary, arrange a meeting without
presence of the management, with the Company
secretary to coordinate the meeting, and shall
report results of such meeting to the executive
directors.

The directors may additionally request essential
information directly from the President and the
Company secretary, including the executives
assigned to handle such matter.

At least half of the total number of directors shall
attend the Board of Directors’ Meeting to meet a
constituted quorum. In the case where the Chairman
of the Board is absent from the meeting or fails
to perform his/her duty, the director who attends
the meeting shall select one director to preside
over the meeting.

At every meeting, the executives and concerned
parties should be invited to join the meeting in
order to provide information and details as a basis
for making the right and timely decision.

In case of a resolution by the majority vote, if a
director objects the said resolution, the objection
shall be recorded in the Minutes of Meeting.

(10) The director, with a significant gain and loss in any

mater, is not entitled to vote in the said matter.
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(11 A self-evaluation is conducted on a yearly
basis and the evaluation results are proposed for
discussion at the Board of Directors’ meeting.

2. Audit Committee Meeting

In 2019, the Audit committee members held four meetings;
their main duties can be summarized as follows:

(1) Approved quarterly financial statements and
reviewed annual financial statements of the
Company before disclosing to the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

(2) Nomination of auditors and their remuneration.
In 2019, EY Office limited was nominated and
appointed as auditors of the Company for a
further year.

(3) Holding of joint meetings with the external auditors
two sessions took place in 2019. At one meeting
without the attendance of management, a review
of guidelines and the scope of audit performance
was conducted. A review of audit plans, results,
and recommendations has been undertaken to
ensure that all audit processes are done in a
manner consistent with auditing standards.

(4) Directing, supervising and approving internal annual
audit plans based on the Company’s risks in order
of their significance. The inspection reports are
audited to ensure that the investigation has been
completed in accordance with auditing standards.
This includes monitoring of the proposed revisions
to the internal controls system to improve efficiency
and effectiveness.

(5) A review to ensure compliance with laws and
regulations every quarter.

(6) A review of transaction reports relating to the
parties every quarter.

(7) Reviewed and assessed the enterprise wide risk
management process to ensure that they were
appropriate and effective in accordance with the
global standard, obtained the audit report on the
enterprise wide risk management process from
Internal Audit Department at least annually, and
provided recommendation for the effectiveness of
the risk management process.

(8) Conducting an annual Audit Committee
self-evaluation for review and self-improvement.

(9) Provision of an annual internal control evaluation
and propose evaluation results to the Board of
Directors.
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3. Remuneration and Nominating Committee’s
Meeting

In 2019, the Nominating and Remuneration Committee
held three meetings to select and nominate qualified
candidates to serve as directors, committee members
and fop executives, to consider the remuneration
and other benefits paid to the Committee and
Sub-committee, and to consider the successor plan
for the Top management, and to review the duty
and authority of the Recruitment and Compensation
Comnmittee. It also encouraged and ensured that the
Company embraced good corporate governance
in compliance with the rules, regulations and
noftifications of the regulatory authorities.

4. Investment Committee’s Meeting

In 2019, there was an Investment Committee’s
meeting held two meeting to consider annual
investment plan, investment quarterly performance,
estimated investment, Investment Policy Framework
and Investment Governance Policy.

5. Enterprise Risk Management Committee’s Meeting

In 2019, The Enterprise Risk Management Committee
had four meetings. The committee reported and
monitor the risk status and change of company risk
including monitoring the progress in risk management
and provide a suggestion for improvement in order
to comply with the risk management framework
and reported to the Board of Directors on a
quarterly basis.
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The names of the Board of Directors, including their meeting attendance in 2019 are given below.

No. of meetings attended / No. of meetings held in

swIonssuns KUY S ACUNSSUNTS | ANUNSSUMS | ATUNSSUNIS ﬂ']SLJS ?IU
Board of Directors Position NSSUMS | NSSUMS [ ASSHIIA: USHISAW mutywnehu
UsBn [ @sdvdoU | Mrnuam The Annudl
Board of The aoulinu | Investment | The Enterprise |  General
Directors Audit The Committee Risk Meeting
Committee [ Remuneration Management
and Committee
Nominating
Committee
ugadud KOVKA Us:sunssuns 6/6 - - 2/2 - 1/1
- Mr. Suchin Wanglee NSsSUMSoas:

la:nssunNIsavnu
Chairman, Independent
Director and Director of
the Investment Committee

2. as.naus nnagnisnu nssuMsdas: Us:su 6/6 4/4 3/3 - - 1/1
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana NSSUNNSOSIADU lIA:
Us: S'\UﬂSSUﬂ'\SﬁSSPﬂ
IIA:KUQANGBUIINU
Independent Director,
Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Chairman of
the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee

3. Uwans svaSvassA NSSUMS NSsUNIsavnu 6/6 - - 2/2 4/4 1/1
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson NSSUNSUSHISADWIADY
1Aas mmuaoms?nry
Director, Director of the
Investment Committee,
Director of the Enterprise
Risk Management
Committee and President

4. as.onsny Inwcuuna NSSUNNSdAS: NSSUMS 4/6 4/4 3/3 - - 0/1
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul asdvAdU IIANSSUNIS
asshlla:mruamMaauINu
Independent Director,
Director of the Audit
Committee, Director of
the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee

5. UWAUMY gasuun NSSUN1SSAs: NSSUNMS 5/6 4/4 873 - 4/4 1/1

Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon QS29AOU NSSUNS
ASSHIlA:MKUAAT
aoulnu awds:su |
NSSUNISUSHISADWIAUN
Independent Director,
Director of the Audit
Committee, Director of
the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee
and Chairman of the
Enterprise Risk
Management Committee

6. 0.8 un:dd NSSUNISSAS;: NSSUNS 6/6 - - 1/1 3/4 /1
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa USHISADWIAYY lIA:
nssumsainu

Independent Director,
Director of the Enterprise
Risk Management
Committee and Director of
the Investment Committee

7. UWADNUDQ ISOVSaUIUS NSSUMS IlA{NSSUNS 6/6 - - - 4/4 11
Ms. Navadee USHISADJIAYY
Ruangrattanametee Director and Director of

the Enterprise Risk
Management Committee
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Board of Directors Position SUT assmua USH‘ISHD‘IU annydiioru

muruam The The Annual
aduIlinu | Investment | The Enterprise |  General
The Committee Risk Meeting
Management
and Committee
Nominating
Committee

8. uwUNINS AdSSruANAY NSSUMS IIA:NSSUMS
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit  USHISADJIAY
Director and Director of
the Enterprise Risk
Management Committee

9. unglowns ovFigslIFuy nssumMs 4/4 - - = = 5
Mr.Oran Vongsuraphichet Director

10. ungssisA IJuguun NSsUNSSas: 4/4 - - 1/1 2/2 -
Mr.Tarate Poshyananda NSSUMSUSHISADWIADY

lla:nssuNIsSavnu
Independent Director,
Director of the Enterprise
Risk Management
Committee and Director of
the Investment Committee

UUSH'\SnQ'IS\'lcn||HU\'lnSSUn'\STUﬂN‘nSSUn'\SUQUOU
Executive office who served as director in the committe

11. UWADQIIUM nssunIsavnu - - - 1/1 - 1/1
NICYIUINADCD Director of the
Ms.Duangnaporn Investment Committee
Kanchanawongwut

S1usunSvzeunisUs:auiviua 6 4 3 2 4 1

The Total Number of the Meetings

$ova: aaumsds.au 95 100 100 100 100 88
The Average Meehng Attendance (percent)

HUIKQ) :
- nssumsmoun 6 rOSUﬂ7SIIOUC7\IIl7UﬂSSUﬂ'7Sﬁ\7nU CT\IIIODUn 21 w.A. 2562
- nssumsmoun 9-10 rOSUn7SIIC1\]C1\1ILJUﬂSSIJﬂ7SUSUn U Juus: JUH'HJQJ&IOOHU IUODUn 23 1b.9. 2562
- nssumsmoun 10 TOSUﬂ'7SIIC7\1C1V?HOTS\IO?IIHU\]TUF)YU ﬂSSUﬂ7saO€JOU avd
1. Tosunm\lmwdunssun7sa\muununssumsmoun 11 Auicidun 21 A.A. 2562
2. TOSUIIO\JCI\”UUﬂSSUﬂ')SUSH']SFL’J']UIﬁU\] Auncadun 21 w.a. 2562
Remarks:
- The Directors No.6 was appointed to be Investment Committee from May 21, 2019
- The Directors No.9-10 were appointed as a Directors on the date of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on April 23, 2019.
- The Directors 10 was appointed to be a member of the subcommittees as follows:
1. Appoint as investment Committee in place of Director No. 11, from 21 August 2019.
2. Appointed as a risk management committee From 21 May 2019.
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Name Position

1.

UYANS sAOSVASSA
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

UWADNUDA ISoNSauIUE
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

uwUanINs §ossruanag
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit

UWADASUNS sssuaUnsnd
Ms. Sirin Dhumma-upakorn

[Spi\iaplelaioj\[Vipy] ﬂﬂt‘g’OUD\lF‘bCﬂ
Ms. Duangnapa Kanchanawongwut

UWANDARTYNYT DUIRSHYsuUn
Ms. Sukanya Yingcharoenthana

UWANDYEUN ©SSNIDNYISICU
Mes. Chutima Atthawcthworawuth

uwawion dyadesny

Management

Company are listed below:

@ououMsinny
President

ddugonusymsikngdholicuunssi 1

Senior Vice President - Business Development 1

gFugeusumsirnydhowicuunssie 2

Senior Vice President - Business Development 2

@@hugsrudumsinnychungdiia:msiy / dhenouaumetuniazsuds:ucu /
hoUSHISAUNIU 1IA:NYUSHISADWIRLY

Senior Vice President ~Accounting and Finance / Operation Control & Budgeting /
Administration / Enterprise Risk Management

gonusumsahyainu
Vice President - Investment

@goudymsahainalulag
Vice President - Information Technology

gououmsahodicuunssiiv 2
Vice President — Business Development 2

gonusumsahgauneaanuziia: dhooniuunagng

ThaiRe life Assurance PCL

As of December 31, 2019, the management of the

Mes. Panida Vimootti-aran

Vice President — Product Development and Strategic Planning

HUEIMQ : - GUEHSANAUR 4 dsvchikuudugusmsavaadhelnygia:msiiuna:SudasounduUQIAUNYY

- gUSHISA1AaUN 8 TaSuMSIICANWTYWGUSHIS 4 S1IIsn SUN 30 w.A. 2562

- gUSHISAIAUN 9 IaSUMISIIcNAVCNUTYWEUSHIS 4 S$19iisn Sun 17 w.g. 2562

Note: - The management No.4 is the Chief Financial Officer who has primary responsibility for managing the Company’s finance

- The management No.8 was appointed in accordance with the definitions of the first four top-ranking executives on May 30, 2019.

- The management No.9 was appointed in accordance with the definitions of the first four top-ranking executives on November 17, 2019.

JoUIIAUNHUNNIIA:AIIWSUGQIOU

The Scope of Duties, Authorities and

- O 1 ° ofege °

ovaoudunisiney Responsibilities of President

1. Su@a¥ou qQliAa USKIS NISANIUUNIUIA:/KS® 1. Be responsible for, supervise and manage
NISUSKISYIUUS9I3UZONUSEN SOURVNSANNU the Company’s day-to-day operation and/
quamsduduviulousau 1elidullanuuloung or administration, including overall operational
nagnsnesiv 10 KuIgiaiwunisaiduviu monitoring, fo be in line with the policy, business
IJIKUIYNINISINU. lA:vUUSUITUROVUSEN strategy, operational goal and action plans,
NIASUeUUGAYINATUNSSUNISUSEN lla:/KHSo financial targets, and budgets of the Company
uanUs:gudiioRu as approved by the Board of Directors and/or

resolved by the shareholders’ meeting.
2. 0MIWUSSNY IIA:NIKHUQSIUNINISUSKHISUIU 2. Map out business plans, define the administration

maomuﬁon°wUUs:mmﬁ'Tz?Tumslle:nous‘sﬁ'o
la:yuUs:uItusI9919Us:90 1loUIAUD0 D
ANU:NSSUNISUSEN 1ToY0oyldna:drnuin
S1YNIUADINAIDKUNUIWUNIUIIANNUUS:UITU
AIGSUoUTAAUNAIDGOANUNSSUNISUSEN

authority and prepare the yearly budgets for
business operation and capital expenditure for
the Board of Directors’ approval, and report
the actual performance against such approved
business plans and budgets to the Board of
Directors.
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NKUQTASYASINOVANS ID8NISUSKIS SOUDI
nIsAalaon NIs@nousy NI1SI19V IA:NS
IANYWWUNNIUZOVUSEN I1A:NKUQSASIANIIN
NuIdeu Araeuinu TUla IA:ASAONISAN
A rSuwdnviuaiunsauia:vuds:uiruniasu
DUIAINANUINSSUNISUSEN (UNISUNISHKUQ
90s81A19 W NuUIdau Alasouinu Tula Nla:
adadnisavg dmnSugorudsunisiney na:
sounssuN1sgouduNIstnnyFve:rrualay
ANUINSSUNISUSEN)

AQOUIAISIONIUANID: FIUIOVUSEN IAUDIIUL
nwidenia:nagnsnaoanaovnuulyguny lla:
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10.

11

Set out the organization structure, management
approach, and employee recruitment, training,
employment and termination of employment, and
determine employees’ wage rate, salary rate,
compensation, bonus and fringe benefits under
the framework and budgets approved by the
Board of Directors (except for the remuneration,
salary, compensation, bonus and fringe benefits
for the President and the Senior Executive Vice
President which shall be determined by the Board
of Directors).

Follow up on and report the Company’s status
and position and recommend alternatives and
strategies that fit with the policy and market
environment.

Supervise and control the Company’s operations
in the areas of, among others, finance, risk
management, internal control, back-office
operation, and resources.

Act as representative of the Company and have
authority fo contact government agencies and
other regulatory bodies.

Communicate with the public, shareholders,
customers and employees to promote a good
reputation and image of the Company.

Ensure that good corporate governance practices
are in place.

Have power to issue, amend, add and revise
rules, orders and regulations pertaining to the
Company’s operations such as employment,
appointment, removal and discipline of staff and
employees, fixing of salary and other monies
including aids and welfare provision.

Consider, negotiate and approve the entering
info agreements and/or any other acts relating
to the Company’s day-to-day operation and/
or administration under the delegation of power
framework approved by the Board of Directors.

. Assume any power, duty and responsibility as

assigned or under the policy designated by the
Board of Directors.
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12. Have power to sub-authorize and/or assign
other person to perform any particular act on
his behalf, whereby any such sub-authorization
and/or assignment shall be within the scope of
authorization specified in the letter of attorney
and/or shall conform to the rules, regulations or
orders set forth by the Board of Directors. The said
delegation of power, duties and responsibilities
of the President excludes the authorization
or sub-authorization of the President or his
appointees in the approval of transactions in
which he or persons with potential conflict of
interest (as defined in notification of the Securities
and Exchange Commission or notification of the
Capital Market Supervisory Board) may have a
vested interest or may obtain benefits in any
form or may have any other conflict of interest
with the Company or its subsidiary, unless it
is the approval of transactions that are in line
with the policy and guideline approved by the
shareholders’ meeting or the Board of Directors
of the Company.

The Company has documented the delegation of
power to serve as an operational handbook and a
reference and to follow the procedure in a systematic
manner. The Company determines and approve
the yearly budgets which consist of the estimated
underwriting income and expenses, capital expenditure,
operating expenses, and purchase of fixed assets.

Company Secretary

The Board of Directors appointed Ms. Sirin Dhumma
-upakorn as Company secretary from July 26, 2017.

The Company secretary is responsible for all matters
relating to Board registration, meeting letters, Board
meeting reports, annual report, shareholders meeting
letters, shareholders meeting reports, including Profits
and loss reports by the Board or management
and other transactions required by Capital Market
Supervisory Board. According to measure 89/14, the
copy of the Profits and Loss report should be presented
to the Presidents of the Board and Auditor within seven
working days of receipt of the report.
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Additional duties and responsibilities include:

1. Provide regular advice to the Board of Directors
in respect of all legal and regulatory issues.

2. Organize shareholders and Board meetings in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

3. Record proceedings of shareholders and Board
meetings and ensure decisions agreed at the
meetings are implemented.

4. Follow legal and regulatory requirements in the
control and disclosure of corporate information.

5. Follow legal and regulatory requirements in
respect of Board decisions.

Remuneration for the Board of

Directors and Executives

The Board of Directors has appropriately
considered the remuneration for the directors,
sub-committee and senior management for the
duties, responsibilities and participation of each
director. And can compare with other businesses
in the same industry or similar to the company.
The Board of Directors assigns the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee responsible for
establishing and reviewing criteria, policies,
and forms of consideration for compensation or
other benefits to the Board of Directors and all
sub-committees for submission to the Board of
Directors for approval before proposing to the
shareholders’ meeting for approval.

The remuneration for senior executives is in
accordance with the criteria set by the Board
of Directors, linked to the annual operating
results of the Company and the annual
performance of the senior executives were
appropriately to the responsibilities and
sufficient to motivate to maintain quality
personnel.

58 siovuds:aU 2562



ThaiRe life Assurance PCL

1. AaaunnunidudoNu
ANQOUINUNSSUNS

Tul 2562 A1COUINUNSSUNMSANUUANUS: AU
AwnygiioRunsvn 8 1Uadun 23 IWwgu 2562
lagisiwa:dgaduaswaallu

rhcnouunu_swmdou
(doruy)
Monthly Remunerations

ANU:NSSUNIS
(per person)

Board of Directors

1. Monetary Remuneration
Directors Remuneration

The remunerations in 2019 as the resolution
of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 8
on April 23, 2019 are listed below:

Aiduys:zucionsy
(clonmu)*

Conference fee* MUNIKGY

(per person) Gratuity

Us:sunssun NSSUNIS Us:sunssuns NSSUNS
Chairman Director Chairman Director

ANLNSSUNISUSEN -Ui- -Ui-
Board of Directors -None- -None-
ANINSSUNISASIEOU -ui- -Uis-
Audit Committee -None- -None-
ANUNSSUNISASSHINIA:AIKUQ -NJi- -NJi-
AGdUIINU -None- -None-
The Remuneration and Nominating

Committee

ANU:NSSUMISAVNU -Ui- -
Investment Committee -None- -None-
ATUINSSUNISUSHISADIAUY -Ui- -UiD-
Enterprise Risk Management -None- -None-

Committee

30,000 20,000 Tifu 2.65 Auun dagssihus:snu
NSSUNIS IAMNSSIUNISMUDU Mua: 1 &uU
No more than 2.65 million baht allocated
to the Chairman two parts each andother
directors are allocated one part per person.
M-
-None-
M-
-None-

30,000 20,000

20,000 20,000

-UiD-
-None-

20,000 20,000

-UiD-
-None-

20,000 20,000

HUEIMG  *Aideus:guciondudoniu v:veliinnssunsaignsouUs:guiniu
Remark * Meeting allowance per person was paid to only the attendees of the meeting.

Araeounnunssuns1 1usiounnalul 2562 asUlaaud
In 2019, remuneration for the Board of Directors, details of which are shown in the below table:

MIduUs:guNSsUMS (UN)
Remunerations (Baht)

At
nssuNs
Cratuity

AU

swdonssums

Board of Directors UBEIN

1. uwadud Kdka 584,446 120,000
Mr. Suchin Wanglee

2. as.naus nnagnistu 292,222 80,000
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana

3. uwaNs sAasvAssSA 292,222 80,000
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

4. as.ofsny Inwcuuna 292,222 40,000
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul

5. UNAUMY gasuun 292,222 60,000
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

6. 0s.d8 luna:oa 292,222 80,000
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa

7. unWUDINS AdSstuANaY 292,222 80,000
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit

8. UWADMUT ISOVSaUIUE 292,222 80,000

Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

nssuNs

Board of
Directors

AfU: 213V AfU: AfU:
nsSsSUNS nssuNs nssuNs NsSsSUNS
asJvddU aunu aAssHiia: Ushis
Audit Investment [ NIKUQA ADIAUY
Committee [ Committee asuinu Enterprise
Remuneration Risk
and Management
Nominating | Committee
Committee
- 40,000 - 744,446
120,000 - 60,000 552,222
- 40,000 - 80,000 492,222
80,000 - 60,000 - 472,222
80,000 = 60,000 80,000 572,222
- 20,000 = 60,000 452,222
- - - 80,000 452,222
© = = 80,000 452,222
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AUt
nNssuN1s
Gratuity

AU

S1UFONSSUNS

Board of Directors USEIn

9. uws:sA TUuouun -
Mr.Tarate Poshyananda

60,000

10. ungTowns ovFdsTIIuY -
Mr.Oran Vongsuraphichet

60,000

11. UIWADQIVUNT NMINYIUDNFDCT - -
Ms. Duangnapa Kanchanawongwut

SouU
Total

2,630,000

HUNIKC): F)')C’IQUIInUﬂSSUﬂ')S TUSDUF)')C’)OUIIHUTUV’)U &IUSH'IS

NSSUNS

Board of
Directors

740,000

ﬂ’lIUUU JUNSSUNIS (UIN)
Remunerations (Baht)
AN ANU: ANU: ANU:
NSsSUNS NSsSUNs NSsSUNs NSSUNMS
asdvdadU aunu assmlia: USHIS
Audit Investment [ NIKUQAT ADJIAUY
Committee | Committee | Q@uINU Enterprise
Remuneration Risk
and Management
Nominating | Committee
Committee
- 20,000 - 40,000 120,000
= = = 60,000
= 20,000 = 20,000
280,000 140,000 180,000 420,000 4,390,000

fﬂOUﬂ 9-10 TOSUﬂ'ISIIO\IO\IIUUnSSUﬂ')S n .')UUS aumurywnahu .')Uﬂ 23 1U.8.62 WlUTAUHGenssunis
a1aun 11 IUUGJUSH')SHO’IS\IC)')IIHU\]ﬂSSUﬂ')SfUF)l’U ﬂSSUﬂ')SUOUOU?\JTUUF)')U')IHU’?ﬂSSUﬂ'lS

Note:

The remuneration for committee did not include in the remuneration as the management.

The Directors No.9-10 were appointed as a Directors on the date of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on April 23, 2019,

so there is no gratuity.

No.11 directors were executive who holds the position of director in the sub-committee so there is no gratuity.

ANQBUIINUGUSHIS

Tuld 2562 usGnIdvwAOBUINUUS:NOUADY
Nudouna:ludaTANugUSKISTIUOU 9 S19 SOUNVAU
31.69 Auuln

2. ANGdUINUSU
ANQDUIINUAUIDINSSUNIS
- TUio-

ANQBUIINUSUWUSHIS
u§Gan'\70Th‘Uno\1nuﬁwso\l|5003w||a~
waus:Tyau hauoenmnmuTh ||n cu UsSKis lay
Tul 2562 umusmsmuou 9 579 SOURVAU 3.7 Auunn
Toudswandua Gud
« Y9rgaunuUnavnua1sovIAgvIWiuSasIdou
Soya: 5-10 ovnuiGou I0UIUdU 2.12 Auun

* waus:TyyUurnAaAvOONINYIU F1UdU 1.58
A7UUn
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Executives’ Monetary Remuneration

In 2019, the Company paid the remuneration,
including salary and bonus, to the nine executives
with a total of 31.69 million baht.

2. Other Remunerations
Other remunerations for directors

- None -

Other remunerations for executives

The Company provided the provident fund for the
Company’s executives contribution on their salary.
In 2019, the Company totally contributed Baht 3.7
million for seven executives.

* Contribution to the provident fund at the rate
of 5-10% of the salary in the amount of 2.12
million baht.

* Post-employment benefits in the amount of 1.58
million baht.
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UDUWUINIUIONUSEN Thusus:AuZda ¥na
(UKU) tU Sun 31 SudAU 2562 TINUDUNNAU 47 AU
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Human Resources

The total number of employees as at December 31,
2019 was 47, employees working on each core
business line is listed below:

llwun oUW
Department No. of Employees

@ououMstny - President

Wcwunssie - Business Development

WOUUNWAONTUAIIAD WIWUNAYNS - Product Development & Strategic Planning

aluauudona - Data Support
WsnUNSUUS:NUNY - Underwriting
UnJ3lia:n1SNiU - Accounting & Finance

AOUAUMETUNIA:JUUS:UNU - Operation Control & Budgeting

USKIsaUNIU - Administration
Aaunu - Investment

USNSADWIADY - Enterprise Risk Management

INAUTAZANSAUINA - Information Technology
USHISIIA:WCUUINUUUYE - Human Resource
s29dOUMYTU - Internal Audit
QuansupUu@aunnruIg - Compliance

SOUMAVAU - Totdl

AQOUIINUWUNYIU

usSGndulgurgdrgar1aouinuwUnyiu
nns:auogWIKU:aUIA:IJUusSSSU aUATUDCD
ADUS ADWANSH laUs:AuMsnUTuNsiviu Tag
mmsnnmsv'wn'mouyngﬁ\ﬂus:a:ﬁu I1A:S:9:91D
Toum’mounnq?us:s:ﬁuﬁu usGnnikualkionis
Tstudsuiiusasivuitouds:910zovwanviu
amuns:uounishdaleu TUsvla naidusssu Janan
N1S919A10DUIINUILY Pay for Performance Tag
aunuwanisufudviuzeovwunviuidusigynna
ﬁlhumSUS:IUu Key Performance Indicator (KPI)
FUN1YNoaluuuuavaIv TagisSuaIns:quusen
AVUIS:AUAIYNIU AU lwun la:wunyIuaIy
A10U a:MsUs:iiu Competency Naoanaovnu
SCUUSSSUKANYOIUSEN ddumasuiinuius:u:91oUu
usSenTawa1stunfivAnunIwIavwinuiuwu
nIsUs:i0u Competency ﬁu§Gndme2?Tumsﬁ1huq
ADIWNNOKUNTUAIgOFWIOVWUINVIU UdNINT
usSBNIVIAdrINISA1SI9AN0OUINUAUUSENDUY
tunauus:nunoidus:o:¢ 105NV A:IASUASTIY
AdwAIUISnTuNIsIFVIudIuusSHISNUUUUY
TANUUSEN

1

— N N OO W W N wWw O A~ O NN

»
N

Employees’ Remuneration

The Company has reasonable and fair remuneration
policy for every level of employees, based on their
educational background, knowledge, skill, and work
experience and pays them both short and long term
remuneration. For short term one, the Company has
clear and transparent process to determine yearly
salary increase, based on Pay per Performance
principle; which takes each employee’s performance
evaluation, through Key Performance Indicator (KPI),
into consideration. The KPI is transferred from top
to bottom, starting from corporate level down to
division, department, section and employee.
In addition, competency is also assessed in
accordance with the Company’s core culture. For
long term remuneration, the Company considers
each employee’s potentiality through competency
assessment, which is used in determining advancement
in career path. Apart from this, the Company
periodically surveys the remuneration of other
companies in the insurance group in order to
maintain and strengthen its competitiveness in
managing human capital.
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Apart from salaries, the remuneration package includes
bonuses, financial aids, employee provident fund to
which the Company contributes five to ten percent of
the individual employees’ salary depending on years
of service, healthcare, health insurance premiums,
life insurance, accident insurance, contribution to
compensation and social security funds, retirement
benefit, training and development, other employee
expenses and personnel development. In 2019, The
Company paid Baht 78.58 million for employee
remuneration, details of which are as follows:

AABUINUIDNWUNIU Auuin
Employees expenses THB Million

NuiGeuna:ANsy - Salary and wage 68.14
NuUs:NuaAvAU - Social security fund 0.42
ﬁuﬂunuwhne\muéwso\uﬁwﬁw (fuAouzoNUSHN) - Contribution to provident fund 393
waUs:TggUnavean NV - Defined benefit plans 1.97
FaoUINUBUA - Other benefits 412
SU - Total 78.58

ulgurgnIswawUIUAAINS

usBnas:kuniatkAdWAArYRUIZounIs
weuutynainsiduagwuin Fviadaninisdisos
A WAOVNISNISWAUUNIYAAINSZOVWINVIUIIAAAU
auommﬂusdsssu woumuuwcuuﬂhwun\nuTo
Wauunu:Rs1TutunIsiu. souUEINISIaSoU
AowwSouilionduR1oKUNTUATYO1FWENGE DY
TagusentTKwUnvIuTanNIlwus:g:g19TunNIsSwWeuu
10uswunAa (Individual Development Plan) Tagwinuiu
gUvAUUNYY HUDUVIU USHIsIIAWcUUINUUYYY
2:sounUMSiKuasUIiuY ASWCUUNRIKUN:AY A
ms@nousunvluds:ina a:cvUs:na iia:nswcuun
AJTdaIRaInMsénousu 13u Mstirinsuns Idudu
uoNINTUSENINIGINUNIsANWS:GUUSryryaTn
Tunanaasan3ng1du TRINwinuudoY

ul 2562 wGn\nquéun”nsﬁ"lnousuTu'\huau
47 AU 9IUdU 70 KANFQS OUSUMHUQ 2,356.5
) aaTuuouswoau 50 FoTuvdowdnIUARTGSUMS
OUSIKTVAU

Human Resource Development Policy

The Company attaches a high level of importance
to human resource development and has conducted
training needs surveys of all employees to enable
them to develop essential skills that are appropriate
to their role and career advancement. The Company
encourages the employees to develop long term
Individual Development Plan and; with the support
of each employee’s boss together with the division
responsible for human capital development and
management, incorporates it into a proper type of
development In addition, the Company also provides
scholarship for employees to pursue their master
degree in relevant fields.

In 2019, the Company assigned 47 employees to
attend 70 training courses 2,356.5 all training hours,
50 average training hours per employee on training,
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Apart from general human development plan as
above mentioned; in 2019, the Company had
initiated Knowledge Sharing activities. These activities
are enable the employees to listen to new knowledge,
exchanges their views with colleagues and external
instructors in a creative atmosphere. The subjects
are such as introduction to Life Insurance, Innovation
Thinking, Changing Mindset (Thinking Framework)
and etfc; aiming at broadening their perspectives
and consequently leading to change the behavior
of employees, and support their lifelong learning to
be ready to change and to be a part of driving an
organization and business move forward in time for
the incident from disruption.

Internal Control and Risk Management

1. Summary of the Board of Directors’ Opinion
Regarding Internal Control System

At the Board of Directors meeting No.1/2020 on
February 18, 2020 in which the three Audit Committee
members also participated, the Board of Directors
assessed the Company’s internal control system
and inquired the management, staff members and
concerned units about various pillars of the internal
control system, including

Control environment
Risk Assessment
Control Activities

Information & communication

ok~ 0 b~

Monitoring Activities

The Board of Directors deemed that the Company’s
internal control system was adequate and appropriate
for entering into transactions with the major
shareholders, directors, executives and related persons
of the foregoing persons. As well, other pillars of the
internal control system were adequate and could
allow for the Company to operate business under
good corporate governance principles and with
fransparency.
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In addition, the Board of Directors has entrusted the
Audit Committee with power and duties to review and
ensure that the Company has a sound and effective
internal control and internal audit system and abides
by the law governing securities and exchange,
the SET’s regulations or the laws applicable to the
Company’s business. The Audit Committee must hold a
meeting at least once a quarter to review and ensure
correctness of the Company’s financial reporting and
to consider and make certain that the Company’s
connected transactions or transactions with potential
conflict of interest are correct and compliant with the
applicable laws and the notifications and regulations
of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Capital
Market Supervisory Board, the Board of Governors of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and other concerned authorities. Audit
committee agreed with the Company’s board of
directors and auditor.

2. Opinion of the Audit Committee that Is Different
from the Board of Directors or the Auditor’s
Observation Regarding Internal Control

The Audit Committee provided opinion consistent with
that of the Board of Directors and the auditor.

3. Head of Internal Audit Unit

The Company has established Department of Internal
Audit which is under the direct supervision of the Audit
Committee with full authority to appoint, dismiss and
transfer Head of Internal Audit Department.

The Audit Committee monitors the operational
activities of the Head of the Internal Audit Department.
The Committee supports training program for the
Department’s Head to ensure that he or she obtains
skills and knowledge appropriate for the role of
internal auditor. Ms.Phanida Arkad-amnuay, is the Head
of Internal Audit Unit.

During the year, the Internal Audit Department
performed the audit according to the audit plan
approved by the Audit Committee and providing
advice on internal control, risk management and
overseeing various departments in the company and
regularly report to the Audit Committee every quarter.
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4. Head of Compliance Unit

The Company has established a compliance
department, which was approved by the Board
of Directors on October 10, 2014. The Department
will be under supervision of the Audit Committee.
Ms.Cholthicha Arayamaytheekul, act as the head of
Compliance department.

During the year, the department performed
compliance monitoring and report to the audit
committee to review on a regular basis every
quarter.
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Corporate Governance Policies

The Board of Directors of Thaire Life Public Company
Limited is aware of its role and responsibility as leader
of the organization and remains steadfast in
conducting business under the corporate governance
principles. The Company itself encourages the
creation of innovation that can add value for
shareholders, employees, customers, business
partners and all groups of stakeholders. This is for the
stakeholders to rest assured that the Company has
the ability to compete and adapt to changes, while
taking account of code of ethics and long-term
social and environmental impacts to ultimately
create sustainable value for the organization.

The Board of Directors has established the corporate
governance policy for the directors, executives and
employees to adhere fo in performing their duties,
as follows:

1. The Board of Directors plays a crucial role in
defining objectives which could lead to
sustainable value creation including business,
customer, stakeholders, and sustainable society
by setting the Company strategy and policies
to attain the objectives and goals as well as
monitoring, evaluating, and reporting on
performance.

2. The Board of Directors perform dedicated and
responsibility, independent and clearly define
the roles and responsibilities of chairman and
chief executive officer and monitor management’s
proper performance of its duties.

3. The Board of Directors, executives and employees
must perform duties with commitment, responsibility
and integrity by upholding the corporate
governance principles and the code of ethics and
conduct along with company regulations in their
work.
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4. The Board of Directors must put in place a
nomination process to ensure that qualifications
of nominated directors, executives and employees
are sufficient to drive the organization forward
towards goals, as well as set an effective
compensation structure and performance
evaluation and provide skill and knowledge
development for every departments in the
company on a regular basis.

5. The Board of Directors should ensure that the
company has risk management and internal
control system and monitor conflicts of interest
that might occur between the company and
stakeholders. The board should also prevent the
inappropriate use of corporate assets, information
and opportunities.

6. The Board of Directors must ensure the integrity
of the company’s financial reporting process to
be timely, accurate disclosure and trustworthy
information regarding to regulatory requirements,
accounting standard and the company procedure.

7. The Board of Director must encourage shareholders’
participation, ensure equitable treatment of
shareholders and shareholders’ rights to access
information with appropriate channels of
communication with the Company by providing
the investor relations services to facilitate
proper, equal and timely communication with
shareholders and other stakeholders.

8. The Board of Directors, executives and employees
must adhere to the anti-corruption policy. The
Company has communicated this policy within
the organization and the outsiders to ensure it
is translated into practice.

9. The Board of Directors must encourage create a
corporate innovation culture that creates value
for the company and its shareholders together
with benefits for its customers, other stakeholders,
society, and the environment, in order to support
sustainable growth of the company.

Compliance with THREL's corporate governance
policy is a key indicator to measure the business
management performance of the Board of Directors
and executives and to evaluate the performance
of all employees.
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The Company encourages compliance with the
corporate governance principles and code of
business ethics and communicates with the
directors, executives and employees to ensure
that they would realize and acknowledge the
significance of corporate governance and ethics
and that all employees have studied, familiarized
themselves with, and signed to acknowledge the
corporate governance and ethics as a guideline
for their operation. Moreover, the Company has
to maintain corporate governance policies on its
website and regularly monitors the compliance
program in general. An assigned working party
must report all updates and progresses to the Board
of Directors. For instance, the Audit Committee
has been entrusted with duties to monitor issues
concerning a conflict of interest, internal control and
audit, and compliance with laws and regulations
prescribed by relevant authorities, and to regularly
report the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.
The Company secretary is responsible for reporting
on securities holding by directors and executives
and informing the results thereof to the Board
of Directors on a quarterly basis; and so on.

Subcommittees

1. The Board of Directors may form Subcommittees
in various aspects of concerns to assist in
studying and scrutinizing details of particular
matters. Qualifications and scope of duties and
responsibilities of each committee shall be
clearly defined.

For each board-level committee, a meeting shall
be convened to assess the performance or review
all policies at least once a year.

2. The Board Chairman shall not act as either
chairman or member of the Subcommittees so
as to ensure that each committee can truly
exercise their independent judgment.
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List of Subcommittee Members and the Scope of
Duties and Authorities

To enhance efficiency in business administration
and supervision, the Board of Directors has
appointed subcommittees to specially oversee
and follow up on the routinely important activities
or the activities that need close attention. There
are four subcommittees at present, namely the
Audit Committee, the Enterprise Risk Management
Committee, the Investment Committee and the
Remuneration and Nominating Committee. Their
structures and responsibilities are clearly identified
as follows:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on November
5, 2012, consisting of three independent directors.
The Audit Committee’s term is three years. As at
December 31, 2019, its existing members are listed
below:

Fo dhiikuv
Name Position

1. as.naus noanistu
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana

2. as.onsny Inwcuuna
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul

3. uwALAY sasuun
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

USBNDNssUNIsasdvAOURTNDWSAUTNT
1a:N1sI9U 1BerrndRasoeaouIa:AIAUQIA
N1SANIUUVIUZOVUSEN SOUTIVANNUQIASIYNIU
NWNISINU S:uundUAUNIYTU N1sAQIAONEASI?
AouUnyd Nla:nislivnsnundoadanguneaus:iuzgu
97UdU 2 NU Ao as.oNSNY Tnwcuuna lla:as.nous
NNOYINSIU
Al uWa WU ©1MASIUDY gramsahuasovaou
molu MrudniduliazunIsAfU:NSSUNISASIEOU

21S$:MISANSUCNIIKUNIONNSSUNISOSIVAOU

UsS:81UNSSUNISASIYAOUIIAINSSUNIS
asseAouDos:d1svd KU vASIDA: 3 T MVl
I09ASUNIKUADISINISAISVEITKUVAVNA 1D
Us:81UNSSUNISASIVAOUIA:NSSUNISASIVADU
AW U INEIIKUVAIUIIS:019TdSUNISIAVAVTA
NAUIFIaIsuaIKUNIadn

NSSUNSAAS:IA:US:8IUNSSUNISASIYEOU
Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee

NSSUNISSAS:IA:NSSUNISAOSIVAEOU
Independent Director and Audit Committee

NSSUNISSAS:IA:NSSUNISASIVEOU
Independent Director and Audit Committee

There are two members of the Audit Committee,
namely Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul and Dr.Kopr
Kritayakirana, who has accounting and financial
knowledge, was assigned to examine and oversee
the Company’s operation, financial reporting, internal
control system, external auditor selection, and
conflict of interest.

Ms. Phanida Arkad-Amnuay, Internal Audit Manager,
serves as the secretary of the Audit Committee.

Term of Office

Chairman and members of the Audit Committee are
in office for a term of three years. The chairman and
members who retire by rotation upon the end of
each term of office could be reappointed to serve
on the Audit Committee.
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The Scope of Duties and Authorities
1. To review and ensure the accuracy and adequate

disclosure of the Company’s financial reports
in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards by collaborating with the Company’s
external auditor and executives who are in
charge of financial reporting on a quarterly
and yearly basis.

. To recommend the auditor, during the course

of auditing the Company’s accounts, to review
or examine any transactions deemed necessary
and significant.

. To Review and assess to ensure the appropriateness,

effectiveness and accordance with international
standards of the Company’s internal control,
internal audit systems, and risk management
systems, provide opinion on the Company’s
infernal control assessment report to the Board
of Directors, assess the independence of the
internal audit unit, define the authority and
responsibility of the internal audit unit, recommend
the appointment, rotation and termination of
employment of heads of the internal audit unit
or any other units in the Company involved with
internal audit functions, approve the internal audit
charter, the audit plans, budgets and resource
plan for the internal audit unit and consider the
appropriate scope or resource limitations and the
remuneration of heads of the internal audit unit.

4. To review and ensure the Company’s compliance

with the law governing securities and exchange,
including notfifications of the Securities and
Exchange Commission, notfifications of the
Capital Market Supervisory Board, notifications
of the Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand, regulations of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand, regulations of the office of insurance
commission and any other laws applicable to
the Company’s business.

5. To consider, select and recommend appointment

of an independent person to serve as the
Company’s auditor, propose remuneration for
the Company’s auditor, and participate in a
meeting with the auditor, without presence of
the management, at least once a year.
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6. To consider the connected transactions, assets

acquisition/disposal transactions or transactions
with potential conflict of interest and ensure
their correctness and compliance with the laws,
notifications and regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission, the Capital Market
Supervisory Board, the Board of Governors of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and the Stock
Exchange of Thailand including other concerned
authorities, to make certain that these transactions
are reasonable and bring about the maximum
benefit to the Company.

. To prepare the Audit Committee’s performance

report, duly signed by the Audit Committee
Chairman, for publishing in the Company’s annual
report, including at least the following information:

(a) Opinion on accuracy, completeness and
reliability of the Company’s financial reports;

(b) Opinion on adequacy of the Company’s
internal control system;

(c) Opinion on compliance with the law governing
securities and exchange, notifications and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, the Capital Market Supervisory
Board, the Board of Governors of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, and the Stock Exchange
of Thailand, including any other laws
applicable to the Company’s business;

(d) Opinion on appropriateness of the auditor;

(e) Opinion on transactions with possible conflict
of interest;

(f) Number of meetings convened by the Audit
Committee and meeting attendance by each
Audit Committee Member;

(g) Opinion or observation in overall received by
the Audit Committee from a discharge of duty
under the charter;

(h) Any other transactions that should be
disclosed to the shareholders and general
investors within the scope of duties and
responsibilities designated by the Board
of Directors.

8. To perform any other task as assigned by the

Board of Directors with the Audit Committee’s
consent.
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9. Provide recommendation to management and
report to the Board of Directors in case of whether
the following actions will occur

(a) Transactions with possible conflict of interest;

(b) Fraud, corruption, strangeness or significant
weakness of internal control systems;

(C) Violation of laws applicable to the Company’s
business.

If the corrective action could not complete within
Audit Committee deems appropriate. The Audit
Committee shall report to the Office of the Insurance
Commission or the SEC without delay.

Enterprise Risk Management Committee

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee was
established on December 1, 2012, consisting of
Director, independent directors and executive
director. The Board of Directors appoints the
Enterprise Risk Management Committee from
among directors. The Enterprise Risk Management’s
term is three years. As at December 31, 2019,
existing members are listed below:

Fo dhiiKuY
Name Position

1. UNAUMY SASUUN
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

2. 0s.A8 un:od
Mr. Sutee Mokkhavesa

3. UYANS sAOSVASSA
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

4. UWANUIA ISOVSAUIUE
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

5. uWURINS Fossruanag
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit

6. wgs:isA IJuguun
Mr. Tarate Poshyananda

?Jou|2J_c10°1uwnu‘wr‘iaeunm:nssumsuéms
ADJIAYN
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Us:81UNSSUMSUSHNSADWIADY
Chairman of Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNSUSHNSADUIADY
Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNISUSHISADUIADY
Enterprise Risk Management Committee

ﬂSSUﬂ'lSU§h'13ﬂZJ'\UIﬁ=U\I
Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNSUSHISADWIRDY
Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNMSUSHSADUIADY
Enterprise Risk Management Committee

The Scope of Duties and Authorities

1. Oversee the Company’s enterprise risk management
framework and policy which covers strategic risk,
insurance risk, market risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk, operational risk, reputation risk, information
technology risk, catastrophe risk, emerging risk,
group risk, and other risks as deemed appropriated,
and submit to the Board of Directors for approval.
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2. Assess the overall adequacy, efficiency, and
effectiveness of current risk management as well
as the accuracy and appropriateness of the
Company’s Enterprise Risk Management framework.

3. Meet at least once in every quarter to monitor
the Company’s risk status, risk profile, and progress
of risk management and make recommendations
to ensure the ongoing alignment with the
Company’s Enterprise Risk Management
Framework and Policy and report back to the
Board of Directors at least once in every quarter.

4. Monitor key activities and all material enterprise
risks and ensure that the Company operates in
accordance with its Enterprise Risk Management
Framework and Policy.

5. Review the Enterprise Risk Management and Own
Risk and Solvency Assessment report and submit
to the Board of Directors for approval.

6. Prepare a contingency plan to respond to
unexpected events.

7. Perform other duties and responsibilities
delegated by the Board of Directors.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee was established on
February 25, 2014, consisting of directors or
executives and personnel with knowledge, skill
and experience in investment management, risk
management or securities analysis. The Board
of Directors appoints the Investment Committee
from among the directors, executives or external
personnel. The Investment Committee’s term is three
years. As at December 31, 2019, existing members
are listed below:

Fo dhiiKuY
Name Position

1. Unyadud KOKA
Mr. Suchin Wanglee

2. UYaNS SAOSVASSA
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

3. uws:sA IWuonuun
Mr. Tarate Poshyananda

4. uas luna:oa
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa

nssuNsavnu
Investment Committee

nssuNIsavnu
Investment Committee

nssuNsavnu
Investment Committee

nssuNIsavnu
Investment Committee
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The Scope of Duties and Authorities

1. To formulate an investment policy framework,
covering investment and other business activities
of life insurance companies as stipulated in
notification of the Insurance Commission, and
submit it to the Board of Directors for approval.

2. To consider and approve the Company’s
investment plan that is aligned with the
investment policy framework and risk
management policy framework.

3. To monitor and ensure that investments and
investment fund management are in conformity
with the investment policy framework, overall
risk management policy, rules and procedures
for investment, and relevant legal provisions.

4. To monitor corporate governance, transparency,
and prevention of conflict of interest associated
with investment transactions of the Company.

5. To monitor work systems, personnel and data
used for the Company’s investments and
ensure that they are adequate for the
operation.

6. To report results of the investments to the
Board of Directors on a regular basis.

7. To perform any other task or the task under
its authority and responsibility as assigned by
the Board of Directors.

Remuneration and Nominating
Committee

The Remuneration and Nominating Committee
was established on February 26, 2015, consisting
of three members of Independent Director. The
Board of Directors appoints the Remuneration
and Nominating Committee from Independent
Directors. The Remuneration and Nominating
Committee’s term is three years. As at December
31, 2019, existing members are listed below:

ED) diIKuY
Name Position

1. as.nous nnaginsnu
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana

2. as.ensny Inwcuuna
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul

3. uwAumY SvﬁS'IUUn'
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

nssuMsdas:ia:us:s1unssuNMsassmilia:-nKuaAIauINU
Independent Director and Chairman of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee

NSSUNNSdAS:IA:NSSUNSASSHIA:KUQANGDUINU
Independent Director and Remuneration and Nominating Committee

NsSsSUNSas:IA:NSSUNSASSHIlIa:NKUQAIADUINU
Independent Director and Remuneration and Nominating Committee
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The Scope of Duties and Authorities

1. Nomination

(M

(2)

(3)

(4)

(3)

(6)

(7)

To determine and recommend the structure,
size, composition, and qualification of the
Board of Directors and subcommittees.

To determine policy, criterion, qualification,
and nominating procedures for appointing
directors and subcommittee members to
replace the outgoing members.

To recruit and nominate the directors and
subcommittee members from the qualified
candidates and submit the lists to the Board
of Directors for approval and/or propose them
to the meeting of shareholders for approval,
as the case may be.

Ensure that the board has the appropriate
size and composition in accordance with the
policy framework set by the board of directors.
Including adjustments to be in line with the
changing environment.

To determine and review authority and
duties of the nominating to appropriate
and comply with legal, regulations and
regulatory agencies such as OIC, SET
and SEC etc.

To select, screen and propose a qualified
person to assume the position of President
when it becomes vacant.

To propose the criteria and succession plan
for key management for Board of Director’s
consideration.

Top management means president and executive
president.

2. Remuneration

(M

To determine a policy and structure of
remuneration and other benefits for directors,
board advisors, and subcommittee members
of the Company that are subject to transparent
criteria and are commensurate with their
responsibilities, taking into account duties,
responsibilities and related risks and focusing
on increase in shareholders’ equity in the
long term.
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(2) To determine a policy on remuneration of
top management that is consistent with the
Company’s overall performance and the
performance of that executive.

(3) To determine annual remuneration of the
Board of Directors and subcommittee members
and propose it to the meeting of shareholders
for approval.

(4) To determine annual remuneration of the
individual top management and propose it
to the Board of Directors for approval.

(5) To determine and review authority and
duties of the remunerating to appropriate
and comply with legal, regulations and
regulatory agencies such as OIC, SET and
SEC etc.

3. Others

(1) To perform any other duties as assigned by
the Board of Directors.

Nomination and Appointment of
Directors and Top Management

Nomination and Appointment of Independent
Directors

The Company sets out criteria for selection process
of independent directors. A candidate must
meet the qualifications for director nomination
of the Company as well as the qualifications of
“Independent Director” as defined by the SEC,
SET and OIC, these qualifications are as follows;

Definition of Independent Director

“Independent Director” of the Company means a
person who possesses the complete qualifications
and has the minimum independency as required
under the Notification of the Board of Governors
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and Office of
Insurance Commission as follows:

1. An independent director must not hold more
than 1% of the total number of shares with
voting rights of the Company, parent company,
subsidiaries, associated companies or any
other juristic persons who may have a conflict
of interest, inclusive of number of shares held
by his/her related persons.
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2. An independent director must not be a director
who takes part in management, an employee,
a staff member or an advisor who receives
a regular salary, or a controlling person of
the Company, parent company, subsidiaries,
associated companies or subsidiaries of the
same rank or juristic persons who may have
a conflict of interest, unless the foregoing
relationship already ended for at least two
years before the date of appointment as the
Company’s independent director.

3. An independent director must not have
relationship, whether by blood or by legal
registration, in the form of fatherhood, motherhood,
spouse, sibling and child as well as child’s
spouse of the executives, major shareholders,
controlling persons or persons to be nominated
as executives or controlling persons of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

4. An independent director must not have nor
have ever had a business relationship with the
Company, its parent company, subsidiary, associate,
major shareholder or controlling person, in a
manner that may interfere with his/her independent
judgment, and neither is nor has ever been a
significant shareholder or controlling person of
any person having a business relationship with
the Company, its parent company, subsidiary,
associate, major shareholder or controlling person,
unless the foregoing relationship has ended not
less than 2 years prior to the date of becoming
an independent director

The term “business relationship” in the preceding
paragraph shall include any normal business
transaction, rental or lease of immovable property,
transaction relating to assets or services or granting
or receipt of financial assistance through
receiving or extending loans, guarantees,
providing assets as collateral, and any other
similar actions, which result in the applicant or his/
her counterparty being subject to indebtedness
payable to the other party in the amount of
3% or more of the net tangible assets of the
applicant or twenty million baht or more
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5. An independent director must not be or have

been an auditor of the Company, parent
company, subsidiaries, associated companies
or juristic persons who may have a conflict of
interest, and must not be a major shareholder,
non-independent director, executive or
managing partner of an audit firm which
employs auditors of the Company, parent
company, subsidiaries, associated companies
or juristic persons who may have a conflict
of interest, unless the foregoing relationship
already ended for at least two years before
the date of appointment as the Company’s
independent director.

. An independent director must not be or have

been a professional advisor including legal
advisor or financial advisor who receives an
annual service fee exceeding THB 2 million from
the Company, parent company, subsidiaries,
associated companies or juristic persons who
may have a conflict of interest, and, in case
the professional advisor is a juristic person,
must not be or have been a major shareholder,
non-independent director, executive or managing
partner of the professional advisor, unless the
foregoing relationship already ended for at least
two years before the date of appointment as
the Company’s independent director.

. An independent director must not be appointed as

a representative of the Company’s director, major
shareholder or shareholders who are related to
the Company’s major shareholder.

. An independent director must not undertake any

business in the same nature and in competition
with the business of the Company or its subsidiary,
nor be a significant partner in a partnership or
director with management authority, employee,
staff member or advisor who receives salary or
holds shares exceeding 1% of the total number
of shares with voting rights of another company
which undertakes business in the same nature and
in competition with the business of the Company
or its subsidiary.
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9. An independent director must not have any other
characteristics which make him/her incapable
of expressing independent opinions with regard
to the Company’s business affairs. After being
appointed an independent director possessing the
characteristics as defined in the first paragraph,
the independent directors may be assigned
by the Board of Directors to make a collective
decision on any activities of the Company, parent
company, subsidiary companies, associated
companies, subsidiary companies of the same
rank, major shareholders or persons with control
power in the Company.

In the case where the person appointed by the
Company as an independent director has or used
to have business relationship or provides or used
to provide professional service in the amount
exceeding the value specified in Clause 4 or Clause
6, the Company shall be granted a waiver of
the prohibition from such business relationship or
professional service which exceeds the specified
value after the Company 1) has sought the Board
of Directors’ opinion which is expressed in such a
way that the appointment of such person has no
impact on the discharge of his/her duty and the
rendering of his/her independent opinion, and 2)
has disclosed the following information in the notice
of the shareholders’ meeting on the agenda item
regarding the consideration and appointment of
independent directors:
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(1) Nature of the business relationship or professional
service which causes such person to fail to meet
the specified qualifications;

(2) Reasons and necessity to allow such person to
remain or be appointed as the independent
director; and

(3) The Board of Directors’ opinion on the nomination
of such person for appointment as the independent
director.

The Board of Directors has considered, with due
care, that all independent directors fully meet the
qualifications set forth by the Company and their
resuming in such position for several consecutive
terms does not have any impact on the discharge
of their duty and provision of independent opinions.

Nomination of Directors and Executives
Criteria for Director Selection

The Company has set up the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee to be responsible for
director nomination. The Remuneration and
Nominating Committee determines qualifications
of the required director positions that fit in with the
nature of business operations and strategies of the
Company by considering necessary skills that are
still lacking by using the Board Skill Matrix table
as a supplement for considering professional
skills including specialized expertise, knowledge
and talent, and work experience. The qualified
candidates who have amassed professional
experience, knowledge and capability that will
be useful to the Company will be selected and
appointed as the Company’s directors or executives.
They must also completely meet the qualifications
specified in Section 68 of the Public Limited
Companies Act B.E. 2535 (and as amended) and
the Nofification of the SEC and must not possess
any prohibited characteristics under the SEC Act
(and as amended) and other applicable laws and
regulations.
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I Number of Directors

The existing THREL Board of Directors is composed
of ten members, the number of which is compatible
with the Company’s business operation. All of them
have had work experience or used to assume a
top-ranking position in the business and government
sectors. In view of their educational background,
most of the directors finished their studies in the
field of business administration and economics and
some of them graduated in accounting and laws.
As such, the Board of Directors is composed of
experts with skills and experience in a diverse field
of professions that can suitably cover all aspects
of the Company’s affairs.

Nomination and Appointment Process for Directors

In order to nominate a candidate for director
position, the Remuneration and Nominating
Committee and shareholders’ consent is required.
There is also no limit to how many candidates a
shareholder can nominate. The Company offers
an opportunity to each shareholder to propose
appropriate candidates through the Company’s
website prior to the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders which is usually held 3 months prior
to the end of fiscal year. The candidates must be
competent and have a proficiency background in
various professional fields. Also, the candidates
must have leadership skills, vision, virtue and ethic,
exceptional working history as well as be able
to express opinion freely. The shareholders may
cast their votes for each individual candidate in
accordance with the rules and regulations of the
Company as follows:

Annual Report 2019 81



USGN Thusus:nuda 9Na (UK1U)

(n) gfiokununivin:iuuIALNINIAUKTNKAUGD
KUVIADY

@) @ﬁenfu||da:nu'o:T2?n:uuu|ﬁU\1r‘iUozjﬁ\muL0
AW (N) avAluuIRSVIANUGATASSUIAONAY
nauava:iuulagdsNISIAONAVR:IAON
10ustvynnanSornatunuiid giioRuly
awasnnuvaziuuiduvovaulunisiden
AunssunstignitivgTauindeuawiuld

(M) uARARTdSUAIUUgVAQQIUAIGUAYUITU
gTasuidonavidunssunisiiivl HSo:Iv
1AonaviunSvuu

KANINCUATUNISAQIAONWUSKIS
ACUINSSUNISUSEN Taunisiauaiu:zon
ANU:NSSUNISASSKIllA:NIKUaA1aouInu 1Ju
§ T1srunavavdouskistus:augsiusunis
Thry 1lloSu@agoumsditiussiie TaulNSNUIIN
AruALUANIKU:ALTUNISANSUEIIMUNGUSHS IA:
awngudunaad iUy (Succession Plan)

NS:UDUNISASSHIIIAIANANGUSHIS

ANU:NSSUNISASSHIIA:NIKUQAIOOUIINU

vidudSudayoulunisassriguiaIsudalinu Y
gorudynisinny na:goiudsunisirnoysounu
Aru:NssUNIsUSGNe:IdudSu@agoutunisassmi
GUIANSUCNIIKUNGUSHNISS:QUAN TAin gasuciiruy
s:quUSHIsAOVCIIKUNISNUUOOMINGSWduMSTHEY
TagnaunseovingUAruauUaIKUIED TADIUS
AdWAIUISN Nnu: Us:aunisndniJuds:Tuauae
N1sANTUVIUYOVUSEN 1F3119TussAe0vUSEN
1Juoga na:aunsnusSKHIsvIuUSsadanuUs:avA
IUHUNZZOIUSEN T MuKATNS:UdUNISNSAQIAON
ynnaninuI:ay v:ulldue¥oYANANIKUIEL
Iolduo0 9ANNSSUNISUSENITUG TR1STUN
auldceld uonvINlnruNssUASSHIllA:AIKUQ
AfaouInubrUInQuadovigudunoadiikuy
JuUSK1SBNA2Y

(1) Each shareholder casts a number of votes
equal to the number of the share units.

(2) Each shareholder will cast the votes as stated
in rule number 1 and the votes can be for one
or many candidates. However, the vote must
be evenly split. The Company does not apply
cumulative voting due to the structure of the
shareholders of the Company, which does not
have any absolute major shareholder who
can influence the Company or decide which
candidate to vote for.

(3) Those who receive majority of votes from
shareholders will be elected as Directors of
the Company.

Criteria for Executive Selection

The Board of Directors, upon the recommendation
of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee,
considers an appointment of top management at
president level and higher to be responsible for
business operation, based on both the candidate’s
qualifications for an executive position and the
Company’s succession plan.

Nomination and Appointment Process for
Executives

The Remuneration and Nominating Committee is
responsible for nominating a qualified candidate
for the President position. At the same time,
the President and the Board of Directors are jointly
responsible for nominating senior executives in
the first and second layers below the President.
Quadlified candidates are screened based on their
knowledge, competence, skill and experience
that will be useful for the Company’s business
operation, as well as their profound understanding
of the Company’s business and administrative
ability to achieve the Company’s goals and
objectives. After completion of the selection and
nomination process, names of the qualified persons
will be proposed to the Board of Directors for
approval. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for the Company’s
management succession plan.
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Monitoring of Associated Companies

Under the Company’s mechanism for monitoring of
its associated companies, the Board of Directors
and/or the management are responsible for
nominating and voting on appointment of the
Company’s directors and/or executives to serve
as directors of the associated companies. The
appointed persons shall be obligated to perform
duties in the best interest of the associated
companies that they serve. Number of director
seats in the associated companies to which the
Company is entitled is allocated according to the
Company’s shareholding percentage in any such
entities or as agreed upon in the shareholders’
agreement.

However, there has been no agreement between
the Company and other shareholders with respect
to the management of the associated companies.

Internal Information Disclosure Policy

The Company has a policy to prohibit executives
and employees at all levels from using internal
information for personal benefit. Apart from
the data security measure that limits number of
personnel who could access confidential information
and the requirement for directors and executives
to comply with the SEC regulations, the Company
has incorporated best practices into its code of
business ethics and clearly stipulated disciplines
and disciplinary actions in the Company’s work
regulations. In this respect, all employees are to
sign the data security policy compliance agreement
in a bid to prevent them from using the Company’s
information for personal benefit or to prevent
unauthorized use of such information. Moreover,
the Company adopts the following policy and
measure to monitor the executives’ use of internal
information for personal benefit and for securities
trading:
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1. Provide the directors and executives with

knowledge about their duty to report their
securities holding and the holding of securities
by their spouse and minor children to the SEC
in accordance with Section 59 and penalty
clauses in Section 275 of the Securities and
Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (and the subsequent
amendments), and also to report their and their
spouse’s and minor children’s acquisition or
disposal of securities to the SEC in accordance
with Section 246 and penalty clauses in Section
298 of the Securities and Exchange Act B.E.2535
(and the subsequent amendments).

. Ensure that the directors and executives, including

their spouse and minor children, prepare and
disclose reports on their securities holding and
the holding of securities by their spouse and
minor children of securities in the Company
including changes in such holdings to the SEC
in accordance with Section 59 and penalty
clauses in Section 275 of the Securities and
Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (and the subsequent
amendments), and to submit a copy of such
reports to the Company on the same day that
such reports are submitted to the SEC.

. Ensure that the directors, executives, staff and

employees of the Company and its subsidiary
who have known of the material insider
information that has an effect on prices of
the securities shall exercise caution in trading
securities of the Company during a 30-day
period prior to the date on which the financial
statement or such insider information is disclosed
to the public and during a 24-hour period after
the disclosure of such information to the public.
Those concerned with the insider information
shall not make it available to other parties
until the information is nofified to the SET.
A violation of such rules and regulations shall
be deemed as a disciplinary offence pursuant
to the Company’s working regulations. Persons
committing such offence shall be penalized,
according to the degree of its severity,
ranging from verbal warning to written warning,
putting on probation and termination of
employment by way of dismissal, removal or
discharging, as the case may be.
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4. Prohibit the directors, executives, staff and
employees of the Company from using the
insider information, which has or may have an
impact on changes in prices of the Company’s
securities and has not yet been disclosed
publicly and which they have derived from their
position or status, for selling or buying or for
offering to sell and to buy or for persuading
other persons to sell or to buy or to offer to
sell or to buy shares or other securities (if any)
of the Company, directly or indirectly, in such
a manner that could cause damage to the
Company, directly or indirectly, irrespective
of whether such transaction is performed for
personal benefit or for the other’s benefit or
whether such information is disclosed to allow
for other person to perform such transaction in
exchange for a benefit for themselves.

Auditors’ Remuneration
Audit Fee

Remuneration for the external auditors payable
by the Company and associated companies is
comprised of annual audit fee, review audit fee for
quarterly financial statements, fee for review and
assessment of internal control on investments, and
fee for audit of the risk-based capital report of life
reinsurance business under the OIC’s regulations.
For 2019, a total of THB 2.51 million was paid to
EY Office Ltd.

Non-Audit Fee

In the fiscal year 2019, the Company did not pay
any other service fees unrelated to EY Office Ltd
and auditors.
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Compliance with Good Corporate
Governance Practices by the
Company in 2019

The company has realized and focused on
compliance with the good corporate governance
principles which are trusted to drive its business
with sustainability. Thus, the company has
applied and followed the Corporate Governance
Code (CG Code) for Listed Companies 2017,
which was issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission. In 2019, the company
performed in accordance with such principles,
and specified in CG Handbook. However,
there are some issues which still have not
implemented.

1. The Board of Directors should clearly specify in the
corporate governance policy the term of office
of an independent director to be not longer than
nine years and without any exception.

The Company’s practice:

The Board of Directors has not determined the
term of office of an independent director because
the Company is confident that its independent
directors have profound knowledge, competence,
experience and understanding of the nature of
its business operation and could independently
provide their opinion and advice that are useful
to the Company. They are not, or have no
connection with, the Company’s major shareholders
or persons with control power; are not induced or
manipulated by the management; and meet the
independent director’s qualifications prescribed
by the SEC. Besides, it is somewhat difficult to find
new independent directors in the industry sector
where the Company operates business.

2. The Board of Directors should consider organizing
the board meetings more than 6 times a year.

The Company’s practice:

The Board of Directors shall pre-determine dates of
the meeting to be held at least four times a year
(once every three months) as required by law. In
the event that the meeting is not held monthly, the
Company shall prepare and submit a performance
report to the Board of Directors on a monthly basis to
enable the Board of Directors to continuously monitor,
control and supervise the management’s operation.
In 2019, the Board of Directors held a total of six
meeting that sufficient and appropriate.
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3. A policy should be set on the required meeting
quorum at the time the board of directors will
cast votes, whereby there must be at least
two-thirds of the total number of directors
present at such meeting.

The Company’s practice:

Pursuant to Section 80 of the Public Limited Companies
Act 1992 and Article 25 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, in a meeting of the Board of Directors,
the presence of not less than one half of the total
number of directors is required to constitute a quorum.
In 2019, a quorum as required by law was constituted
at all meetings of the Company’s Board of Directors
and any director who had conflict of interest in any
transaction was not entitled to vote on such issue.

4. The Board of Directors should set up a CG
Committee.

Reasons or Substitution Measures:

At present, the Company has not yet appointed
a CG Committee. However, the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee has proposed this for
the Board of Directors’ consideration and has
duty to monitor and ensure that the Company
complies with the relevant principles of corporate
governance. The Company has all along
remained committed to conducting business
under the principles of corporate governance
and has consequently been rated “Excellent”
in the Corporate Governance Report of Thai
Listed Companies by 10D.

The Company has publicized the significant
CG-related policies in both Thai and English
languages on its website at www.thairelife.co.th
under the topic of “Corporate Governance” for
the shareholders, investors and all groups of
stakeholders and also via the Intranet for its
employees.

The Board of Directors is confident that adherence
to the principles of corporate governance, ethics
and righteousness will help to add value to the
Company in the long term. It is committed to
upgrading the Company’s corporate governance
standard in accordance with the new CG
Code and ASEAN CG Scorecard. The Company’s
compliance with the principles of corporate
governance in 2019 was as described below:
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Principle 1: Establish Clear Leadership
Role and Responsibilities of the Board

* All the directors and executives accept their
roles as leaders of the organization and
perform their duties responsibly, carefully
and with integrity and act as role models all
executives and employees.

* The Board of Directors approves all matters of
significance relating to policy, vision, corporate
strategy, goals, business plans, financial
targets and yearly budgets. Additionally,
overseeing efficient allocation and supervising
the management to be in accordance with the
policy with efficiency and effectiveness. As
well as driving the organization to adapt to
various changing factors in order to maximize
the economic value of the business and the
highest stability for the shareholders.

* The Company segregates the roles, duties and
responsibilities of the Board of Directors, the Board
Chairman, President and the management and
discloses these on corporate governance policy,
annual report and the Company’s website.

* The Board of Directors is firm in its belief that
business should be conducted under strict
rules of corporate governance and sustainable
development by publishing its corporate
governance policy, codes of conduct and
ethics, anti-corruption policies and measures,
and other CG-related policies. All these
standards of corporate behavior are communicated
to all executives, employees and stakeholders
requiring their acceptance and adherence and
monitored through an annual compliance audit.

* The Board of Directors is aware of the importance
of operating the business ethically and in a
socially and environmentally responsible manner
whilst seeking favorable returns and sustainable
growth. The Company also seeks innovative ideas
to create added value for all stakeholders and is
always ready to adapt to change and compete
successfully.
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Principle 2: Define Objectives that
Promote Sustainable Value Creation

* The Company clearly defines and communicates
its corporate goals and objectives to all
employees and strengthen the vision and
values to reflect in the decisions and operations
of employees at all levels to become a corporate
culture.

* The Company promotes innovation and
technology-based functions to control costs,
increase distribution channels, develop products
and supervising the efficient management of
resources, supervising the operations to be
appropriate, and following up the operations
in accordance with the strategy and plans.

Principle 3: Strengthen Board

Effectiveness

Structures, roles and duties of the Board of
Directors and sub-committees

* The Board of Directors comprises 10 members
considered appropriate for the size of the
Company. The balance between executive
and non-executive directors is also considered
appropriate and the number and qualifications
of independent directors are complied with the
SEC’s requirements

* The Board Chairman and the President are not
the same person and their roles and duties
are clearly divided to ensure a balance of
responsibility between them.

* The Board of Directors has appointed
sub-committees to assist in enhancing its efficiency
and overseeing the Company’s operation,
consisting of four sub-committees, which are
the Audit Committee, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Investment
Committee, and the Enterprise Risk Management
Committee. Their duties and responsibilities
are clearly defined, as described in the “sub
committees” Section on Page 68.
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* The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
holds a meeting to set out the criteria and process
of director nomination and appointment to ensure
the candidates have the required qualifications,
knowledge and expertise, and then recommends
the candidates to the Board of Directors for
appointment or approval, as the case may be,
before proposing to the shareholders” meeting for
further consideration on the director appointment.

* All directors understand their role and duty to
report their holding of other positions and shall
report to the Company at the end of each year
and/or when there is any change during the year.

* All board members have work experience or held
senior from various professions that are necessary
for the management of the company’s business
which composing of people with knowledge or
experience in the insurance industry especially in
life insurance, accounting, finance, legal, and risk
that can suitably cover all the company’s business
strategy and goals. As such, the Board of Directors
are currently composed of expert with skills and
experiences. The Company has procedure for a
nomination and appointment process of all the
director’s position.

Self-assessment by the Board of Directors and

sub committees.

* Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors
as a Whole

Annually, each member of the board is required
to evaluate the overall performance of the Board
of Directors, using an evaluation form determined
by the SET Corporate Governance Center. The
purpose of this is to jointly review performance,
problems and obstacles in the past year. The
result will be used as a guideline to improve the
work of the Board of Directors to ensure greater
effectiveness and efficiency. In 2019, the SET
Corporate Governance Center’s evaluation form
was used, similar to the past years. All directors
completed the evaluation and the result showed
that the Board of Directors expressed opinion on
all of the six main subjects of the evaluation as
follows:
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1. The Company Secretary prepares and reviews
the evaluation form to ensure it is efficient, correct
and complete according to the regulatory body’s
practice guideline.

2. The Board of Directors conducts the performance
evaluation at least once a year.

3. The Company Secretary concludes and proposes
the evaluation results to the Board of
Directors’ meeting so as to draw up a guideline
on development and improvement of
operational efficiency.

All of Board of Directors self-assessments are
also carried out on six topics: (1) Structure and
qualification of the Board of Directors, (2) Role,
duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors,
(3) Board meeting, (4) Performance of directors,
(5) Relation with the management, and (6)
Self-development of directors and development
of executives. Self-assessment of the Board of
Directors is also carried out by the individual
directors on three topics: (1) board structure and
qualification, (2) board meeting, and (3) roles,
duties and responsibilities of the board. The
scoring system is divided into five levels as follows:

S:dUﬂ:IIUUIOﬁU AUKUNY
Average Scores Meaning

0.00 - 0.80
0.81 - 1.60
1.61 - 2.40
241 -3.20
3.21 - 4.00
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word
Fair

Q
Good

aun
Very Good
QIAF
Excellent

The performance evaluation of the Board of
Directors as a whole in 2019 showed that the
Board of Directors could perform their duties
in accordance with the principles of corporate
governance, achieving an average score of 3.87.
Meanwhile, the performance evaluation of the
individual directors (self-assessment) resulted in
an average score of 3.89%.

¢ Performance Evaluation of Subcommittees as a
Whole
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The Board of Directors also conducts performance
evaluation of all board-level committees, which
are the Audit Committee, the Enterprise Risk
Management Committee, the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee and the Investment
Committee. Carried out once a year, the said
performance evaluation covers the following
topics: (1) committee structure and quolifico’rions,
(2) committee meeting, and (3) roles, duties and
responsibilities of the committee. The scoring
system is divided into five levels similar to the
performance evaluation of the Board of Directors.
The evaluation results of the Audit Committee,
the Enterprise Risk Management Committee, the
Nominating and Remuneration Committee and
the Investment Committee were “Excellent” with
average scores of 3.95, 3.83, 3.91 and 4.00
respectively.

Performance Evaluation of Top Management

The Board of Directors sets out that there shall be
a performance evaluation of President (CEO) and
other executives on an annual basis at the last
meeting of the year to be a basis for consideration
on their compensation. In this respect, the board
of directors shall consider and recommend
compensation rate for President (CEO) and
executives.

Director improvement

The Board of Directors supports the training and
provision of knowledge for directors so that they
can continuously develop and improve their work.
The Company Secretary will from time to time
provide them with details of the training courses
that are useful for performing their duties.
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The Orientation of New Directors

The Board of Directors is aware of the
importance of orientation for new directors
by having a meeting with the President before
the first meeting. The President and the Company
Secretary presents information supporting the
performance of new directors such as directors
handbook, corporate governance handbook,
code of ethics and conduct, articles of
association, structure of shareholders, operation
performance, minutes of the past board meeting,
regulation related. Including information
relevant to the company’s business operations
to strengthen Strategy understanding Business
direction as well as other important matters of
the company before acting in the first meeting.

Furthermore, if the new directors have not
participated in the courses for directors, the
company shall support the directors to be
trained in those necessary courses such as
Director Accreditation Program (DAP) or Director
Certification Program (DCP), Audit Committee
Program (ACP) (in case the directors are also
the audit committee) organized by Thai Institute
of Directors Association (IOD) and other related
training courses that are necessary.

Principle 4: Ensure Effective CEO and

People Management
Nomination of senior executives

The Board of Directors attaches importance
to the nomination and development of senior
executives to ensure they have the knowledge
and competency to be effective managers. The
Company has appropriate criteria for executive
selection.

Succession Plan

The remuneration and nominating committee has a
plan to recruit personnel who will be responsible for
important administrative positions. The nomination of
the president and senior executives is in accordance
with the nomination procedures from both inside
and outside the organization
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For selecting a person in the organization, this
will consider the most appropriate personnel from
the successors who are assessed as potential.
Such person will receive skill development to
be available to serve an importance position in
case of vacancy, end of service term, or others.

Thus, the procedures in nominating the president
and senior executives are in consideration of
qualifications, expertise, skills, knowledge, moral
personality, and experience of type of business
related to THREL. Such procedures will be
systematically organized in all levels of positions
appropriately and transparently in order to
ensure that THREL is empowered by qualified.

Development of senior executives and employees

The Board of Directors encourages the
development of senior executives and employees
through skills enhancement for current roles
and career advancement. Employees are
provided with both in-house and external
training designed to expand their knowledge
and experience relevant to their roles and
operational efficiency. The Human Capital
Management & Development Department
provides all employees with details of the
training courses that are appropriate, as
described in the “Human Resources” Section
on Page 61.

Remuneration of directors, sub committee and
executives

The Board of Directors is aware of remuneration
to all directors, sub-committees and executives
appropriately in accordance with the duties and
responsibilities participation of each director. The
remuneration of the company shall compare to the
remuneration of similar types of business in other
companies. The board of directors has assigned
the nomination and remuneration committee
to determine and review the criteria, policies
and forms of consideration of compensation or
other benefits to the board of directors and all
sub-committees for presentation. The board of
directors agreed before proposing to the
shareholders’ meeting for approval.
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The remuneration for executives is in accordance
with the criteria by the board of directors, which
are linked to the performance of the company
each year and the annual performance of each
executive and will be submitted for approval from
the meeting of the Board of Directors. In this regard,
the consideration of remuneration for executives
is appropriate for their duties, responsibilities, and
sufficient o motivate and retain quality personnel.

Principle 5: Nurture Innovation and

Responsible Business
Promotion of innovation

The Company encourages innovation in all of its
work units with respect to product development,
marketing, distribution channel, business process
and technology so as to ensure more efficient and
more effective results and enable the Company
to create and maintain a sustainable competitive
advantage.

As regards organizational management and
sustainability, the Company attaches importance
to efficient management of both internal and
external resources. The Board of Directors considers
and approves plans and budgets for all resources
required by the Company to enable the Company
to achieve the corporate goals and objectives
on a sustainable basis, and also oversees
and ensures that the IT risk management
and the policy and measures for IT system security
are in place.

Responsible business operation

Although its reinsurance business has no direct
impact on the environment, the Company sfill
advocates a business operation that is socially
and environmentally responsible and does not
infringe upon stakeholders’ rights in seeking
sustainable achievement of objectives.
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1. Non-violation of human rights

The Company recognizes its responsibility to all
groups of stakeholders such as shareholders,
investors, employees, customers, business partners,
competitors, creditors and others including
communities, society and the environment
in a bid to retain their sustainable mutual
interests by paying attention to rights of those
stakeholders according with the laws and
obligations of the Company. The Company will
not perform any act that infringes upon rights
of stakeholders. The Board of Directors has a
policy on human rights for adherence by all
executives and employees. The Company’s code
of conduct and ethics sets out the standards of
behavior to ensure that stakeholders rights are
fully observed. Any stakeholder damaged by a
failure of the Company to observe such rights
can expect fair and proper compensation for
any damage suffered. More details of the policy
on human rights are available at the Company’s
website under the topic of “Corporate Governance.”

2. Treatment of stakeholders

The Company has formulated a guideline on
treatment of each group of stakeholders for all
directors, executives and employees to adhere to,
the details of which are as follows:

Treatment of shareholders

Apart from the basic shareholder rights established
by law and the Company’s Articles of Association
such as a right to attend the shareholders’
meeting, right fo vote, right fo express opinion freely
at the shareholders’ meeting, and right to earn a
fair return, the Company also provides additional
protection to shareholders rights as follows:

1. Ensure that the shareholders are provided with
full disclosure of all information both financial
and non-financial accurately, correctly and
simultaneously through the Stock Exchange of
Thailand’s electronic media, the Company’s
website, and all other forms of media.
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2. Encourage shareholders to exercise their right to
attend shareholders meetings, their right to vote
and other rights to which they are entitled, and
not perform any act that violates or prejudices
shareholders’ rights.

3. Permits shareholders the right to make suggestions
or lodge a complaint regarding the Company’s
business operation through channels indicated
on the Company’s website. The company
will ensure that all suggestions or complaints
are screened and considered by the Board
of Directors or the concerned parties and the
outcome of such advised to shareholders.
In 2019, there were no suggestions or complaints
filed. Telephone calls were made to Investor
Relations asking for information about the
Company’s business operations.

4. Providing Investor Relations to provide information
and answer questions from shareholders. So that
the shareholders receive the information they
need to be accurate, complete, sufficient, timely,
reliable, and equally.

Treatment of employees

Employees hold the key to a successful reinsurance
and insurance-based enterprise. The Company
seeks to encourage its employees to have pride in
their work and be keen to advance their careers.
The Company therefore attaches priority to staff
development, fair treatment of all employees and
provision of compensation compares favorably
within the insurance industry. The Company also
ensures employees’ wellbeing through a modern
and comfortable workplace environment. Employees
are also provided with health benefits and
recreational activities. The details are as follows:

1. All employees are accorded treatment following
human rights principles with dignity, equality and
without violation or infringement of any other
rights.

2. Employees at all levels are properly selected
through a fair and transparent recruitment
process, based on the required qualifications
for each position, educational background,
work experience and other requirements
without discrimination based on sex, age,
nationality, religious or any other status
unrelated to job requirements.
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3. The Company considers health and safety

at work to be an essential part of employee
treatment. A safety, occupational health and
workplace environment committee ensures that
all aspects of workplace health and safety are
properly considered. The Company also fosters
a pleasant work environment for employees and
provides safety and convenience for customers,
business partners and stakeholders when visiting
the Company. A disaster recovery plan has
been formulated in the event of fire or another
emergency and the plan execution is practiced
annually. All equipment is inspected, maintained
and repaired to always remain functional.
In 2019, there was no report of any employee
accident or sickness at work. The Company has
incorporated the best practice for safety into its
code of conduct and ethics.

4. A welfare committee has been set up as an

employee representative to work with the
management in improving employee welfare and
to arrange activities for employee participation
such as New Year’s activities and other
off-premises events.

5. The Company provides its employees with

pre-employment checkups and annual health
checkups according to age groups. For health
promotion among employees, the Company makes
available standard and by arranging exercise
activities such as yoga, relaxing massage, etc.
in order to encourage exercise and have the
opportunity to meet with employees from different
departments in the same company. By confident
that if the personnel in the organization have
good health will help reduce illness and ultimately
improve work efficiency.
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6. Under the Company’s policy and procedure for

remuneration and welfare, employee compensation
is set out at an appropriate level that is
commensurate with their duties and responsibilities
and competitive with the comparable positions in
similar businesses. The employee compensation
is decided based on salary and compensation
surveys in insurance business and other
industries derived from various sources together
with the individual employees’ yearly performance
evaluation. The Company has also established
an employee provident fund which gives
employees the rights to receive employer’s
contribution and benefit thereof from the
Company based on the required years of
service specified by the Company so that they
will have accumulated savings for their future
needs. Details of employee compensation
(including contributions to the provident fund)
are presented on Page 62.

7. The Company has established a human resource

development policy, encouraging consistent
employee training and competency development
to enhance skills and helping employees advance
their careers. Recognizing that employees are
the most valued asset of the organization, the
Company makes certain that all employees will
be developed in accordance with the Training
Road Map, according to their Career path and
Career plan. Details of the number of hours of
employee training. Disclosed on page 62.

. Employees are encouraged to access information

through channels such as the Company’s
Intranet, internal announcements or e-mails
promoting clear and open communication
between the Company and employees enhancing
\efficiency and developing good team work.

. The Company conducts an annual employee

attitude and satisfaction survey and uses the
comments and suggestions collected from the
survey as a basis for improving work related
issues. Responses to comments or suggestions
are communicated to all employees via the
Company’s Intranet.

10.Channels are made available for employees

to make comments, lodge complaints and raise
any other work-related issues, all of which will
be considered in a fair and transparent manner
and be treated in accordance with the policy on
complaints/whistleblowing and whistleblower
protection.
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Treatment of customers

The Company attaches considerable importance to
customer satisfaction. It has developed a code of
best practice in customer relations including fair and
non-discriminatory treatment of customers, building
of good and sustainable customer relations:

1. The Company treats customers on a fair and
non-discriminatory basis and avoiads any unethical
acts or using the customers’ confidential
information for the benefit of third party.

2. The Company strictly honors the contractual
conditions made with customers and delivers
quality and reliable services in accordance with
its business standards.

3. The Company provides services in a polite
and respectful manner and promotes a good
and sustainable relationship with customers
to ensure friendliness and satisfaction for all
parties, thereby resulting in services rendered with
quality, accuracy, rapidity and responsiveness
to customer needs.

4. The Company will not disclose customers’
information which is derived from its business
operations unless otherwise permitted by the
customers or where it has the duty or is required
by law to make such disclosure or where the
disclosure will benefit insurance business or the
public as a whole.

5. The Company gives advice on and assistance
in matters relevant to its business or matters that
are not beyond its ability.

6. The Company improves and maintains its
service standards to ensure timely and genuine
responsiveness to customers’ requirements and
arranges for a work unit to closely take care
of the individual customers. It also conducts
study, research and co-development of
products and services that meet customers’
demand, additionally preparing analytical
and research papers and arranging seminars
that are useful for customers and business
partners.
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Treatment of business partners, competitors and
creditors

The Company is committed to treating business
partners, competitors and creditors under the rules
for ethical, free and fair trade competition and
within the purview of the laws and their mutual
obligations. This has been incorporated into the
code of conduct and ethics in order for all parties
to abide by, as follows:

1. The Company sets out rules for evaluation and
selection of business partners and counterparties
and opts to do business with those who conduct
business with accountability, ethics and integrity
and are not involved in any forms of fraud.

2. The Company treats all business partners and
counterparties on an equitable and nondiscriminatory
basis and does not take advantage of them.

3. The Company puts in place a management
and follow-up system to ensure the agreement
conditions are completely fulfilled, together
with an anti-corruption process at all steps of
its operation.

4. The Company will not perform any act that will
tarnish its competitors’ reputation through any
allegation that may cause reputational damage.

5. The Company will not seek to obtain confidential
information of its competitors by any unethical or
improper method.

6. The Company will not perform any act that will
infringe upon intellectual property and invention
under the patent of its competitors or other parties.

7. The Company complies with all conditions under
agreements made with creditors in a strict, correct,
complete and punctual manner with respect to
guarantee, fund management, payment and any
other matters agreed upon with the creditors.

8. In the event of failure to fulfill the conditions, the
Company will promptly notify the creditors and
provide reasons and remedial measures for such
failure in order to jointly seek solutions to the
problems.
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9. The Company abides by the anti-corruption policy
and measures and the principle of integrity, and
neither gives nor receives any bribe whether in
form of a gift or any other benéfit. It shall not
perform any act that is conducive to fraud and
bribery, and shall not perform any act or assist in
or support any act that is deemed as a misconduct
according to the relevant laws and notifications,
nor perform any act relating to property in bad
faith or any act that is detrimental to the national
economy or security, nor conceal or take part
in embezzlement or sale of property obtained
from such act. The Company communicates the
said policy to outsiders and its employees for
acknowledgement and adherence to.

10.The Company abides by the laws governing
intellectual property or copyright and will not
infringe on intellectual property or copyright.
Besides, before using any invention or information
belonging to a third party, the Company shall
examine and make certain that it is not an
infringement on intellectual property or copyright
of other party.

In the past year, the Company had no disputes or
complaints with its customers, business partners,
competitors and creditors which could cause a
material impact.

Treatment of regulatory bodies and government
agencies

The Company complies with all laws, notifications,
rules and regulations stipulated by regulatory
bodies and government agencies. Including
corporate governance and anti-corruption
cooperation. On February 6, 2019, the Company
was granted a renewal of its membership of
Thailand’s Private Sector Collective Action
Coadlition Against Corruption (“CAC”). Such CAC
recertification is valid for three years from the
date of approval by CAC Committee.
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Treatment of society and the environment

In conducting its business, the Company pays
attention to all groups of stakeholders and acts as
a good corporate citizen contributing positively
to communities, society and the environment.
The Company has incorporated into the code of
conduct and ethics, to which all staff members must
adhere, the best practices towards society and the
environment including the promotion of an efficient
use of resources, as follows:

1. The Company encourages all employees to join in
CSR activities and community development, and
operates business without causing any impact
on society and the environment. In 2019, the
Company made contributions to communities,
society and the environment as follows: (1)
Creation of a pleasant workplace surrounding;
(2) Donating to Emergency Medical Foundation
of Thailand, Khon Kaen Province, in order to
purchase medical equipment; (3) Donating to
Ban Thung Yao School, Prachuap Khiri Khan
Province in order to support the construction the
toilets for students; and (4) reduction of energy
consumption. All members of the organization have
cooperated in conducting business without posing
any impact on society, the environment and all
groups of stakeholders.

2. The Company is determined to operate business
with fairness and display responsibility to
society, the environment and all groups of
stakeholders in its core business processes. The
Company assesses the impact of its activities on
the economy, society and the environment and
also pinpoints the issues that significantly affect
its business operation or have an influence
on stakeholders’ decision-making so that it
could identify operational goals that cause no
impact on society and the environment and
could disclose the operational information that
is particularly important to the organization and
its stakeholders.
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3. The Company educates its employees on
conservation of natural resources and the
environment. It encourages all employees to
most efficiently use natural resources by, for
example, using the computerized data filing
technology so as to reduce paper consumption,
ensuring that both sides of the paper are used,
using energy-saving electrical appliances,
setting the turn-on/ off times for air-conditioners,
switching off air-conditioners and lightings
during lunch break or when they are not
needed in order to save energy, recycling
used items, etc.

4. Workplace environment is improved and
maintained to be in a tidy, pleasant and
healthy condition up to safety standard to
ensure employees’ security while at work.

5. The Company is aware of the importance
of society and communities. As part of Thai
society, the Company deems that it has duty
and responsibility to support and operate
CSR activities, which is in line with the main
objective of its establishment to operate
business for the utmost benefit of insurance
business and national economy as a whole.
Further details can be found in the Company’s
2019 Sustainable Development Report under
the topic of “Corporate Social Responsibility
Activities.”

Principle 6: Strengthen Effective Risk
Management and Internal Control

Risk management and internal control

* The Company has to face changes of internal
and external factors that may affect its business.
Hence, the Company develops risk management
framework to help accomplish its vision, mission,
short and long-term goals as well as maintain its
financial stability, reputation, image, competitive
advantage and sustainability. This framework is
developed from Insurance Core Principles (ICP)
of the International Association of Insurance
Supervisors (IAIS) and corresponds to the OIC’s.
Risk management requirements.
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* The Company determines Risk Appetite and
applies in the formulation of strategy and
operational policy as well as the establishment
of enterprise risk management guidelines.
In the process of risk management, key risks that
may affect capital fund, financial stability and
reputation of the Company are identified,
assessed and analyzed their interrelation.
In addition, the Company also sets key risk
indicators, appropriate thresholds and risk
measures to manage these risks to be within
acceptance level; and continuously monitor the
effectiveness of these measures. The Company
also focus on learning from actual loss experience
and then revises both risk measures and key risk
indicators to cope with changing environment.
Moreover, the company regularly monitors key
risks and reports the results of risk management
to both Enterprise Risk Management Committee
and Board of Directors every quarter.

* The Board of Directors has entrusted the Audit
Committee with power and duties to review
and ensure that the Company has a sound and
effective internal control and internal audit
system and abides by the law governing
securities and exchange, the SET’s regulations
or the laws applicable to the Company’s
business. The Audit Committee must hold a
meeting at least once a quarter to review and
ensure correctness of the Company’s financial
reporting and to consider and make certain
that the Company’s connected transactions or
transactions with potential conflict of interest
are correct and compliant with the applicable
laws and the notifications and regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission, the
Capital Market Supervisory Board, the Board of
Governors of the Stock Exchange of Thailand,
the Stock Exchange of Thailand and other
concerned authorities. A legal compliance
unit has been set up to ensure the Company
operates business in conformity with the laws
and relevant standards.
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Whistleblowing or complaints

e The Company provides secure and easily
accessible complaint channel and a complaint
management process for employees or outsiders
or stakeholders to report complaints about
damages occurring to them or voice their
concerns or report any suspicious incidents or
clues to possible misconduct concerned with
the Company, as well as to seek advice on
compliance with the code of ethics and the
related policies. The reported information shall
be treated as confidential and the informants
or whistleblowers shall be protected and shall
neither be punished nor be adversely affected from
their reporting such complaints or whistleblowing.
The Company communicates the said policy to
employees and outsiders for acknowledgement
and adherence to. The policy on complaints/
whistleblowing and whistleblower protection can
be found on the Company’s website under the
topic of “Corporate Governance.”

Principle 7: Ensure Disclosure

and Financial Integrity
Information disclosure

The Company attaches importance to maintaining
of financial reliability and disclosing of material
information. The Board of Directors is responsible
for overseeing and ensuring that the Company’s
financial reporting and information disclosure are
carried out in an accurate, adequate, timely and
equitable manner and that the disclosure through
various channels strictly complies with the legal
or regulatory requirements. The Company has
disclosed information to demonstrate its good
corporate governance and business transparency
as follows:

1. The Company prepares, communicates and posts
the corporate governance policy, anti-fraud
policy, anti-corruption policy and measures, and
all other CG-related policies on the Company’s
Intranet and website for the directors, executives,
employees and all groups of stakeholders to
acknowledge and abide by, with a policy review
conducted on a yearly basis
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2. The Company’s information, both financial and
non-financial, is disclosed. The financial information,
especially financial statements, are to be audited/
reviewed by the auditors and approved by the
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
before submission to the SET, the SEC, shareholders,
investors and concerned agencies.

3. Essential information is made available on the
Company’s website in both Thai and English
languages, including information such as nature
of business, list of the Board of Directors and
management team, financial statements, Form
56-1, annual report (Form 56-2), important
news and business activities, which are useful to
shareholders, investors, analysts and the general
public. The Company also discloses the roles and
duties of the Board of Directors and sub-committees,
meeting frequency and meeting attendance of
each director in the past year, details of which
can be found in the “Management Structure”
Section on Page 53.

4. The Company sets a requirement to report
all trading transactions/securities holdings of
directors and executives. The Company Secretary
is assigned to collect all of such information for
reporting to the Board of Directors’ meeting on a
quarterly basis.

5. The Company discloses Investment Governance
Code: | Code and Investment Governance Policy
Principle on the Company’s website.

Investor relations

The Company gives importance to investor relations
management and remains committed to performing
duties with accountability and integrity and
providing accurate, adequate and reliable information
to ensure that the investors, analysts and interested
parties could receive the information in a correct,
sufficient, complete, transparent and equitable
manner. The Company has assigned Ms. Sirin
Dhumma-upakorn to be in charge of “Investor
Relations.” For contact, please call 02-666-9000 or
e-mail to address: corpsecretary@thairelife.co.th.
In 2019, there were 8 meetings held with members
of the media, stock analysts, investors and fund
managers.
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Report on interestst

The Company has established rules and procedures
for reporting interests of directors, executives and
their related persons, which were duly approved
by the Board of Directors, as a guideline for all
concerned parties to abide by. Such report will
be useful for complying with the regulations for
connected transactions and monitoring the interests
of directors, executives and their related persons
with the Company’s business as follows:

1. The Company has a policy for the directors and
executives to disclose their interests and their
related persons in a form designated by the
Company on a yearly basis and when there is
a change in such information during the year.
The directors and executives who have interests
in any transactions of the Company shall not
participate in decision-making, and the transactions
shall be processed according to the Company’s
measures or procedures for approval of related
party transactions.

2. The Company has a policy on trading of the
Company’s securities and procedures for
reporting of securities holding in order for
the directors, executives and employees who
can access and benefit from such information
to abide by, and requires that the directors
and executives have duty to report their
securities holding in accordance with the SEC’s
regulations.

Principle 8: Ensure Engagement and

Communication with Shareholders
Rights of shareholders

The Company gives importance to and respects
rights to which the shareholders are entitled
in their capacity as both investors and owners
of the Company, and accordingly provides the
shareholders with an opportunity to exercise their
basic rights under the laws, comprising right to sell,
buy or transfer shares held by them, right to receive
a share of profit from the Company, right to attend
a shareholders’ meeting, right to cast votes at the
meeting, right to express an opinion, right to receive
equal treatment with respect to share repurchase
by the Company, right to jointly decide on crucial
issues of the Company such as appointment or
removal of directors, appointment of an auditor,
amendment to the Articles of Association or the
Memorandum of Association, etc.
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In addition, the Company pays higher regard to
the shareholders’ rights than to such basic rights,
including right to have access to crucial information
sufficiently and timely via the Company’s website,
right to communicate with the Board of Directors
through the channels designated by the Company,
etc.

The Company communicates with the shareholders,
discloses crucial information and discloses its
shareholding structure in subsidiaries and associated
companies clearly in the annual report and on its
website in order for the shareholders to rest assured
that the Company has an efficient, transparent and
examinable management structure which could
deliver a reasonable shareholder return and lead
to sustainable growth.

Shareholders’ meeting

The Company sets out that an annual general
meeting of shareholders is held within the first
four months after the end of an accounting
year and that, where there is an urgent need to
consider any matter which could affect or is related
to the shareholders’ interest and is subject to the
shareholders’ approval, the Board of Directors may
then convene an extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders case by case. In 2019, the Company
held one shareholders’ meeting, i.e. the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders No. 8 on April 23,
2019, which was attended by 7 out of the total 8
directors, representing 88% of the total. The absent
directors could not attend the meeting because
they were engaged in other business. However, the
Board Chairman and the Audit Committee Chairman
were present at such meeting.

For every shareholders’ meeting, the Company
adopts the best practices in accordance with the
AGM checklist guideline provided by the Thai
Investors Association, which are:
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Treatment of shareholders before the meeting date
1. The Company provided the shareholders with an
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opportunity to propose meeting agenda or submit
questions about the Company and to nominate
qualified persons for election as the Company’s
directors at the 2019 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders (AGM) in advance during the period
from September 12, 2018 to December 31, 2018
through e-mails or letters sent directly to the
Company Secretary. At the end of such period,
none of the shareholders proposed the meeting
agenda or nominated any qualified persons as
the Company’s directors for the Board of Directors’
consideration.

2. The notice of the meeting, meeting agenda

with the Board of Directors’ opinion, proxy
forms prescribed by Ministry of Commerce
comprising Proxy Form A, Form B and Form
C (applicable to only shareholders who are
registered as foreign investors and have
appointed a custodian in Thailand to take
care of their shares), documents or evidence
showing identification of the shareholders or
proxies entitled to attend the meeting, and
documents for all agenda items are publicized
via the Company’s website in both Thai and
English languages at least 30 days ahead
of the meeting date. In 2019, the Company
posted the notice of the shareholders’
meeting on its website 34 days prior to the
meeting date.

3. The Company encourages the shareholders who

are unable to attend the meeting to assign other
person or any of the independent directors as
their proxy to attend and vote at the meeting
on their behalf by using the proxy form in which
they could determine their voting direction. The
Company publicizes the proxy forms and all details
and procedures on its website at least 30 days in
advance. For the AGM held in April 2019, there
were a total of 232 shareholders present at the
meeting, with 83 of them attending in person and
149 by proxy.
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4. The Company delivers notice of the shareholders’

meeting, clearly giving details of the meeting date,
time and venue, meeting agenda, objectives and
reasons, opinion of the Board of Directors, minutes
of the previous meeting, annual report, proxy forms
prescribed by Ministry of Commerce with proxy
granting instructions that are clear and easy for
the shareholders to follow, list of independent
directors whom the shareholders can select and
assign as their proxy to attend the meeting on their
behalf, details of documents that the shareholders
must bring on the meeting date, the Company’s
Articles of Association pertinent to the shareholders’
meeting and method of vote casting, and all
other documents to preserve shareholders’ right
to attend the meeting. The Company submits the
notice of the meeting and all relevant documents
to the shareholders at least 21 days ahead of
the meeting date so that the shareholders could
obtain sufficient, accurate and complete information
and have sufficient time to study the meeting
agenda in advance. Moreover, the notice of the
meeting is published in local newspapers for three
consecutive days at least three days before the
meeting date so that the shareholders would be
informed of the meeting notice in advance and
could prepare for their meeting participation.
In 2019, the Company submitted the notice of the
shareholders’ meeting and relevant documents to
the shareholders 23 days in advance.

. The Company facilitates and encourages all

shareholder groups, whether individual or juristic
persons and institutional investors, to participate
in a shareholders’ meeting in order to allow for
all shareholders to equally exercise their rights at
the meeting, by setting the suitable meeting time
and date and arranging the meeting venue that
is conveniently accessible by all shareholders. The
Company also provides proxy forms, i.e. Proxy
Form A, Form B and Form C, for all shareholder
groups who are unable to attend the meeting
to assign a proxy to attend the meeting on their
behalf. In addition, the Company contacts
institutional investors such as asset management
companies or custodians to dispatch their
representatives to attend the meeting and assists
in screening all documents for meeting attendance
in advance.
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Treatment of shareholders on the meeting date
1. The Company provides convenience for all
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shareholders and proxies, whether they are
individual, juristic or institutional investors, on the
meeting date on an equitable basis. The Company
arranges for a sufficient number of reception staff,
document screening staff and computer equipment
to facilitate the registration, the meeting and
the vote counting in an efficient manner. English
language interpreters are available for foreign
investors who wish to attend the meeting.

. Registration begins 1 hour and 30 minutes before

the start of the meeting. The Company will not
perform any act in such a way that will restrict
rights of the shareholders to attend the meeting
and all shareholders are entitled to register for
attending the meeting at any time throughout
the meeting.

3. The barcode system is used for meeting

registration and vote counting to ensure
accuracy, convenience, and rapidity.

. Before the start of the meeting, the Chairman

will introduce to the shareholders the Board of
Directors, the management, the auditors and the
legal advisor who has been assigned to inspect
the casting and counting of votes, and will inform
the meeting of the number and percentage of
shareholders attending the meeting in person and
by proxy and also explain to the shareholders
about how to cast votes and use voting ballots for
each agenda item. The voting ballots for director
election will be separated from other agenda
items. The shareholders and proxies attending the
meeting have the right to cast votes equal to the
number of shares they hold. One ordinary share
is equal to one vote. The Company has only one
type of shares, i.e. ordinary shares, and does not
have any preferred shares and any other types
of securities.

5. The Company’s legal advisor is assigned to

serve as inspector of vote casting and vote
counting in order to monitor and ensure that the
registration, the meeting and the vote counting are
conducted transparently and accurately at
every step in accordance with the laws and the
Company’s Articles of Association, while the
shareholders are given an opportunity to volunteer
to witness the vote counting and to raise any
questions regarding the vote counting.
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6. The Company conducts the meeting according to

the agenda and has no policy to add any new
agenda items or change material information
without notifying the shareholders in advance.
During the meeting, the Chairman gives the
opportunity to the shareholders to raise
questions and express opinions on each agenda
item and provides clarifications to all queries to
the shareholders’ satisfaction. At the previous
meeting of shareholders, the Board Chairman, the
Audit Committee Chairman, Director and President,
senior management, the auditors and the legal
advisor participated in the meeting to answer the
questions raised by the shareholders.

7. The shareholders are instructed to use voting

ballots for all agenda items. Voting ballots are
provided for each agenda item. Separate ballots
are used for each director election to enable the
shareholders to vote as they deem appropriate.
Voting ballots are collected in the meeting room
and the results of such vote counting will be
combined with the votes indicated in advance in
the proxy forms before announcing the final voting
results to the meeting.

8. The shareholders who join the meeting after

the meeting already started have the right to
cast votes on the agenda item that is still under
consideration and has not yet been voted on.

Treatment of shareholders after the meeting date
1. Resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting will be

disclosed together with voting results by the
next business day immediately after the meeting
date through a news release to the SET. For the
2019 shareholders” meeting, the Company could
disclose the meeting’s resolutions and voting
results on the day of the meeting.

. The Company prepares Minutes of the

Shareholders’ Meeting by containing therein
all material information such as explanations,
questions, comments, voting procedures, voting
results, and so on. For the 2019 Annual General
Meeting, the Company completed the Minutes
within 14 days after the meeting and submitted
to the SET in accordance with the SET’s
requirements. The Minutes were also available
on the Company’s website for the shareholders
who were or were not at the meeting to view.
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3. Visual records of the meeting were also made
available for shareholders who did not attend the
meeting or any interested persons to view on the
Company’s website.

Equitable treatment of shareholders

All groups of shareholders, whether major
shareholders, minority shareholders, institutional
investors or foreign investors, are treated on a
fair and non-discriminatory basis with their rights
being equally protected. The Company abides
by the following best practices:

1. All shareholders are given an equal right,
regardless of the percentage and period of their
shareholding, to propose meeting agenda in
advance and to nominate persons for director
election. The Company has disclosed this
information via the SET and posted the
clearly-defined relevant process on the Company’s
website. For the recent 2019 Annual General
Meeting, the shareholders were allowed a period
of time from September 12, 2018 to December
31, 2018, or more than three months before the
end of the accounting year, to propose director
nomination and meeting agenda through e-mails
or letters sent directly to the Company Secretary
for compilation and submission to the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and/or the Board
of Directors for further consideration. In the event
that the Board of Directors resolves to reject the
agenda items proposed by the shareholders, the
Company will notify the shareholders of reasons
for such rejection at the shareholders’ meeting.
Besides, the shareholders who attend the annual
general meeting are also granted the right to
additionally nominate persons for director election
directly to the meeting. At the recent 2019 Annual
General Meeting, none of the shareholders
nominated any qualified persons for election as
directors or proposed any additional agenda
items.

2. The shareholders are able to forward their
questions, comments or suggestions in advance
through e-mails or letters directly to the
Company Secretary prior to the meeting date so
that all questions could be gathered for further
clarification at the meeting. In 2019, there were
three questions from shareholders sending to the
Company in advance and all questions were
disclosed in the minutes of the Annual General
Meeting No.8 on the website of the Company.
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3. In order to protect the interest of and facilitate

communication with all groups of shareholders,
the notice of the meeting, meeting materials,
Minutes of the previous meeting, and any related
information are posted on the Company’s website
and available in both Thai and English. The
Company also assigns its staff members proficient
in English language to serve as interpreters for
the foreign shareholders who attend the meeting.

. The meeting is conducted according to the

agenda indicated in the meeting notice. The
Company adheres to the policy and does not add
any new agenda items at the meeting without
notifying the shareholders in advance.

. All shareholders have an equal access to the

Company’s information. Up-to-date information
is disclosed through the Company’s website, the
SET’s information disclosure system as well as the
Company’s investor relations unit.

. The Company has devised measures against

misuse of internal information by its directors,
executives and employees, as described in
“Internal Information Disclosure Policy.” Information
regarding interests of the directors, executives and
their related persons is reported to the Board of
Directors. The directors or executives who have a
conflict of interest in or are connected with any
transactions shall be prohibited from involving in
the approval process for any such transactions.
The Audit Committee is assigned to follow up on
this matter and report to the Board of Directors
on a quarterly basis.
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Policy Overview

THREL's main objectives are to operate their
business to optimum levels to benefit the Thai
insurance sector and the country’s overall
economy. The Company strongly adheres to a
good governance policy and social responsibility
to strengthen the insurance industry and the
overall economy of the country which supports
the Company’s sustainability into the future.

The commitment of the Company is to build a
strong society that leads to sustainable growth
and long term development through: -

* Business partners, the insurance business sector
and Thai people in general by cooperatively
developing and building business with the
Company’s counterparties and to effectively
respond to society’s current requirements.

Benefits for shareholders through growth in
revenue and profits and maintaining sustainable
growth and development.

* Development of employees through skills
improvement and promotion of good quality
of life for all personnel.

CSR Activities and Reports

In 2019, the Company produced its Sustainable
Development Report to publicize its CSR
activities that support sustainable development
in tandem with the Global Reporting Initiative
(GRI) framework so that all stakeholders have
access to relevant information. The report
is available in Thai and English and can be
downloaded from the Company’s website
at http://www.thairelife.co.th/TH/investor-
shareholder.php
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Business Operation with Impacts on
CSR

The Company conducted its business for the
best interests of the Company and the insurance
industry, while paying attention primarily to society’s
needs without harming society and the environment
and violating the rights of stakeholders.

Social and Environmental Contribution
Activities

Apart from its core business processes where
impacts on society, the environment and stakeholders
are taken into account, the Company, with an
awareness of the importance of society and
communities, has sponsored and launched
social and community development activities on a
continuous basis. Details of the Company’s CSR
activities in 2019 are presented in the Sustainability
Report 2019, which is downloadable from the
Company’s website at http://www.thairelife.
co.th/TH/investor-shareholder.php

Anti-Corruption Activities

Since 2012 the Company has seriously adopted
a policy to act against corruption and bribery
for commercial benefit. The policy is a part of the
Company’s business ethics code in respect of best
practices towards customers, competitors, and state
agencies. Details the about Company’s CSR activities
in 2019 are provided in the Sustainable Development
Report 2019, which can be downloaded from the
Company’s website at http://www.thairelife.co.th/
TH/ investor-shareholder.php

CSR Plan

The Company is committed fo operating its business
in a fair and responsible manner towards society, the
environment and all groups of stakeholders involved in
the core business processes of the Company.
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Nature of Related Transactions

The Company has business transactions involving
related parties because shareholders and/or
directors participate in them, either because of
personal relationships or simply from taking part in
the same transactions. In such cases, the Company
takes into account the true nature of the relationships
to a greater extent than the legal forms they
take or the contracts behind them. Most of these
transactions come about in the ordinary course of
business, with prices at the standard rates. These
are disclosed in the list “Related Transactions,”
in the Notes to Financial Statements for 2019.

Necessity and Reasonableness of
Related Transactions

Such related transactions that the Company has with
the related parties are considered to be beneficial
to the business development and will enhance the
business and create stability for the company, which
can be considered a maximization of the existing
resources together with the company and also a
cutting down on the expenses.

Policy on Interest and Conflict of
Interest

The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of
prevention of interest and conflict of interest and has
established a policy on interest and conflict of interest
as follows:

1. The Board of Directors shall prudently control and
monitor any fransactions that are prone to a conflict
of interest by determining approval procedures for
connected transactions in writing.

2. The Audit Committee shall report transactions
with a possible conflict of interest and connected
transactions to the Board of Directors on a
quarterly basis.
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3. If there are any connected transactions that are
subject to disclosure rules or approval from the
shareholders pursuant to the SET’s requirements, the
Company shall, before entering into the transactions,
clearly disclose to shareholders the information
regarding relationship of the connected persons,
policy on determination of transaction value,
reasons for entry into the transactions, and opinion
of the Board of Directors on the transactions.

4. The Board of Directors sets out that materials
on related party transactions shall be disclosed
in the annual registration statement (Form 56-1)
and annual report of the Company, with defails
about names of persons who may have a conflict
of interest, relationship, nature of the transactions,
conditions, policy on price determination and value
of the transactions, reasons and necessity of the
transactions.

Guidelines on Consideration of
Transactions that Have/May Have a
Conflict of Interest

Consideration of transactions that have/may have
a conflict of interest shall comply with the rules set
forth by the SEC and the SET. The Audit Committee
has duty to monitor and ensure that the rules are
strictly adhered to, as well as duty to compile and
report transactions with related parties that may
lead to transactions with a possible conflict of
interest to the Board of Directors on a quarterly
basis.

Measures or Procedures for Approval

of Related Party Transactions

The Company abides by the law governing securities
and stock exchange and the regulations, notifications,
directives or requirements of the Capital Market
Supervisory Board and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
The executives or stakeholders who have a vested
interest are not allowed to participate in the approval
of such transactions. In the case where it is legally
required to obtain approval from the Board of Directors’
meeting, the Company will arrange the Audit
Committee to join the meeting to consider and advice
regarding necessity and reasonableness of any
such transactions. The principles for entering into the
arm’s-length transactions and the non-arm’s-length
transactions are as follows:
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Arm’s-length transactions

The Board of Directors gives approval in principle
for the management to approve the arm’s-length
transactions executed by the Company and its
subsidiaries with the directors, executives or related
persons provided that those transactions are under the
same trade terms and conditions as those executed
by persons of ordinary common sense with general
counterparties in the same situation and the
bargaining power thereof is free from their influence
in their capacity as directors, executives or related
persons. The Company will present a summary report
on the said transactions to the Audit Committee’s
meeting and the Board of Directors’ meeting on a
quarterly basis.

Non-arm’s-length transactions

The non-arm’s-length transactions are to be considered
by the Audit Committee before proposing to the Board
of Directors and/or the shareholders’ meeting for
further consideration and approval. In this respect, the
Company must observe the law governing securities
and exchange and the regulations, notifications,
directives or requirements of the Capital Market
Supervisory Board and the Stock Exchange of Thailand,
including the disclosure rules for connected transactions.
In the case where the Audit Committee has no
expertise in the consideration of any potential related
party transactions, the Company will appoint an
independent specialist or its auditor to render opinion
on such transactions to be a basis for decision making
by the Audit Committee and/or the Board of Directors
and/or the shareholders, as the case may be. This is
to ensure that such transactions are necessary and
reasonable and are executed in the interest of the
Company. The Company will disclose information on
the related party transactions in the annual registration
statement and notes to the financial statements that
have been audited by the Company’s auditor. Related
Party Transactions
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Policy or Trend of Related Party

Transactions in the Future

In enter into any related party transactions in the
future, the Board of Directors must comply with the
law governing securities and exchange and the
regulations, notifications, directives or requirements
of the Capital Market Supervisory Board and the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, including the disclosure rules
for connect transactions of the Company or its
subsidiaries, in accordance with the accounting
standards set out by the Federation of Accounting
Professions. The current related party transactions
with other life insurance companies are the usual
transactions executed in line with condition in general.
The related party transactions made with Thaire
Services Co., ltd. and Thaire Actuarial Consulting Co.,
Ltd., include human resource management service fee,
IT consulting and service fee, and office space rental,
all of which will continue to take place. The human
resource management service fee and the IT consulting
and service fee are made through existing resource
to ensure cost saving, whereas the office space rental
fee is comparable with space rental by other nearly
companies in nearby areas.
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Overview of Operating Perfaormance

The Company has engaged in life reinsurance of all
classes. The reinsurance premium written are partially
appropriated for insurance reserve which is further
invested fo bring in returns that could cover contingent
liabilities. Thus, in addition to life reinsurance, investment
is extremely crucial for our business operation.

Our major income source is net reinsurance premium
written which make up 97-99 percent of total income,
followed by investment income which is around 3-4
percent of total income. The remainder includes
commission and brokerage income and other incomes.

The Company provided reinsurance for domestic life
insurance companies. The services are classified by two
main types of business, which are conventional and
non-conventional reinsurance. Over the past 8-9 years,
non-conventional reinsurance has played a pivotal role
in growing the Company’s overall premiums. It has
experienced robust growth and contributed an
increasing proportion in the Company’s total
reinsurance premium written when compared with the
past records

On the investment side, the Company enjoyed an
average rate of return on investment of 4-5 percent
in 2017 to 2019. The main investment assets are
held-to-maturity investments such as government and
state enterprise securities, debentures, etc., which
make up about 45-60 percent of total investment
assets, moreover by available-for-sale investments
such as equity securities and unit trusts, accounting for
approximately 40-50 percent of total investment
assefs. Aside from the above is trading investment
accounting for approximately 3-4 percent.
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Operating Performance
Income

The Company’s income is mainly derived from
earned premium, commission income and profits from
investment of its associated companies, net investment
income, profits from investment as well as other
incomes. In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s total
income was recorded at THB 2,388.9 million, THB 2,426.3
million and THB 2,186.3 million respectively, representing
a decrease rate of 1.5 percent and growth rate 11.0
percent respectively. A decreasing in the Company’s
total income derives from declining in reinsurance
premium written was the result from slowdown in
domestic life insurance business will be described as
follows:

Earned Premium

Earned premium is the amounted of total premiums
calculated from gross reinsurance premium written less
reinsurance premium ceded and change in unearned
premium reserves.

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s income had
gain from earned premium of THB 2,281.5 million, THB
2,347.5 million and THB 2,096.5 million respectively,
representing a decrease rate of 2.8 percent and a
growth rate of 12.0 percent respectively.

In terms of net reinsurance premium written, the growth
was primarily caused by the expansion of domestic
life insurance market which increased annually. Life
insurance market of Thailand’s CAGR between years
2015-2019 was at 3.3 percent while the Company’s
CAGR of the same period was approximately 6.0
percent, resulting in increased gross written premiums
from life insurance companies. However, in 2019, the
growth rate of the domestic life insurance business
dropped by approximately 2.7 percent, with the
growth rate of the Company dropped by 2.5 percent.
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Net premium written in Thailand During 2015-2019 (THB Million)

IDyUs:AURUSUZONUSENS:HI WU 2558 — U 2562
THREL's Net premium written During 2015-2019(THB Million)

(KUDY: A1UUN) 627,606

CAGR: 3.3% 610,474
600,303
568,002
536,839 I
2558 2550 2560 2561 2562
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(KUDY: A1UUN) 2,400

CAGR: 6.0% 2,340
2,157
1,975
] I
2558 2559 2560 2561 2562
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Avr: ANVIUANLNSSUNSTIAUNIA:AVIASUNSUS:NOUSSARUS:AUNY lIa:ALIALUS:NUZSalng

Source: OIC and the Thai life Assurance Association
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Another contributing factor was growth in non-conven-
tional reinsurance, which the Company has innovated
and developed in partnership with a life insurance
company, which it has grown remarkably in the past
8-9 vyears, resulting in a higher market share when
compared with the conventional reinsurance.

(KU2u: &uun)
(Unit: THB Million)

e . N 2019 2018 2017
IDgUs:nunuasnioldusigla
(Earned Premium) Awuun | Seva: Awuun | Seva: Auuin Soua:
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
msUs:Au3aus:nnduiGy 1,261.5 55.3  1,306.8 557  1,149.4 54.8
(Conventional Reinsurance)
misUs:Ausaus:nnsouiiauun 1,020.0 44.7 1,040.7 44.3 947.1 45.2
(Non-conventional Reinsurance)
Sou 2,281.5 1000 2,347.5 1000 2,096.5 100.0

Total
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Ul 2562 U 2561 11a:U0 2560 usSGnUs1wld
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Net Investment Income

Net investment income is income derived from
investments in assets, including loans. It consists of
interest, dividend, gain on sales of investments, fair
value gains and losses, share of profit from investment
in an associate, and so on.

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company generated
net investment income of THB 100.1 million, THB 74.1
million and THB 82.4 million, respectively, increased
35.0 percent and decreased 10.0 percent respectively.
The rates of return on investment were 5.1 percent, 3.8
percent and 4.6 percent, respectively.
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Net investment income will vary according to
investment situation each year; for example, interest
rate from debt securities or dividends from securities
investment in the stock market, etc. In 2019, the
Company’s revenues from investment increased mainly
due to the fact that dividends received from investment
in equity securities, gain from sale of investment and
fair value gain in investment.
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By 3.8 4.6
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! Investment Yield: Divide the summary of net investment income, gain (losses) on investments, share of profit from investment in an associate,

and fair value gain (losses) by the average investment assets.

’2 Investment assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, trading investments, available-for-sale investments, held-to-maturity investments,

general investments, loans, and investments in an associated.
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AFNUTuNIsSuUs:NUNY 1,120.0
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Underwriting profit margin (percent)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018 classified business lines
into two lines as conventional and non-conventional
reinsurance as follows:

(KU2Y: &Auun)
(Unit: THB Million)

msus:nuzdads:inn
Souwcuun (Auuin)
Non-Conventional
Reinsurance

msuUs:nuada
Us:nnaviau
(Auunn)
Conventional
Reinsurance

Non-Conventional
Reinsurance

943.0 1,071.4 956.5
77.0 235.3 84.2
25, 18.0 8.1

In the above table, the underwriting profit margin
from conventional reinsurance decreased at higher
rate due to the fact that domestic life insurance
market conditions, while underwriting profit margin
from non-conventional reinsurance is more relatively
stable because the Company have capability to
control the quality of reinsurance underwriting.
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Auun uAIAaU MiKTU 3 URdhuun USBNTSas AU
AYAUTKUNQINU (Loss Ratio) INIAUSoUa: 64.4
sova: 60.6 laisova: 44.4 AU TaunsITu
JuzovAAUTHunaInuiuzoy 3 Uhauuiduwanan
UININNISIBUFUIOINMSSUIUUS:NUA—NWAIGUTO
awani:aalaus:nudda Fuiduviundsasidou
AAUTuNaInulauinAvANNIWAANUZASU Nl USEN
ushisdanisidTagidonTsrunuRusBnuousu
AWIADNIA ogwIsRaw USBNUUTUULITADUANSAST
AaUThunainuikegTuintuzininu:ay Tagdsuusy
Noulin1siivnsruSuds:AUNYKSoUNIANATYTY?
Js:nunocdendwaznanu idudu

ogwisfawalauTnunannue:bwaconis
FUsTUANUNIKGRNTS (Profit Commission) Fue:nand
aold sasddumAFulrkunainu (Loss Ratio) AUDLU
NAEUTKUNalnuia:ATFIgiun1syanIsAaUTKUY

nainu IWSguiRvunuiluds:nunuaendeldusiold

Tguo‘oswéaumﬁuThunounuﬂund\ﬁuouﬁUsznou
r‘ﬁz??ums:?oUs:ﬁn@mwaoumséuds:ﬁuﬁwo\]uSGn
NISUNISOS1AIUSIU K80 “Combined Ratio” Nw:ld
osuluaold

Expenses

Two major expense categories for the Company are
1) claim expenses and 2) underwriting expenses.

Claims Expenses

Claims expenses consist of claims incurred, whether
paid or unpaid to the reinsured in case of the insured’s
becoming ill, having an accident or passing away, and
benefits under a life insurance policy payable upon the
insured reaching the age specified in the policy or upon
completion of a period of time specified in the policy,
deducted by claims recovered from reinsurance. These
also include actuarial claim liability reserve, which
is derived from the best possible estimate of claims
expected to be paid to the insured in the future for
both the reported and the unreported losses incurred
before or on the estimation date, and include loss
adjustment expenses.

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company recorded claims
expenses at THB 1,420.6 million, THB 1,370.5 million
and THB 915.3 million respectively, representing for
three years a loss ratio of 64.4 percent, 60.6 percent
and 44.4 percent respectively. An increasing in claim
expenses in the past three year mainly from the
increase in health insurance that grow in accordance
with the life insurance market conditions together
with the higher average of loss ratio than other
products. Nevertheless, the Company can manage by
considering the risk at acceptable risk level, however,
the Company has a policy to control a loss ratio to be
in the appropriate level by improving the conditions
for underwriting or terminate the loss reinsurance
contracts and so on.

Nevertheless, claim payment will directly aoffect the
profit commission which will be discussed later on.
Loss ratio will be calculated from compensation and
expenditures in handling with such compensation,
compared to earned premiums. The loss ratio will
be employed as one of the instruments in measuring
the Company’s efficiency in the reinsurance business,
called “the combined ratio” which will be explained
in defails later.
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AFNoiun1sSuUs:Nuny

AT 19TunisSuds:nuny Us:nouaoy
mukbe AEIoiunssSuls:AuNudU 1A:ATEIg
fumsaiduviu

AUIKGR
INATGNAIDUIAITINAUIIENUUNTS
Us:noussiingouustn 10umsmarynyids:nunucio
fuusenUs:Nudda  Mmelddarynyds:iunudos:iaay
s1unMisUnygduds:noudoy (1) 1UuUs:AunuciosSu
(2) MIFNUATVRNTG 1IN MUKt weudoanay
Tudryey Az (3) AAUTKUNAINUIIYAIWADIUSUEQ
aensusssutudnyryds:nunucetuq auduauiinbe
AdSguiaiou douaavigannmisSuds:nunycoau
dryrys:nunudo Amuiktanuveonidu 2 d@du Ao
AUIKEaRGouILTAINUSENUS:AUFI QljoAWIUTA
USUﬂ (Commission) l1a: AUIKORMIS (Profit Comm|55|on)
FIHUIOTY dounuvnilseineanissuds:Aufun
USBndovingiRusenUs:Nudandryny Tagdduluy
fise:08as11TuIUKEoa0AYINEARTTS9INNISSU
Us:iufy KINuUuRSUUS:AUAYTNST19AEUTH
nalnuay dsunuvriisTn@amssuUs:AUNYTUARY Y
due 2:08as1anavndelit nutiduluauieuly
Fovarynyus:nunuciolca:adu

U 2562 U 2561 n1a:0 2560 uSGNDAUIKGR
IMAU 536.1 Aluuln 548.6 AUuin lla: 593.4 Au
uIn awaAdu AaidusasidsumnikbeansIninu
sova: 24.2 sova: 24.1 IAaSoua: 28.6 aWAIGU
Taglud 2561 AKGddas1dounUSuUaIaQavD
anaranuNnAUIKerTsRacavitiovnwans
SuUs:AufivacavitiovanAEUTKUNAINURITUIU

Sas1dduAIUIKbYANSAIUINUAINAUIKTR
Kns1olda1dinie 1WSouiRguniuIbuds:Aufivde
Afioldus19Td TaudasiasunuikbeansiJunriv
Tuo\ln’Us:neuFiTz??unjs5003:ﬁn§mwae\1ms
SuUs:Mungaovustn NISYNI16asIAIUSIU HED
“Combined Ratio” Ne:ldosuruciolU

Underwriting Expenses

Underwriting expenses include commission expenses,
other underwriting expenses, and operating expenses.

Commission expenses

As mentioned earlier, the Company’s core business
is to provide reinsurance services for life insurance
companies. Under the reinsurance contract, account
items consist of (1) reinsurance premium (2) deductible
expenses such as commission expenses as agreed
upon in the contract and (3) claim payable based
on the liability per policy under such reinsurance
contract. Therefore, the commission is comparable
to a discount payable from reinsurance under the
reinsurance contract. Commission is divided into 2 parts,
commission payable to the life insurance company
when transferring a transaction to the Company and
profit commission which relies mainly on profit sharing
from quality of such transaction the Company has to
pay to the life insurance company. If the Company has
to pay a large amount of claims for such transaction,
the profit commission payable to the Company will
decline as a result or not be paid at all. Nonetheless,
the profit commission will vary based on each
reinsurance contract’s terms and conditions.

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company recorded
commission expenses at THB 536.1 million, THB 548.6
million and THB 593.4 million respectively, representing
net commission expenses ratio of 24.2 percent, 24.1
percent and 28.6 percent respectively. In 2018,
commission expenses have a lower ratio which mainly
due fo decreasing in profit commission from insurance
result is decreasing and also higher in claim incurred.

Net commission ratio will be calculated from
commission expenses less commission income,
compared to earned premium. Net commission ra-
tio is regarded as one instrument in measuring the
Company’s efficiency in the reinsurance business,
called the combined ratio which will be discussed
later on.
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ANgIroiunissuls:fiufiudu
ATFI1utunissuus:fiufududs:noudoy
NUAUNUAITNIIUATUNSSUNSANAUIIA:AVIASUNIS
Us:noussieus:Nuny milFsowdnnuiinusdoiu
msSuds:AuNg 1a:ATFIoRINgIAUNMSSUUS:AUNY
BuanuRanaviuludnynyus:iunoce

Ul 2562 U 2561 11a:U 2560 usSENUANTENY
TuMsSuUS:AUAYAUINAU 33.9 A7UUIN 25.2 A1UUn
na: 24.2 A2uuln owaau Aaildudasinisiaula
IWUIusSova: 34.3 1a:Sovua: 4.4 anuarqu

AF19tunIsatuviu

AfFuTunIsalltuviuds:noudrunigaiy
wdnviu ATFUINYINUOIATNS ANIBOINS lIA:
AmFaglunisatuviudu

ul 2562 U 2561 na:U 2560 uSGNUATENY
TumscdduuINAU 92.2 AuuTn 85.4 AUUIN NIA:
75.7 &Uuuin mwaidu Aaidusasinmsiauiaiiivau
sova: 7.9 llaisoua: 12.8 auaau Taglul 2562 lia:
U 2561 migngiunmisaituniuniDuguddevornanan
AiFnuRINuodouiuyAnaINS

SasddumitdavsSuds:nununa:Aaidarwaltu
v

das1dcuntFerusSuds:nungna:ATFY
dniguvauiduntviuevAUs:nounlgdtunissa
Js:AnSnweounisSuls:Aunyaovustn nisun
219AS1A@dUSOU K89 “Combined Ratio” &as1dd5U
ATTFI19SuUsNUNYIa:ATTFI19aTUNIUAIUDTY
'\nncuasouao\ln'szM'wTums§uLLJs:ﬁuﬁU5u
la:ANFIwaTUNIU - IUSouIngunuibuds:Nnunyae
Sudans dasidsuniFvrvsuds:nununa:Anigvng
AnIGuudavusen Tul 2562 U 2561 11a:U 2560 1mMnu
Sova: 5.4 Sova: 4.7 lla:Sova: 4.7 muadu
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Other underwriting expenses

Other underwriting expenses consist of contribution
the Office of Insurance Commission, employee’s
expenses which are relate for underwriting and other
underwriting expenses as agreed on in the reinsurance
contract.

In 2019, 2018, and 2017, the Company recorded other
underwriting expenses of THB 33.9 million, THB 25.2
million and THB 24.2 million respectively, accounting
for a growth rate of 34.3 percent and 4.4 percent
respectively.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses comprise of personnel expenses,
premise expenses, taxable expenses, and other
operating expenses.

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company recorded
total operating expenses at THB 92.2 million, THB 85.4
million and THB 75.7 million respectively, accounting
for a growth rate of 7.9 percent and 12.8 percent
respectively. In 2019 and 2018, an increase in
operating expenses mainly resulted from an increase
in personnel expenses.

Underwriting Expenses and Operating Expenses
Ratio

The ratio of underwriting expenses and operating
expenses are one of the instrument employed in
measuring the Company’s efficiency in reinsurance
business which is called “combined ratio”. Such ratio
is calculated from other underwriting expenses plus
operating expenses in comparison with net written
premiums, underwriting expenses and other operating
expenses. In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the ratio of
underwriting and operating expenses was equivalent
to 5.4 percent, 4.7 percent and 4.7 percent
respectively.
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50151d5UsdU (Combined Ratio)

8081d2USoU (Combined Ratio) 10udasn
dountvihiFnuagviwsrkargiunisdads:Ansmwaon
MsSuUs:Nung 1agsas1ddusIUUS:NOUGIUSASIAdU
e Al

1) dasrddumaulKunainu

2) sasrdasumuinbeans

3) sasrdrumiFusSuds:nunyia:AilFany

Adunu

Gudunin dasiasusoudindiseva: 100
ldauaNssviMIsMINNIsSuUUs:AUNY Sas1AdUSIU
JouUsEniul 2562 U 2561 11a:U 2560 INNU Sova:
94.0 SovA: 89.4 A Soya: 77.7 muarau Tagiul 2562
ooswaousamwuau|uo\mnusunuooswaoumﬂuThu
naNUIBULINAU &KSUT 2561 SasddusOUITUIU
|uo\mnusunuooswaoumauThuno||nu\nuUs AU
nauia:Us: nuﬂzjmwlwumnzju

OIS WIAQUSASIAIUSIU
Table illustrating the combined ratio

Combined Ratio

Combined ratio is a commonly used ratio in measuring
the efficiency of insurance. Combined ratio consists of
the following:

1) Loss ratio
2) Net commission ratio

3) Underwriting expenses and operating
expenses ratio

Consequently, if the combined ratio is lower than 100
percent, meaning that the Company has profits from its
reinsurance business. The Company’s combined ratio in
2019, 2018 and 2017 were 94.0 percent, 89.4 percent
and 77.7 percent respectively. In 2019, the Company
experienced an increasing in combined ratio due fo
higher loss ratio. In 2018, an increasing in combined
ratio was a result of a increasing in loss ratio of group
and health insurance.

(KUdY: Sovua:)
(Unit: percent)

$1UNS U 2562 U 2561 U 2560
ltem 2019 2018 2017

Sasnaoumaulkunalnu

Loss ratio

SasdoumMUIKLANS

Net commissions ratio
SasrasumitdanusSuds:nunuia:Aigangaitiuniu

Underwriting expenses and operating expenses ratio

S0s1ddUSOU
Combined ratio

mlsdns

fud 2562 U 2561 na:U 2560 usBniiMisans
IMAU 194.3 AUun 253.5 A uunn lia: 435.7 &uuin
awaidu Aaildudasmisanssova: 8.1 Sova: 10.4
la:sova: 19.9 auadu laglul 2562 sasriisans
aqavilovunnnAAEUTKunalnuuuus:AuFdads: InN
awry Us: fiugudiinadouunna lla:us: nuaamwn
wudu A msSul 2561 omsmesansaoa\1|uo\1mvm
mﬁuThunounu\nuUs AuIdanauna:us: nuazjmwn
ImuU

SasrwanauIiNUAdUIONGHioRU

ul 2562 U 2561 11a:U 2560 USBNUSAST
wandUIinuadUIavEhoRUINNUSoYA: 13.4 Sova:
17.0 na:$oua: 30.5 owardu

60.6
242 24.1 28.6
5.4 47 47
94.0 89.4 777

Net Profit

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company recorded a
net profit at THB 194.3 million, THB 253.5 million and
THB 435.7 million respectively, representing a net profit
margin of 8.1 percent, 10.4 percent and 19.9 percent
respectively. In 2019, a declined of profit margin was
due to an increase in the Company’s claims incurred
in the product of an ordinary life, personal ad accident
and health. In 2018, a decrease of profit margin was
due to an increase in the Company’s claim incurred
in the product of group and health.

Return on Equity

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company recorded
refurn on equity of 13.4 percent, 17.0 percent and
30.5 percent, respectively.
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aunsweg
AunSwyrandovusun Us:nouddy Nudaa
IA:s1YNISINYUININUAQ $19TAINNISAYNUAIY
SuaunsSwgannisus:nunuao anhﬁmnﬁtytyw
Us:ufiode Ruavnulukannsws na:Adu o1as
la:ounsni

ru AUl 2562 U 2561 n1a:d 2560 USGND
AunSwIsouinnu 2,426.2 Auuin 2,357.9 Aluuin
A 2,397.1 AU aWAIGU 1TUIUSoUA: 2.9 liA:
AacavSoua: 1.6 aNUAGU TsrwmshdArydavl

qnhﬁmnﬁmt’g‘lds:ﬁuﬁsde

anhﬁmnﬁt‘gmws:ﬁuﬁvdo Js:noudoy
NuWIFNNNIsUs:AUNYGO IIA:NUAINSUINNS
Js:nunucio

NudWINNNIsUs:NuUnuco Ao Nudsov
'\nnlﬁuds:ﬁuﬁuﬁu§@nds:ﬁpﬁu (@ioUs:Nunucio)
IRUINUSBNSUUs:NuUnucollioldunanus:Au funstun
gsuds:nungdeateds:aulngrinumsivu ldauisn
s:nuldowdrynyds:unuco NuAISoIauNaID
gios:unudeavAuiulnalUrSelosuauAadryny

ru Aul 2562 U 2561 Al 2560 USGND
anktndrynyus:ufiodoininu 214.6 auuin
195.5 A7UUnn lla: 212.2 Auuin awaidu lagaaidu
SasidduUcoaUNSWISOUSouA: 8.8 Soua: 8.3 lA:50Y
a: 8.9 muaau Taulswa:duadvl

anktNNANYnYWUs:AURTco

Reinsurance Receivables

Nu>WBNNMsUs:AUNYco
Amounts deposited on reinsurance

NUANSUINMIsUs:NUNYco
Amounts dues from reinsurers

SouU
Total

Aunswdavnu

AunSwgavnuus:noudoy NUAQNA:SIINIS
INYUINIINUAQ NUAYNUITOAT INUAYNUIGOINY
Nuavnuie:fiovuAsuMKUQ RuaINUNDIU RUTANSU
lla:zNuavNUTUUSBNSOU Taglswa:duadul

Financial Position

Assets

The Company’s core assets are composed of cash
and cash equivalents, accrued investment income,
premium receivables, reinsurance assets, reinsurance
receivables, investments in securities, and premises
equipment.

As of the end of 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s
total assets were recorded at THB 2,426.2 million, THB
2,357.9 million and THB 2,397.1 million respectively,
increasing by 2.9 percent and dropped by 1.6 percent
respectively.

Reinsurance Receivables

Reinsurance Receivables consists of amounts deposited
on reinsurance and amount due from reinsurers.

Amounts Deposited on reinsurance are premium
reserves collected by an insurance company
(a reinsured) from a reinsurer as security in case the
reinsurer encounters financial difficulties and is unable
to perform obligations under the insurance contract.
Such reserves will be returned by the reinsured in the
following year or upon an expiry of the contract.

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s reinsurance
receivables amounted to THB 214.6 million, THB 195.5
million and THB 212.2 million, representing 8.8 percent,
8.3 percent and 8.9 percent of fotal assets respectively.
Details are described below:

(KUow: &Auun)

(Unit: THB Million)
U 2562 U 2561 U 2560
(Auun) (Auunn) (Auunn)
2019 2018 2017
92.4 62,0 54.0
1222 1335 158.2
214.6 195.5 2122

Investment Assets

Investment assets are composed of cash and cash
equivalents, trading investment, available-for-sale
investments, held-to-maturity investments, general
investments, and loans, details of which are as follows:
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(KU2Y: Auuin)
(Unit: THB Million)
U 2561

U 2560
2017

2018

U 2562

S1uMs 2019

Item

Auun Soua Auun Sova: Auun Soya:
Amount Percel Amount Percent Amount Percent
2.8

nt
NuAQIia:s1IYMSINYUIMNUAQ 33.8 17

Cash and cash equivalents

55.1 212.1 10.7

Ruaunuidiof
Trading investment

ashaisnu
Equity securities

723 3.6 785 4.0 6.2 0.3

NuavnuiGony
Available for sale investment

as1aisnu
Equity securities

KusuAaINU
Unit trusts

RuAINURY:EioAUASUMIKUQ

Held to maturity investment
KANNSWISFUIAIA:STIAHND
Government and state enterprise securities

OSWﬁ']Shlj’n']ﬂlOﬂ'ﬂU
Private enterprise debt securities

NuansuMs
Deposits at banks

RuAINUADTU 2.1 0.1 2.1 0.1 2.1 0.1
General investments

NUTAREY 1.0 0.1 1.4 0.1 0.1 0.0
Loans

NuaINUIUUSBNSOU
Investments in an associate

SouU
Total

203.0 10.2 2434 125 2417

601.0 30.1 699.9 35.8 466.8

709.1 35.5 546.4 28.0 768.7 38.7

214.6 10.7 180.0 9.2 76.1 3.8

145.0 7.3 130.0 6.7 195.0 9.8

13.6 0.7 16.1 0.8 18.6 0.9

1,995.5 100.0 1,952.9 100.0 1,987.4 100.0

NuavnuIliof Trading investments
|Gua\1r1uuﬂoﬁ1 KUYV |T1ua\1r]uﬁu§l§na\1r1u

na:idanus:avAne:angiusunnadulng Tagavnuiuku

fan:dyuiuaaanannSwgirnvds:inAng

Trading investments refer to investment performed by
the Company with the intention to sell them in the
near future in which the Company has to invest such
registered shares in the Stock Exchange of Thailand
(SET)

ru Aul 2562 U 2561 1a:0 2560 USGNDNU

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company had total
avnuIlioMINAU 72.3 A1uuin 78.5 Auun lia: 6.2

trading investments of THB 72.3 million, THB 78.5

Auunn cnuanau Tagaaildudasidducodunswesou
Sova: 3.0 Sova: 3.3 Soua: 0.3 mua1au

Al Ruavnuidof ru AUl 2562 U 2561 Ia:
U 2560 AaildusasAducodunSwdaunuinnusova:
3.6 Soya: 4.0 1a:$oya: 0.3 MuaAU

million and THB 6.2 million respectively, representing
3.0 percent, 3.3 percent and 0.3 percent of its total
assets respectively.

Nevertheless, trading investments in 2019, 2018 and
2017 accounted for 3.6 percent, 4.0 percent and 0.3
percent of investment assets respectively.
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a:U 2560 AailusasidducioaunSwgIaINUINNUSoy
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RNuavnun{:fiosuAsSUNIKUQ

RuavnUAv:RioUASUMKUQ KUYTV RuAYNU
AuSBnavnuia:idanus:avAne:iiosunsuniikua
Tinou Tdin KaNNSwdsgunala:STIaHAY as1anshl
AN llA:NUdINSUNAS

ru AUl 2562 U 2561 n1a:d 2560 USGNORNU
Aaunune:fiosuAsUrKUQINAU 1,068.7 A1Uunn 856.4
A2uunn 11a: 1,039.8 4auuin awaiau TavAaildu
S0S1AUCOAUNSWISOUSOUA: 44.1 Sova: 36.3 lla:
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Al RuaunuRv:iioauAsUrkua ru AUl 2562
U 2561 1a:U 2560 Aaidusasidduciodunswgavnu
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nau 91Ms naUnsni-AnNS
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Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments refer to investments
made by the Company and intended to be sold in the
future, comprising of equity securities and unit trusts.

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s available-
for-sale investments amounted to THB 804.0 million,
THB 943.3 million and THB 708.5 million respectively,
representing 33.1 percent, 40.0 percent and 29.6
percent of total assets respectively. A proportion of
equity securities to unit trusts in the available-for-sale
investments were reported at 25 percent to 35 percent
and 65 percent to 75 percent respectively.

However, available-for-sale investments in 2019, 2018
and 2017 made up 40.3 percent, 48.3 percent and
35.7 percent of investment assets respectively.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are investments made
by the Company and intended to be held until
maturity, comprising of government and state enterprise
securities, debentures, and deposits at banks.

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, held-to-maturity investments
amounted fo THB 1,068.7 million, THB 856.4 million
and THB 1,039.8 million, respectively, representing
44.1 percent, 36.3 percent and 43.4 percent of total
assets, respectively.

Held-to-maturity investments accounted for 53.5
percent, 43.9 percent and 52.3 percent of investment
assets in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Premises and equipment

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, premises and equipment-net
of the Company amounted to THB 53.3 million,
THB 55.2 million and THB 46.3 million respectively,
representing 2.2 percent, 2.3 percent and 1.9 percent
of total assets respectively.
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S9UN1S
Particulars

Aau
Land

o1MS
Building

IndovaniicviaindodtdAtnuIU
Furniture, Fixture and equipment

AOUIOINOS
Computers

uwnuU:
Motor Vehicles

SOV - AN
Total — Net

hwUau

U AUD 2562 U 2561 N1a:0 2560 USGNDHUAU
SOUINAU 967.6 AULIN 919.0 AUUIN lIA: 853.6
awuuin awadu 10uduseva: 5.3 lla:sova: 7.7
awadu TagrhUausOUNIDUIUTANKAKANYINKUAU
NNdrynyUs:NunY TavbsronsiaAnyavi

19MtUSEnUs:Aufiudo

ru Aul 2562 U 2561 1a:d 2560 USGN I
19IMUUSENUs:AUfiudoIiAu 137.0 duuin 184.6
A7uunn na: 181.9 4auuin awaidu Tavaaidu
Sas1doudonlaunadduovIiIgovsIuSova: 5.6
Sova: 7.8 a:Soya: 7.6 cnuaiqu

KUAUIINArYryYUs:fiufio

KUAUMNANYnYWUS: AUy Us:noudoy drsev
Js:NunganSuanynyus:NuNgs:9:910 d1sovnn
Aulkunainu nadsevityUs:iuny

U 2562 U 2561 U 2560

(Auunn) (Auun) (A1uun)
2019 2018 2017
17.6 17.6 17.6
29.4 322 239
5.1 3.8 26
1.2 1.6 19
. - 0.3
53.3 55.2 463
Liabilities

As at the end of 2019, 2018, and 2017, the Company
had total liabilities of THB 967.6 million, THB
919.0 million and THB 853.6 million, respectively,
increased by 5.3 percent and 7.7 percent,
respectively. The chiefly attributed changes in total
liabilities were increased from insurance contract
liabilities which the main items are as follows:

Amounts Due to Reinsurers

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, amounts due to reinsurers
totaled THB 137.0 million, THB 184.6 million and THB
181.9 million, respectively, representing 5.6 percent,
7.8 percent and 7.6 percent of fotal liabilities and
equity, respectively.

Insurance Contract Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities are composed of long-term
insurance policy reserves refer fo reserves for long-term
reinsurance agreements, loss reserves and outstanding
claims and premium reserves
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Long term insurance policy reserves

Gross premium valuation reserves are life policy reserves,
calculated using an actuarial method in accordance
with the OIC nofifications. The main assumptions
applied relate to lapse or surrender rate, selling and
administrative expenses, mortality, morbidity, discount
rate and non-guaranteed dividend payment rate.
Llong term insurance policy reserves refer to reserves
for long-term reinsurance agreements. At every final
date of the reporting period, there will be comparison
between value of gross premium valuation reserves
and unearned premium reserves for policies that sill
remain in force. If value of gross premium valuation
reserves is higher than unearned premium reserves,
such difference will be recognized and the gross
premium insurance reserves will be presented in the
financial statements.

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company have long
term insurance policy reserves of THB 471.2 million,
THB 406.8 million and THB 321.3 million respectively,
representing 19.4 percent, 17.3 percent and 13.4
percent of total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
respectively. As for 2019, 2018 and 2017, an increase
in long term insurance policy reserves was a result of
one recapture contract that the Company had mutual
agreement with the ceding company to shorten
coverage period of the policies in such treaty.
Consequently, the Company will be less reserve
require for the whole treaty, however, instead of
gradually recognize the annually additional reserve as
pre-calculated since the treaty started, we need to
accelerate the GPV reserve in 2017 - 2020 to cover
the treaty for the shorten duration.

Loss Reserves

Loss reserves refer to provisions for claims for losses
incurred but not yet agreed upon or reported.
Provisions for claims shall conform to the law governing
reserve calculation.

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s loss reserves
equaled THB 7.8 million, THB 21.7 million and THB 34.9
million respectively, accounting for 0.3 percent, 0.9
percent and 1.5 percent of total liabilities and owners’
equity respectively. In 2019 and 2018, a decrease in
loss reserves resulted from a decline in incurred but
not reported claims (IBNR).
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Premium Reserves

Premium reserves are short-term insurance policy
reserves. At the end of the reporting period, the
Company compares the amount of unexpired risk
reserves with that of net unearned premium reserves
from deferred commission expenses, and if the
amounts of unexpired risk reserves are higher than the
amounts of unearned premium reserves net of deferred
commission expenses, the Company will recognize
additional reserves for such difference. However, the
increase or decrease in unearned premium reserves
from prior year is to be recognized in profit or loss. The
unexpired risk reserves, consistent with the actuarial
method, are provided for any possible future claims
arising from the insurance that remain in force,

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company had premium
reserves of THB 307.6 million, THB 255.4 million and THB
222.1 million, respectively, representing 12.7 percent,
10.8 percent and 9.3 percent of total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity, respectively. In 2019, premium
reserves comprising of unearned premium reserves
THB 298.1 million and unexpired risk reserves THB 9.5
million. In 2018 and 2017, premium reserves was only
for unearned premium reserve. Nevertheless, premium
reserves increased from increasing in short-term
reinsurance.

Asset Management Ability
Amounts due from reinsurers

Amounts due from reinsurers consist of premium
receivables, commission income receivables, claim
receivables and various other items receivable from
reinsurers, excluding reinsurance premium receivable,
and are deducted by allowance for doubtful accounts.
The Company records allowance for doubtful accounts
for the estimated losses that may be incurred due to
uncollectible, taking into account collection experience
and the status of reinsurers.

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company had outstanding
debts from reinsurance which was equivalent to THB
122.2 million, THB 133.5 million and THB 158.2 million,
respectively, which were accounted for 5.0 percent,
5.7 percent, 6.6 percent of the total asset respectively.
In 2019 and 2018, the amounts due from reinsurers
declined since the Company was able to manage
debt collection more effectively.

Nevertheless, 95 percent of the amounts due from
reinsurers are not yet due. Only less than 5 percent
exceeds the payment due date as indicated in No.8
of notes in the financial statement.
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Liquidity and Capital Adequacy
Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from operating activities is reinsurance
receivables and investment income less commission
expenses, operating expenditures, corporate income
tax and including cash received or paid from
investments in securities. In 2019, 2018 and 2017,
the Company had cash flow provided from operating
activities of THB 149.2 million, 156.5 million and THB
294.0 million respectively. A decrease in cash flow from
operating activities in 2019 and 2018 was the result
of a decline in reinsurance premium, whereas in 2017
a growth in reinsurance premium but spent more in
investment in securities.

Cash flow from investment activities

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company reported
cash flow for investing activities of THB 2.5 million,
THB 13.5 million and THB 23.9 million respectively. In
2018, the Company’s cash flow from investing activities
remarkably increased as a result of the office
renovation. In 2017, the Company’s cash flow from
investing activities increased as a result of an investment
in the systems of reinsurance development in order to
support business expansion.

Cash flow from financing activities

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s cash flow
employed in financing activities amounted to THB
168.0 million, THB 300.0 million and THB 240.0 million
respectively. The only cash flow from financing
activities was dividend payment paid to the Company’s
shareholders.

Capital Structure

The Company does not acquire other capital sources
from loaning or have any other sources out of financial
budget. Nevertheless, the Company’s D/E ratio at the
end of 2019 was 0.7 times and debts caused mainly
by due to reinsurers and insurance contract liabilities.
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Factors with Possible Impacts on

Future Operation and Financial Position
Economic Volatility

Economic fluctuation could be a threat to consumers’
purchasing power. Particularly in tough economic
times, consumers will become more stringent in their
spending, including their decision on buying insurance.
Some of them choose to take out insurance only when
they could save enough money. Besides this, interest
rate is another factor influencing consumers’ insurance
buying decision, which is made based on comparison
with yields from other forms of financial instruments.
Interest rate also has an effect on the rate of return
receivable by the Company from investments, which
will further affect our operating performance.

Domestic Reinsurance Business Expansion by
Foreign Reinsurers

Factors include the expansion of international
reinsurance companies in Thailand (not in a form the
joint venture), cutting-edge technology and ongoing
product innovation and development have made
the reinsurance with life insurance companies more
difficult. However, major life insurance companies in
Thailand are still close and in good relationship with the
Company, as well as the Company had an expertise
in the life insurance business of Thailand as well, led
to The Company’s growth steadily.
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andwads:nounisiia:gu:nNISIvuU
Financial Information

(KU2Y: WuuIn)
(Unit: THB Thousand)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 VI K]
2562 2561 2560 2559 2558 2557 2556

waUs:nounms

OPERATIONS
iJuus:Ruiudosusou 2,339,703 2,400,298 2,157,428 1,975,176 1,850,785 1,623,774 1,387,856
Gross Written Premiums
IUUUS:ﬁuﬁUdO§Uan§ 2,324,110 2,380,760 2,136,580 1,950,078 1,828,084 1,606,600 1,373,504
Net Written Premiums
iuus:Autontotusgld 2,281,480 2,347,462 2,096,545 1,965,811 1,833,458 1,582,962 1,399,753
Earned Premium
misnnmssus:nuny! 126256 234102 455964 299753 423065 331,274 412,793
Underwriting Profit
s1wlannNIsavnuANs 100,075 74,117 82,355 86,682 52,424 115,612 58,406
Net investment income
ﬂ"ﬂS'ﬂ'OUﬂ’IG 232,005 310,022 542,233 390,000 478,113 449,188 473,685
Profit before Tax
misans 194,256 253,467 435,684 321,748 388,673 371,717 382,998
Net Profit
ﬁun§wﬂa\1qu 1,995,587 1,952,881 1,987,421 1,596,792 1,526,145 1,483,505 1,336,066
Investment Assets
AunsSwgsou 2,426,164 2,357,869 2,397,065 2,052,532 2,025,325 1,978,544 1,784,390
Total Assets
HUAUSOW 967,550 918,948 853,601 739517 742,862 788,832 692,804
Total Liabilities
NUISYNS:IAD 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000
Paid-up Capital
NUNevNU (Aouavaiioru) 1,458,614  1,438921 1543464 1313015 1,282,464 1,189,712 1,091,586
Capital Funds (Shareholders” Equity)
yaARUaNUUNg3 (Uncioru) 2.43 2.40 2.57 2.19 2.14 1.98 1.82
Book Value per share (Baht)
Nuduwa (UINcivru) 0.26 0.35 0.50 0.40 0.50 0.45 0.45

Dividend per Share (Baht)

sasAUKUNaInU? 64.4 60.6 444 489 440 40.8 37.3
Loss Ratio®

dasddumMIFINY® 29.6 28.8 33.3 35.7 32.1 38.3 31.9
Expenses Ratio®

8051d2USOM (Combined Ratio) 94.0 89.4 777 84.6 76.1 79.0 69.2
Combined Ratio

SaswanBUINUADAdUIONETIORU 134 17.0 305 248 31.4 326 415
Return on Equity

90SIWANBUINUINNISAVNU 5.1 3.8 4.6 5.3 3.6 8.2 48
Investment Yield

misanscdeoru (un) 0.32 0.42 0.73 0.54 0.65 0.62 071

Earnings per Share (Baht)

HUNYIKQ: .
1. aAnSHAvANAIFNudITUNUNAHUANEY:Any (G0), . . o

2. SasMAUTKUNaINU KNgtiv AMEUTKuNnanuRIRadu / (IUgUs:Auntioldusiuid-Nudisovds:Aunuilivau (aaav) YInUnou)
3. 80s1@UMTFNY KUWTv SastAsUMUNIKGANS + SasdduAtFgiumsSuls:Aunuia:migFsgdutuniu

Note:

1. Net of other operating expenses and allowance for doubtful debt (if any)

2. loss incurred expressed as a percentage of earned premiums deduct life policy reserve increase(decrease)
3. Expenses Ratio expressed as a Commission Ratio plus Underwriting and Operating expenses Ratio
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The Board of Directors has the duties and responsibilities
to supervise the business undertaking by the Company
in compliance with the good corporate governance
principles. The Board of Directors is accountable for
the financial statements of the Company. The financial
statements ended 31 December 2019 are prepared
in accordance with Thai Accounting Standard Act B.E.
2547 and other related regulations of The Office of
Insurance Commission. Appropriate accounting policies
are cautiously utilized. Sufficient important information
is disclosed in the footnotes of the financial statements
which have been audited by the auditors.

The Board of Directors has provided and maintained
the effectiveness of risk management, internal control,
internal audit and supervision, to be assured that the
financial records are accurate, complete and adequate
to protect the Company’s assets and to prevent any
significant operational risk. The Board of Directors
has appointed an Audit Committee comprised of
independent directors and non-management members
of the Company as regulators in this matter. The opinion
of the Audit Committee with regard to these matters
appear in the report of the Audit Committee in this
Annual Report.

The Board of Directors is of the view that the Company
has maintained an effective internal control system
at an adequate and appropriate level of protection
to assure the credibility of the financial statements
presenting the correct financial positions, financial
performance and cash flow of Thaire life Assurance
Public Co., Ltd.

A 7 Lz,

/4/////‘/?7/

(Mr.Suchin Wanglee)
Chairman

(Mr.Sutti Rajitrangson)
Director and President
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Dear Shareholders,

The Audit Committee is composed of three
independent directors: Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana as
Chairman of the Audit Committee, Dr. Apirak
Thaipatanagul, and Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon. All
members of the Audit Committee are knowledgeable
and experienced in reviewing the reliability of
financial statements required by the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Audit Committee has duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board of Directors, which include
reviewing the correctness and adequacy of the
Company’s financial reporting and ensuring the
effectiveness of internal control system, risk
management system and corporate governance
process and the compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The Audit Committee is also
responsible for monitoring and ensuring that any
transactions that may have a conflict of interest
are conducted in accordance with regulations and
provide maximum benefit to the Company, as well
as selecting and nominating an independent auditor
for the Company.

In 2019, the Audit Committee completed their duties
under the scope of responsibilities assigned by
the Board of Directors and in line with the Audit
Committee Charter. Four meetings were held in
the year and were attended by all committee
members. The Management, independent auditor,
and internal auditors, were also invited to join the
meetings on the agenda items which they were
concerned. The main duties performed by the Audit
Committee in 2019 can be summarized as follows:

1. Approved quarterly financial statements and
reviewed annual financial statements of the
Company prior to disclosure to the Stock
Exchange of Thailand and the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission.




ThaiRe life Assurance PCL

2. ﬁolﬁon|ﬁuouc1'\15\1q‘ﬁoyﬁm?}na:mhuo
A1aouinu Tagiaualhiavay usen &10nviu
3219 91na 10udasoulnydrovusEniaodn
Jnlv (AnsSul 2562)

. Usrqusounugaoulny@sou 2 ASy Tusuoud
1JunisUs:gusounugaoulnydlaviubdy
FanN1s131SoUsUdU 1 ASYGDY 1lomvIStun
udoNIWNIsUHUAvIUIA:IOUIIONISANTUNIU
ADUUNYY AOUNIUIWUNISASIVADU WANIS
asdfdouladalauaiu: 1UaTKUUTRTA2IN1S
asd>vdouNUMISNUldnUoguASUNDUIKUN:AU
aUUIasYIUNISADUUNYY

. MnuqQiaviuasdvaoun1giu ouldnwuviu
asdedaouni1uTuus:910 ANUADWIAYVAD
ANS:AIANYOVUSENY  MINISADUNUSITNIU
wanisasdvdou 1DolKuuUlRIdoINIsasdvdou
TadtuldegvAsufouIkUI:EUAIUUIASTIU
nisasoedouni1ulu soufivinisdaavwa
nisUsSudsvinTaatudolauaiu:iiolAs:uu
nispouAuNgtubUs:Answala:Us:AnsnIw
gvIu

. douniusigviunisdjuaaludonirnualia:
NNKUIYGI ¢ RiNgadov 1Iduds:9nniasuna

. AOUNIUSIVVIUSSNSSUAURYNISAIRYIFoAU
1Juds:9nniasua

. douniula:us:I0uwalKusGny Ts:uunis
USHISADWIRBIATAD WKL :AUIIADUS:ANS WA
awunseuniasunisgeusulduunasgiuaina
Togldsushoviuwanisasdvaoungiuds:910
na:faThdolauenu:1lofHs:uunIsUSHIS
ADUIAYVOUS:ANSWATIIU

. %alKAnu:nssuniIsasodedaouidniIsUs:iu
waviugovaulovus:9rdiuusiganu: azun
wanisUs:iDuldiniSesounuiunisus:gu
ANU:NSSUNISOSIVAOU

. 2aTHUn1sUs:IDUADIWITYVWOIOVSIUU
nisnouAUNgiuds:91d na:utwanisus:iou
IAUSCIOANUNSSUNISUSBNITO TSt UNoUUE

3.

Nominated and recommended an appointment
of auditor and fixing of auditor’s remuneration,
with EY Office Limited being nominated and
appointed as auditor of the Company for
another year (for the year 2019).

Attended two joint meetings with the auditor,
one of which was organized without the
attendance of the Management to consider the
guideline and scope of auditing and review
the audit plan, results and recommendations
to ensure that the audit of financial statements
was carried out properly and completely in
accordance with the auditing standards.

. Oversaw internal audit, approved the annual

internal audit plan based on the Company’s
material risks, reviewed the audit reports to
ensure that the audit was carried out properly and
completely in accordance with the internal
auditing standards, and followed up on the
recommended corrective actions to improve
the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal
control system.

Reviewed the report on compliance with relevant
laws and regulations on a quarterly basis.

Reviewed the report on related party transactions
on a quarterly basis.

Reviewed and assessed the enterprise wide risk
management process to ensure that they were
appropriate and effective in accordance with
the global standard, obtained the annual internal
audit report and provided recommendation for
the effectiveness of the risk management process.

Arranged for the annual self-assessment of the
Audit Committee as a whole and discussed
the assessment results at the Audit Committee
meeting.

Arranged for the annual evaluation of internal
control adequacy and proposed the evaluation
results to the Board of Directors for consideration
and approval.
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significant accounting policy, (2) an enquiry
about important details of financial position
and performance, (3) a review of the report
on evaluation of internal control adequacy,
and (4) an independent meeting with the
auditor to discuss about observations on the
financial reporting process and reliability, the
Audit Committee has not found any ground for
doubting that the Company’s financial
statements presents information which
contradicts material fact and, hence, is
confident that the Company’s financial
statements is reliable, accurate and complete
in accordance with the financial reporting
standards.

. USBNY Ts:uunispouAuNgiu s:uunsusKis 2. The Company’s internal control system, risk
ADIWIAYY S:UUNISADUAUNISURUANIUZON management system, operational control of
d1gusnisiazs:uunisGaalunius:Answa management team, and monitoring system are
IWyvwo effective and adequate.
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aaranannSwy soufivnorulyduniNgddov regulations of the Stock Exchange, and other
NUSSNIYOIUSEN laws relevant to the Company’s business.
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experience in auditing several insurance
companies and has a well-recognized broad
local and global network, thus enabling the
auditing standard of the Company to meet
international level. Moreover, the auditor and
all persons designated to certify the financial
statements are the auditors approved by the
Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
are independent, and do not have any
relationship or any transaction that may cause
conflict of interest with the Company, thereby
ensuring that an audit will be conducted in an
efficient and transparent manner.
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. All related party transactions or transactions

that may cause conflict of interest were done in
conformity with the laws and regulations of the
Stock Exchange and were reasonable with the
maximum benefit to the Company. There was
not any other indication or remark that implied
any irregularity.

. The Audit Committee has the number of

members, composition and qualification suitable
for an efficient discharge of duties under the
Audit Committee Charter. The Audit Committee has
performed their duties in accordance with the
scope of responsibilities correctly and completely
in all respects with good collaboration and
support from all concerned parties.

On Behalf of the Audit Committee

(Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana)
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Thaire Life Assurance Public Company
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position, in which the equity
method is applied, as at 31 December 2019, and the related statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in owner’s equity and cash flows, in which the equity method is
applied, for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and also have audited the separate financial statements of Thaire

Life Assurance Public Company Limited for the same period.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2019,
its financial performance and cash flows, for the year then ended in accordance with Thai

Financial Reporting Standards.
Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as issued by the Federation of Accounting
Professions as relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. | believe that the audit evidence | have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most
significance in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my

opinion thereon, and | do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

I have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, my
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for my audit

opinion on the accompanying financial statements as a whole.
Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond to each matter are described below.
Recognition of earned premium

The Company’s core revenue earned premium, which amounted to Baht 2,281 million,
representing 95 percent of the Company’s total revenues. The Company has entered into
reinsurance contracts with customers, who are life insurance companies, for both facultative and
treaty reinsurance contracts. Conditions under those contracts vary depending upon types of
insurance, reinsurance share, insured periods, etc. In addition, recognition of revenue on such
reinsurance contracts shall also meet the definition of insurance contracts under Thai Financial
Reporting Standards. Therefore, the Company’s management is required to use judgement in
consideration and review its product classification. Hence, | therefore focused on examining that

the reinsurance premium written is recognised correctly as actually incurred.

| assessed and tested, on a sampling basis, the Company’s internal controls relevant to revenue
recognition from each type of reinsurance contract, assessed the appropriateness of method and
assumptions used for product classification testing, involving experts in the assessment of such
methods and assumptions through comparison with historical and industry data and the review of
the related actuarial models, tested, on a sampling basis, the data used for product classification
testing and tested, on a sampling basis, the amount of reinsurance premium written against the
statements received from reinsurers that occurred during the year and near the period-end.
Furthermore, | also performed analytical procedures on reinsurance premium written,
disaggregated by reinsurance types and tested, on a sampling basis, any significant adjustments

made through journal vouchers.
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Long-term insurance policy reserves

As described in Note 15 to the financial statements, as at 31 December 2019, the Company had
long-term insurance policy reserves amounting to Baht 471 million, representing 49 percent of
total liabilities, whereby the Company compared the amounts of gross premium valuation
reserves as at 31 December 2019 with those of unearned premium reserves, and recognised the
differences as additional reserves if the amounts of gross premium valuation reserves were
higher than those of unearned premium reserves. In calculation of the gross premium valuation
reserves, it involves the use of assumptions, including mortality rate, discounted rate, lapse or
surrender rate, and selling and administrative expense ratio. Changes in such assumptions will
affect the amounts of long-term insurance policy reserves and the Company’s management is
required to exercise high level of considerable judgement in selecting those assumptions.

| therefore focused on the adequacy of long-term insurance policy reserves.

| assessed the method and key assumptions used in determining long-term insurance policy
reserves by involving our experts to assist in analysis and comparison of the methods and
assumptions used to historical and industry data, and in the review of the actuarial models used
in calculating reserves under the Gross Premium Valuation method. Moreover, | also tested, on a
sampling basis, data used in calculation, and performed analytical procedures on movements of

long-term insurance policy reserves.
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the
information included in annual report of the Company, but does not include the financial
statements and my auditor’s report thereon. The annual report of the Company is expected to be

made available to me after the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

Annual Report 2019 147



usun Tngsus:Nudda 10 (UK3U)

When | read the annual report of the Company, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, | am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance for correction

of the misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
| determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.

I am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.

Yy

Rachada Yongsawadvanich
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4951

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 18 February 2020
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Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Statements of financial position

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued investment income
Reinsurance assets
Reinsurance receivables
Investment assets
Investments in securities - net
Loans
Investments in an associate
Premises and equipment - net
Intangible assets - net
Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Deferred commission expenses
Others
Total assets
Liabilities and owners' equity
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities
Due to reinsurers
Income tax payable
Employee benefit obligations
Other liabilities
Accrued expenses
Deferred commission income
Others
Total liabilities
Owners' equity
Share capital
Registered, issued and paid-up
600,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each
Share premium
Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve
Unappropriated
Other component of owners' equity
Total owners' equity

Total liabilities and owners' equity

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

ThaiRe Life Assurance PCL

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 31 December 2019

31 December 2018

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

6 33,798,067 55,107,499 33,798,067 55,107,499
13,187,204 10,979,404 13,187,204 10,979,404
7 2,662,337 2,890,523 2,662,337 2,890,523
8 214,596,499 195,504,325 214,596,499 195,504,325
9 1,947,134,836 1,880,320,416 1,947,134,836 1,880,320,416
10 1,029,648 1,350,532 1,029,648 1,350,532
11.1 13,624,528 16,102,055 21,684,234 21,684,234
12 53,308,373 55,212,073 53,308,373 55,212,073
13 33,649,819 37,834,960 33,649,819 37,834,960
14.1 28,592,060 30,797,125 26,980,119 30,797,125
78,324,647 70,819,695 78,324,647 70,819,695
6,256,404 950,292 6,256,404 950,292
2,426,164,422 2,357,868,899 2,432,612,187 2,363,451,078
15 786,531,545 683,877,504 786,531,545 683,877,504
16 137,009,478 184,571,501 137,009,478 184,571,501
18,794,352 33,572,395 18,794,352 33,572,395
17 14,080,989 10,871,877 14,080,989 10,871,877
4,644,925 2,587,759 4,644,925 2,587,759
39,935 43,358 39,935 43,358
6,449,194 3,423,973 6,449,194 3,423,973
967,550,418 918,948,367 967,550,418 918,948,367

18
600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000
79,162,825 79,162,825 79,162,825 79,162,825
19 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000
739,516,723 714,249,360 743,339,730 718,202,902

(20,065,544)

(14,491,653)

(17,440,786)

(12,863,016)

1,458,614,004

1,438,920,532

1,465,061,769

1,444,502,711

2,426,164,422

2,357,868,899

2,432,612,187

2,363,451,078

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Statements of income
For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied Separate financial statements

Note 2019 2018 2019 2018

Revenues

Reinsurance premium written 2,339,702,858 2,400,297,911 2,339,702,858 2,400,297,911

Less: Reinsurance premium ceded (15,593,246) (19,538,148) (15,593,246) (19,538,148)

Net reinsurance premium written 2,324,109,612 2,380,759,763 2,324,109,612 2,380,759,763

Less: Unearned premium reserves increased

from prior year

Earned premium

(42,629,375)

(33,297,362)

(42,629,375)

(33,297,362)

2,281,480,237

2,347,462,401

2,281,480,237

2,347,462,401

Commission income 1,667,338 2,929,349 1,667,338 2,929,349
Share of loss from investments in an associate,

accounted for under the equity method 11.3 (825,217) (2,006,781) - -
Net investment revenue 70,517,811 61,446,366 70,517,811 61,446,366
Gains on investments 25,726,163 22,584,817 25,726,163 22,584,817
Fair value gain (loss) 4,655,899 (7,907,023) 4,655,899 (7,907,023)
Other income 5,674,198 1,802,199 5,674,198 1,802,199
Total revenues 2,388,896,429 2,426,311,328 2,389,721,646 2,428,318,109
Expenses
Long-term insurance policy reserves increased

from prior year 64,657,158 86,590,549 64,657,158 86,590,549
Unexpired risk reserves increased from prior year 9,507,891 - 9,507,891 -
Gross benefits and claims 1,423,183,690 1,374,252,802 1,423,183,690 1,374,252,802
Less: claims recovered from reinsurers (2,549,195) (3,791,816) (2,549,195) (3,791,816)
Commission expenses 536,058,822 548,594,785 536,058,822 548,594,785
Other underwriting expenses 33,877,794 25,224,319 33,877,794 25,224,319
Operating expenses 21 92,155,677 85,419,003 92,155,677 85,419,003
Total expenses 2,156,891,837 2,116,289,642 2,156,891,837 2,116,289,642
Profits before income tax expenses 232,004,592 310,021,686 232,829,809 312,028,467
Income tax expenses 14.2 (37,748,950) (56,555,171) (38,704,702) (56,555,171)
Profits for the years 194,255,642 253,466,515 194,125,107 255,473,296
Earnings per share 24
Basic earnings per share

Profits for the years 0.32 0.42 0.32 0.43

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Statements of comprehensive income

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

ThaiRe Life Assurance PCL

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Profits for the years

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Iltems to be recognised in statements of

income in subsequent period:
Translation adjustments of the financial statements

in foreign currency of an associate
Losses on revaluation of available-for-sale investments 9.3
Total items to be recognised in statements of income

in subsequent periods
Add : Income tax benefits
Iltems to be recognised in statements of income

in subsequent periods - net of income taxes
Iltems not to be recognised in statements of

income in subsequent period:
Actuarial losses 17
Total items not to be recognised in statements of

income in subsequent period:
Add: Income tax benefits
Iltems not to be recognised in statements of income

in subsequent periods - net of income taxes

Other comprehensive loss for the years

Note 2019 2018 2019 2018
194,255,642 253,466,515 194,125,107 255,473,296
(1,652,310) (477,378) - -
(5,722,213) (71,026,564) (5,722,213) (71,026,564)
(7,374,523) (71,503,942) (5,722,213) (71,026,564)
1,800,632 14,205,313 1,144,443 14,205,313
(5,573,891) (57,298,629) (4,577,770) (56,821,251)
(1,236,432) (892,212) (1,236,432) (892,212)
(1,236,432) (892,212) (1,236,432) (892,212)
247,286 178,442 247,286 178,442
(989,146) (713,770) (989,146) (713,770)
(6,563,037) (58,012,399) (5,566,916) (57,535,021)
187,692,605 195,454,116 188,558,191 197,938,275

Total comprehensive income for the years

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Annual Report 2019 153



(Un3u)

AUFdQ NNa

TnusUs:

ustn

‘sjuswa}e)s |eoueuly 8y} Jo Jed |elbayul ue ale sejou Buikuedwoooe ay )

¥00'v19'8SY L (¥¥5'690°'02) (862'¥29'2) (982°07%'L1) €21'915'6€L 00000009 G28'z9L'6L 000000009 610Z Jaquiadaq L¢ Je se asuejeg
(££0°€95'9) (168°€25'S) (1z1'966) (022°215'Y) (9v1'686) - - - Jeak ay) Joj ssO| BAISUBYRIdWOD JaYI0
Z¥9'sSe'v61 - - - Zy9'sST'v6l - - - Jeak ay} 1oy yjo0id
198 - - - 198 - - - slep|oya.eys Jo
Ayjiqibiiaur o} anp ajqeAed puspIAIp Jo [esionay
(000'000°891) - - - (000‘000'894) - - - sz pied puspiAiQ
Z€5°026°8EYL (e59'1L6Y'vL) (££9'829'}) (910°'c98°21) 09€'6vC VL L 000°000°09 GZ8°291°6. 000°000°009 6102 Atenuer | je se aduejeg
2€5'026'8EY | (e59°L6Y'VL) (£89'829'}) (910°'€98'21) 09€'6¥Z V1L 000°'000°09 G28'29L'6.L 000000009 810Z Jaquiadaq L¢ e se asuejeg
(66€'210°8S) (629'862'L8) (8L€°LLY) (152°128'98) (022°€12) - - - Jeak ay) 10} ssO| BAISUBYRIAWOD JOUIO
G1G'99¥'€5e - - - G16'99¥'€5e - - - Jeak ay} 1oy joid
0sz'c - - - 0S¢z - - - siep|oyaleys Jo
Aiqibisur 0y anp ajqeAed puspiAlp JO |ESISASY
(000'000'00€) - - - (000°000°00€) - - - sz pred pusping
99L VIV EVSL 9/6'908°Zt (6SZ'LSL L) GET'8S6'EY S9E' V6P 19.L 000°000°09 GZ8'291°6. 000°000°009 8102 Asenuer | je se aduejeg
Ajinba siaumo Ajinba siaumo jo SoXe} aWoou| Jo Jau - soxe} awoou| Jo pajeudoiddeun ansesal Aionjels wnjwaid |lendeo aleys 9JON
lejol sjuauodwod Jayjo |ejo] 9)eI00SSE UE JO J9U - SJUBWI]SAAUL - pajendoiddy aleys dn-pied
Kouauno ublaloy ul o|es-10}-9|qe|lEAR UO sBuiuies pauiejoy pue panss|

Sjuawaje)s [eloueuly dy} Jo  (Joyep) snidins uonenjeasy

sjuswisnlpe uone|suel |

Ajnba ,s1oumo Jo Jusuodwod Jeyio

paldde s| poyiaw Aynba ay} yoiym ul sjuswajels |eoueuly

(3yeg nun)

810Z PUE 610Z 1oquiada( LE papua sieak ay Jo4
KInba ;s1aumo ul sabueys jo syuswaelg

paywi] Auedwo? o1jgqnd ddueINSSY 3ji7 dileyl

97U 2562

154 shovuds



ThaiRe Life Assurance PCL

‘sjuswale)s |eloueuly 8y} jo Wed [eibajul ue ase sajou BulAuedwodoe ay |

692°190°G9v°L (98L°0%¥'LL) 0€L'6EEEVL 000°000°09 G28°291'6. 000°000°009
(916'995'S) (02£'218'Y) (9v1'686) - - -
L01'GCL'v6l - L01°SCL v6lL - - -
198 - 198 - - -
(000'000°891) - (000'000'891) - - - (74
LLL'20S viv'L (910'c98'21) 206'202'8LL 000°000°09 G28'z9l'6L 000°000°009
LLL'20S viv'L (910'c98'C1) 206°202'81LL 000°000°09 G28'z9l'6L 000'000°009
(1z0'5€5°28) (152°128'99) (022'€12) - - -
962'€.¥'5S5C - 962'¢.v'GST - - -
02 - 0SZC - - -
(000'000°00€) - (000°000'00€) - - - 74
981°295°9vS‘L GEZ'8S6'EY 9CL L r'e9L 000°000°09 G28'291'6. 000°000°009
AjInba siaumo S9Xe} WodU| JO pajeldoiddeun anJasal Aloynjels wnjwiad |eyided aseys SJON
lejo JOU - SjusWSaAUl - pajeudoiddy aleys dn-pied
9|es-10}-9|qE[IEAR UO sBujules paulejay pue panss|
(31018p) snidins uonenjeasy
Ajinba s1aumo jo Jusuodwod Jay}0
syuawoje)s [eloueuyy sjesedos
(wyeg 3un)

6102 1oaqwada( L¢ je se asuejeq
Jeak 8y} 1o} sSO| BAISUBYDIdWOD JaYI0
Jeak ayy Joj Jjoid

slap|oyaleys jo
Ajlqibijaul 0y anp ajgeAed puspIAlp JO |esianay
pied puspiaig

610z A1enuep | je se eouejeg

8102 Jaquiaseq L¢ je se asuejeg
JeaA 8y} 1o} sSO| 8AISUsYaIdwod Jay}0
Jeak 8y} Joj Jjoid
slapjoyaleys jo
Ajnqibiaur o) anp ajqeAed puapiAIp JO [BSIaADY
pled puspialig
810z Asenuer | je se aouejeg

8102 Pue 610z Joquiasaq LE popud sieak ayj 104

(panunuos) Aynba ,s1aumo ui sabueyd Jo sjuawajelg

pajiwi] Auedwo? 21iqngd adueinssy 917 alieyl

Annual Report 2019 155




usun Tngsus:Nudda 10 (UK3U)

Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Statements of cash flows

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities
Cash received from reinsurance

Interest income

Dividend income

Other investment income

Other income

Other underwriting expenses

Operating expenses

Income tax expenses

Investments in securities

Loans

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities
Disposals of equipment

Purchases of equipment

Purchases of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from (used in) financing activities
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 2019 2018 2019 2018

281,008,864 465,497,252 281,008,864 465,497,252

17,193,277 15,748,141 17,193,277 15,748,141

51,675,957 44,492,631 51,675,957 44,492,631

25,175,217 22,053,157 25,175,217 22,053,157

661,985 590,623 661,985 590,623
(33,869,674) (25,321,542) (33,869,674) (25,321,542)
(81,241,251) (83,510,407) (81,241,251) (83,510,407)
(48,274,011) (82,685,549) (48,274,011) (82,685,549)
(63,487,643) (199,100,166) (63,487,643) (199,100,166)
320,884 (1,230,153) 320,884 (1,230,153)

149,163,605 156,533,987 149,163,605 156,533,987

420,821 1,715,120 420,821 1,715,120
(2,612,020) (12,902,822) (2,612,020) (12,902,822)
(281,838) (2,326,476) (281,838) (2,326,476)

(2,473,037) (13,514,178) (2,473,037) (13,514,178)

25 (168,000,000) (300,000,000) (168,000,000) (300,000,000)

(168,000,000)

(300,000,000)

(168,000,000)

(300,000,000)

(21,309,432)
55,107,499

(156,980,191)
212,087,690

(21,309,432)
55,107,499

(156,980,191)
212,087,690

33,798,067

55,107,499

33,798,067

55,107,499

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited

Notes to financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018

21

Corporate information

Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited (‘the Company”) is a public company,
incorporated under Thai laws, domiciled in Thailand and listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand since 9 October 2013. Its major shareholder is Thai Reinsurance Public Company
Limited, a public company incorporated under Thai laws, domiciled in Thailand and listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the major shareholder
held 10.10% and 11.10%, respectively, of the issued and paid-up share capital of the
Company. The Company is principally engaged in the provision of life reinsurance services.
The registered office of the Company is located at No. 48/15 Soi Ratchadapisek 20,
Ratchadapisek Road, Samsennok Sub-district, Huaykwang District, Bangkok.

Basis for preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547, and in accordance
with Thai accounting practices related to insurance and the accounting and reporting
guidelines prescribed by the Office of Insurance Commission (“OIC”), and in accordance
with the format of financial statements specified in the Notification of the Office of Insurance
Commission (“OIC”) regarding criteria, procedures, conditions and terms for preparation and
submission of financial statements and operating performance reports of life insurance
companies B.E. 2559 dated 4 March 2016.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where
otherwise disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements regarding a summary of significant

accounting policies.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of
the Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from such

financial statements in Thai language.
The financial statements in which the equity method is applied

The Company prepares the financial statements, in which equity method is applied, which

has presented investment in an associate under the equity method.
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2.2 Separate financial statements

3.1
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The Company prepares the separate financial statements, which has presented investment

in an associate under the cost method.
New financial reporting standards
Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

During the year, the Company has adopted the revised (revised 2018) and new financial
reporting standards and interpretations which are effective for fiscal periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the
corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes
directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for
users of the standards. The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not have
any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements. However, the new standard

involves changes to key principles, which are summarised below:
TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

TFRS 15 supersedes the following accounting standards together with related

Interpretations.

TAS 11 (revised 2017) Construction contracts

TAS 18 (revised 2017) Revenue

TSIC 31 (revised 2017) Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services

TFRIC 13 (revised 2017) Customer Loyalty Programmes
TFRIC 15 (revised 2017) Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
TFRIC 18 (revised 2017) Transfers of Assets from Customers

Entities are to apply this standard to all contracts with customers unless those contracts fall
within the scope of other standards. The standard establishes a five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers, with revenue being recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The standard requires entities to exercise
judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when

applying each step of the model.

This standard does not have any significant impact on these financial statements.




3.2

ThaiRe Life Assurance PCL

TFRS 4 (revised 2018) Insurance contracts

This standard provides an additional provision to allow the insurers, who meet certain
criteria stipulated in this standard, can be temporarily exempted from adoption of TFRS 9
Financial Instruments and TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, which will applicable
for the financial reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020, in certain area and
can instead adopt the Thai Accounting Guidance related to financial instruments and
disclosures applicable for insurance business for the financial reporting period beginning
before 1 January 2022 or before the effective date of TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (when

issued).
This standard does not have any significant impact on these financial statements.

Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal years beginning on
or after 1 January 2020

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of new and revised financial
reporting standards and interpretations, which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or
after 1 January 2020. These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the
corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes
directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for
users of the standards except the following new standards which involve changes to key

principles, which are summarised below.
Financial reporting standards related to financial instruments

A set of TFRSs related to financial instruments consists of five accounting standards and
interpretations, as follows:
Financial reporting standards:

TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Accounting standard:

TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations:

TFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
TFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
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This set of TFRSs related to financial instruments makes stipulations relating to the
classification of financial instruments and their measurement at fair value or amortised cost
(taking into account the type of instrument, the characteristics of the contractual cash flows
and the Company’s business model), calculation of impairment using the expected credit
loss method, and hedge accounting. These include stipulations regarding the presentation
and disclosure of financial instruments. When this set of TFRSs related to financial
instruments are effective, some accounting standards, interpretations and guidance which

are currently effective will be cancelled.

Thai Accounting Guidance related to financial instruments and disclosures

applicable for insurance business

Thai Accounting Guidance related to financial instruments and disclosures applicable for
insurance business was issued to comply with TFRS 4 (revised 2019) Insurance contracts,
which allows the insurers who meet certain stipulated criteria to delay adoption of TFRS 9
Financial Instruments and TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, which are applicable
for the financial reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020, and to adopt the
Thai Accounting Guidance related to financial instruments and disclosures applicable for

insurance business instead.

This accounting guidance has certain stipulations differing from those stipulated in TFRS 9

in the following key topics.

- Classification and measurement of financial assets: These are to be classified as
trading securities, available-for-sale securities, held to maturity debt securities, and
loans and receivables, with no requirement to take into accounts the assessment of

the entity’s business model and the characteristics of the contractual cash flows.

- Loss on impairment, gain or loss on derecognition, and gain and loss on fair value

hedges for available-for-sale equity securities are to be recognised in profit or loss.

- The derivatives embedded in financial assets that are hybrid contracts are to be

separated from host contract if they meet all criteria for separation.

In addition, the accounting guidance also stipulates certain disclosure topics to be different
from those stipulated in the TFRS 7.
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According to the Company’s statement of financial position as of 31 December 2017, the
Company had liabilities in connection with insurance services under the scope of
TFRS 4: Insurance Contracts of 80% or more but less than 90% of the carrying value of
total liabilities and the Company operates non-insurance related business insignificantly.
For such reasons, the Company meets certain criteria stipulated in TFRS 4, which allows
the Company to adopt the Thai Accounting Guidance related to financial instruments and
disclosures applicable for insurance business instead of TFRS 9 Financial Instruments and
TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, which are effective for the financial reporting
beginning on or after 1 January 2020, and the Company’s management has already
considered to adopt such Thai Accounting Guidance. However, the Company’s
management expects that there will be key changes in the following matters to the

Company’s financial statements from the adoption of this Thai Accounting Guidance.

- Classification and measurement of investments in non-listed equity securities (General

investments)

The Company is to measure the investments in non-listed equity securities, which are
previously measured at cost less allowance for impairment (if any), at fair value

through profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive income.
- Recognition of credit losses

The Company is to recognise an allowance for expected credit losses on its financial

assets, and it is no longer necessary for a credit-impaired event to have occurred.

Should such Thai Accounting Guidance be adopted in 2020, the Company’s management
expects that there will be no significant impact from the above changes to the Company’s
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2020 and there will be no restatement to the

prior period’s financial statements, presented as comparative information.
TFRS 16 Leases

TFRS 16 supersedes TAS 17 Leases together with related Interpretations. The standard
sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases, and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of

more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is low value.

Accounting by lessors under TFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from TAS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles to
those used under TAS 17.
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4.1
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The Company’s management believes that there will be no significant impact from adoption
of this standard to line items in the statement of financial position as at 1 January 2020
when it is initially adopted and there will be no restatement to the prior period’s financial

statements, presented as comparative information.
Significant accounting policies

Revenue recognition

Reinsurance Premium written

Reinsurance premium written consists of reinsurance premium less premium of
canceled policies and premiums refunded to policyholders. Reinsurance premium is
recognised as revenue when the reinsurer submits the reinsurance application or the
statement of accounts and the Company confirms the coverage under the reinsurance

contracts.
Commission income

Commission income are recorded as deferred revenue and will be gradually

recognised over the ceding periods as revenue proportionately to the ceded premium.
Investment revenues

Interest is recognised as revenue on an accrual basis based on the effective interest
rate. Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive the dividends is

established.
Gains (losses) on investments

Gains (losses) on investments are recognised as revenues or expenses on the

transaction dates.




ThaiRe Life Assurance PCL

4.2 Expenses recognition
a. Reinsurance premium ceded

Reinsurance premium ceded is recognised as expense when the insurance risk is

transferred to another reinsurer.
b. Gross claims

Claims consist of claims and losses adjustment expenses of reinsurance for both
reported claim and not reported claim, and stated the amounts of the claims, related

expenses, and loss adjustments of current and prior year incurred during the year.

Claims of reinsurance are recognised upon the receipt of the claims advice from the
reinsured, based on the claims notified by the reinsured and estimates made by the
Company’s management. The maximum value of claims estimated is not exceeding

the sum-insured under the relevant policy.

Claims recovered from reinsurers are recognised as a deduction item against gross
claims when claims are recorded under the conditions in the relevant reinsurance

contracts.
c. Commission expenses

Commissions of reinsurance are recorded as deferred expenses and will be gradually

recognised over the ceding periods as expenses proportionately of earned premium.
d. Other underwriting expenses

Other underwriting expenses are other expenses relating to reinsurance both directly
and indirectly, including various insurance-related contributions, which are recognised

as expenses on accrual basis.
e. Operating expenses

Operating expenses are these operating expenses not related to underwriting and

claims, which are recognised as expenses on accrual basis.
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4.5
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Product classification

The Company classifies inward reinsurance contracts and outward reinsurance contracts
based on the nature of the insurance contracts. Insurance contracts are those contracts
where the insurer has accepted a significant insurance risk from another party (the
policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future
event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder. To determine whether a
significant insurance risk has been accepted, the insurer compares the amount of benefits
payable if an insured event occurs with the amount of benefits payable if the insured event
did not occur. If the above condition is not met, the Company classifies the insurance
contract as an investment contract. Investment contracts are the contracts that have the
legal form of insurance contracts and transfer financial risk to the insurer, but not significant

insurance risk. Financial risks are as interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, or price risk.

The Company classifies contracts based on an assessment of the significance of the
insurance risk at an inception of contract on a contract-by-contract basis. Once a contract
has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the
remainder of its lifetime. If any contract is previously classified as an investment contract at
an inception of contract, it may, however, be reclassified to be an insurance contract later if

the level of the insurance risk increases significantly.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at bank, and all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal

restrictions.
Reinsurance assets

Reinsurance assets consist of long-term insurance policy reserves refundable from

reinsurers and unearned premium reserves, less allowance for doubtful accounts (if any).

Insurance reserves refundable from reinsurers are estimated, proportionally based on the
reinsurance terms of long-term insurance policy reserves and unearned premium reserves

in accordance with the insurance reserve calculation laws.

The Company set up a provision for impairment when it has objective evidence, as a result
of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance assets, that the
Company may not receive payment from reinsurers and these amounts, which are effected

from an event, can be measured reliably.
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4.6 Reinsurance receivables and due to reinsurers

4.7

Reinsurance receivables

Reinsurance receivables are stated at amounts deposited on reinsurance and

amounts due from reinsurers

Amounts due from reinsurers consist of premium receivables, commission income
receivables, claim receivables and various other items receivable from reinsurers, and
are deducted by allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company records allowance for
doubtful accounts for the estimated losses that may be incurred due to uncollectibles,
taking into account collection experience and the status of reinsurers as at the end of

the reporting periods.
Due to reinsurers

Due to reinsurers are stated at amounts due to reinsurers and other amounts due to

reinsurers which consist of other reinsurance payable to reinsurers, excluding claims.

The Company presents net of reinsurance to the same entity (reinsurance receivables or

due to reinsurers) when the following criteria for offsetting are met.

(1)

(2)

The Company has a legal right to offset amounts presented in the statements of

financial position, and

The Company intends to receive or pay the net amount recognised in the statements

of financial position, or to realise the asset at the same time as it pays the liability.

Investment assets

Investments in securities

Trading investments are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value of these

investments are recorded in statement of income.

Available-for-sale investments are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
these investments are recorded in statements of comprehensive income, and will be

recorded in statement of income when the investments are sold.

Held-to-maturity investments are presented at amortised cost. The premium/discount
on the investments is amortised/accreted by the effective interest rate method with the

amortised/accreted amount presented as an adjustment to the interest income.
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Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which are classified as general

investments, are stated at cost net of allowance for impairment (if any).

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last
working day of the year as quoted on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The fair value
of debt securities is determined based on yield rates or prices quoted by the Thai
Bond Market Association. The fair value of investment units is determined from their

net asset value.

In the event the Company reclassifies investments from one type to another, such
investments will be readjusted to their fair value as at the reclassification date. The
difference between the carrying amount of the investments and the fair value on the
date of reclassification are recorded in statements of income or recorded as
revaluation surplus or deficit on available-for-sale investment in other components of

owners’ equity, depending on the type of investment that is reclassified.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
cost of the investments is recognised in statements of income. The weighted average

method is used for computation of the cost of investments.

The Company records purchases and sales of investments in equity securities on
trade dates and records purchases and sales of investments in debt securities on

settlement dates.
b. Loans

Loans are stated at net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided
for the estimated loss that may be incurred in collection of loans. Increase (decrease)

in allowance for doubtful accounts is recognised as expenses in statement of income.
c. Investment in an associate

Investment in an associate, as presented in the financial statements in which the
equity method is applied, is recorded initially at cost and is subsequently adjusted to
reflect the proportionate share of the associate’s net income or loss and deducted by

dividend income.

Investment in an associate, as presented in the separate financial statements, is
stated at cost net of allowance for impairment (if any). Loss on impairment is recorded

as an expense in statement of income.
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4.8 Premises and equipment and depreciation

4.9

Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and allowance for impairment (if any).

Depreciation of buildings and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the

straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings - 20 years
Office equipment and furniture - bSyears
Computers - 3years
Motor vehicles - bSyears

Depreciation is recognised as expense in statement of income. No depreciation is provided
on land and construction in progress.

An item of property, buildings and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal of an asset is included in statement of income when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and allowance for
impairment (if any).

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over their economic
useful lives and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such
intangible assets are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. The amortisation
expense is charged to statement of income. No amortisation is provided on computer
program under development.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives, which are computer softwares, have an estimated
economic useful life of 10 years.
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4.10 Impairment of assets

4.11
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At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect
of investments, premises and equipment and intangible assets whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised
as expenses in statement of income when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the
higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the

carrying amount.

In the assessment of asset impairment if there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The increased carrying amount of
the asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised immediately in statement of income.

Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities consist of long-term insurance policy reserves, loss reserves,

claims payable and premium reserves.
a. Long-term insurance policy reserves

At the end of the reporting period, the Company compares the amounts of gross
premium valuation reserves with unearned premium reserves, and if gross premium
valuation reserves are higher than unearned premium reserves, the Company will
provide additional reserves for such difference.

(1) Unearned premium reserves

Life reinsurance - Treaty - Monthly average basis
(the one-twenty fourth basis)
Life reinsurance - Facultative - Daily average basis (the one-three

hundred and sixty fifth basis)

Outward unearned premium reserve is calculated based on reinsurance
premium ceded, as the same method as inward reinsurance, that transfer

insurance risk to reinsurer throughout the coverage period of insurance contract.
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(2) Gross premium valuation reserves

Gross premium valuation reserves are life policy reserves, calculated using an
actuarial method in accordance with the OIC notifications. The main
assumptions applied relate to lapse or surrender rate, selling and administrative
expenses, mortality, morbidity, discount rate and non-guaranteed dividend
payment rate.

Loss reserves

Loss reserves are provided upon receipt of claim advices from the insured based on
the claims notified by the insured and estimates made by the Company’s
management. The maximum value of estimated claim will not exceed the sum-insured

under the relevant policy.

Loss reserves are calculated using an actuarial method based on the best estimate of
claims expected to be paid to the insured in respect of losses incurred before or as at
the end of the reporting period whether or not the claims are reported to the Company,
including loss adjustment expenses. Differences of the then-calculated loss reserves
and the loss reserves already recognised in the financial statements is claims incurred
but not yet reported (IBNR).

Premium reserves

Premium reserves are short-term insurance policy reserves. At the end of the
reporting period, the Company compares the amount of unexpired risk reserves with
that of net unearned premium reserves from deferred commission expenses, and if
the amounts of unexpired risk reserves are higher than the amounts of unearned
premium reserves net of deferred commission expenses, the Company will recognise
additional reserves for such difference. However, the increase or decrease in

unearned premium reserves from prior year is to be recognised in profit or loss.

(1) Unearned premium reserves

Life reinsurance - Treaty - Monthly average basis
(the one-twenty fourth basis)
Life reinsurance - Facultative - Daily average basis (the one-three

hundred and sixty fifth basis)

Outward unearned premium reserve is calculated based on reinsurance
premium ceded, as the same method as inward reinsurance, that transfer

insurance risk to reinsurer throughout the coverage period of insurance contract.
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(2) Unexpired risk reserves

Unexpired risk reserves are the reserves for the future claims that may be
incurred in respect of in-force policies. Unexpired risk reserves are set aside
using an actuarial method, at the best estimate of the claims that are expected
be incurred during the remaining coverage period, based on historical claim

data.
4.12 Employee benefit obligation
a. Defined contribution plans

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is
monthly contributed by employees and by the Company. The fund’s assets are held in
a separate trust fund and the Company’s contributions are recognised as expenses

when incurred.
b. Defined benefit plans

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payment it must make to
employees upon retirement under labor law. The Company treats this severance

payment obligation as a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial

techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits are recognised
immediately in the statement of comprehensive income and recorded directly to

retained earnings.
4.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.
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414

4.15

4.16

Long-term leases

Leases of assets which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Company as a leasee are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the
lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are presented as
long-term liabilities, while the interest element is charged to statement of income over the
lease periods. The assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of

the lesser periods and the useful lives of the leased assets.

Leases of assets, which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Company, as the leasee, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognised as an expense in statement of income on a straight line basis
over the lease terms. When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has
expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as

an expense in the period in which termination takes place.
Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also the Company’s functional

currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Gains and losses on exchange are included in statement of income.
Income taxes

Income tax expenses represent the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and

deferred income taxes.
a. Current income taxes

Current income taxes are provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid
to the taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax

legislation.
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b. Deferred income taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period,

using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Company recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences
while it recognises deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which such

deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

At each reporting period, the Company reviews and reduces the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profit will be available to allow all or a part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

The Company records deferred taxes directly to equity if the taxes relate to items that

are recorded directly to equity.
Related party transactions

Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that control, or are controlled by, the
Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the

Company.

They also include associated companies, and individuals or enterprises which directly or
indirectly own a voting interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the
Company, key management personnel, directors, and officers with authority in the planning

and direction of the Company’s operations.
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement
date. The Company applies a quoted market price in an active market to measure its assets
and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting
standards. Except in case when there is no active market of an identical asset or liability or
when a quoted market price is not available, the Company measures fair value using a
valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and maximises the use of
relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured

at fair value.
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5.1

5.2

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on

categories of inputs to be used in fair value measurements as follows:

Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or

liabilities

Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or

indirectly
Level 3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the

end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards at times requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates
regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect
reported amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates.

Significant judgements and estimates are as follows:
Allowance for doubtful accounts on amounts due from reinsurers

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts on amounts due from reinsurers, the
management needs to make judgement and estimates based upon, among other things,
past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic

condition.
Impairment on reinsurance assets

In determining impairment on reinsurance assets, the management needs to make
judgement and estimates loss on impairment of each reinsurers based on conditions in
contract and events occurred that the Company may not receive entire amount under the

term of contract.
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5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7
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Allowance for impairment on investments in equity securities

The Company treats available-for-sale investments and general investments as impaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost or
where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is

“significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement of the management.
Premises and equipment and depreciation

In determining depreciation of buildings and equipment, the management is required to
estimates of the useful lives and residual values of the buildings and equipment and to

review estimate useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review premises and equipment for impairment
on a periodical basis and record impairment losses when it is determined that their
recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgements regarding

forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.
Intangible assets and amortisation

The initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets, and subsequent impairment
testing, require management to make estimates of cash flows to be generated by the asset
or the cash generating units and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the

present value of those cash flows.
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of

estimated future taxable profits.
Gross premium valuation reserves

Gross premium valuation reserves are calculated using the actuarial method based on the
current assumptions or assumptions determined on the policy inception dates, which reflect
the best estimates at that times. The main assumptions used are policy surrender or lapse
rates, selling and administrative expenses, mortality, morbidity, longevity, discount rates,
non-guaranteed dividend rates and so on. However, the use of different assumptions could
affect the amount of life policy reserves and adjustments to the life policy reserves may

therefore be required in the future.
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5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

Loss reserves

At the end of each reporting period, the Company has to estimate loss reserves and
outstanding claims taking into account two factors. These are the claims incurred and
reported, and the claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), the losses on which are
estimated using international standard actuarial techniques. The major assumptions used
under these techniques consist of historical data, including the development of claims
estimates, paid, average costs per claim and claim numbers etc. Nevertheless, such

estimates are forecasts of future outcomes, and actual results could differ.
Unexpired risk reserves

Unexpired risk reserves are calculated using an actuarial technique, based on the best
estimate of the claims and relevant expenses expected to be paid over the remaining terms
of the insurance. Estimating such reserves requires the management to exercise judgment,

with reference to historical data and the best estimates available at the time.
Obligation under the defined benefit plan

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial techniques.
Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future

salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.
Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the
management is required to use judgement regarding whether significant risk and rewards of
ownership of the leased asset has been transferred, taking into consideration terms and

conditions of the arrangement.
Recognition and derecognition of assets and liabilities

In considering whether to recognise or to derecognise assets or liabilities, the management
is required to make judgement on whether significant risk and rewards of those assets or
liabilities have been transferred, based on their best knowledge of the current events and

arrangements.
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5.13 Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments that are not actively traded and for
which quoted market prices are not readily available, the management exercises
judgement, using a variety of valuation techniques and models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets, and include consideration of credit risk (the Company
and its counterparty), liquidity risk, correlation and longer-term volatility of financial
instruments. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value and

disclosures of fair value hierarchy.

6. Cash and cash equivalents

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied
and Separate financial statements as at

31 December

2019 2018
Cash 4,052 8,783
Deposits at banks with no fixed maturity date 8,788,149 44,821,548
Deposits at other financial institutions 25,005,866 10,277,168
Total cash and cash equivalents 33,798,067 55,107,499

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, saving deposits, and deposits at other financial

institutions carried interests between 0.1 and 1.0 percent per annum.

7. Reinsurance assets

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied and
Separate financial statements as at
31 December

2019 2018
Insurance reserves refundable from reinsurers
Long-term insurance policy reserves 2,656,014 2,883,108
Unearned premium reserves 6,323 7,415
Total reinsurance assets 2,662,337 2,890,523
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8.

Reinsurance receivables

Amounts deposited on reinsurance
Amounts due from reinsurers

Total reinsurance receivables

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied and
Separate financial statements as at
31 December

2019 2018
92,399,180 62,033,064
122,197,319 133,471,261
214,596,499 195,504,325

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the balances of amounts due from reinsurers, classified by

overdue periods of principal, are as follows:

Not yet due
Overdue not longer than 12 months
Over 1 year to 2 years

Total amounts due from reinsurers

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied and
Separate financial statements as at
31 December

2019 2018
121,845,713 128,521,206
272,060 4,740,264
79,546 209,791
122,197,319 133,471,261
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9. Investments in securities

9.1 Classified by types of investments

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied
and Separate financial statements as at 31 December
2019 2018
Cost/ Cost/
Amortised cost Fair value Amortised cost Fair value

Trading investments
Equity securities 75,613,249 72,336,094 86,439,441 78,514,664
Less: Unrealised loss (3,277,155) - (7,924,777) -
Trading investments - net 72,336,094 72,336,094 78,514,664 78,514,664
Available-for-sale investments
Equity securities 825,763,670 803,962,688 959,411,077 943,332,306
Less : Unrealised loss (21,800,982) - (16,078,771) -
Available-for-sale investments - net 803,962,688 803,962,688 943,332,306 943,332,306
Held-to-maturity investments
Government and state enterprise

securities 709,081,922 546,367,877
Private enterprise debt securities 214,648,412 179,999,849
Deposits at financial institutions which

mature over 3 months 145,000,000 130,000,000
Total held-to-maturity investments 1,068,730,334 856,367,726
General investments
Equity securities 2,105,720 2,105,720
Total general investments 2,105,720 2,105,720
Investments in securities - net 1,947,134,836 1,880,320,416
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9.3

9.4

Remaining period of debt securities
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As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, Investments in debt securities have the following

remaining periods to maturity.

Held-to-maturity investments

Government and state enterprise
securities

Private enterprises debt securities

Deposits at financial institutions
with an original maturity period

longer than 3 months

Total held-to-maturity investments

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements as at 31 December

2019

2018

Period to maturity

Period to maturity

Within Within
1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Total 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Total
445,675,238 132,717,416 130,689,268 709,081,922 411,084,862 69,940,372 65,342,643 546,367,877
30,000,000 133,000,000 51,648,412 214,648,412 119,999,849 60,000,000 179,999,849
145,000,000 145,000,000 130,000,000 130,000,000
620,675,238 265,717,416 182,337,680 1,068,730,334 661,084,711 129,940,372 65,342,643 856,367,726
Revaluation surplus (deficit) on available-for-sale investments
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the

equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

Revaluation surplus (deficit) on available-for-sale investments - net of income taxes

- beginning of the years

Revaluation increase (decrease) during the years

Gains transferred to be recognised in statements of income

Total losses on revaluation of available-for-sale investments

Add: Income taxes

Losses on revaluation of available-for-sale investments - net of income taxes

Revaluation deficit on available-for-sale investments - net of income taxes

- end of the years

Investments subject to restriction

2019 2018
(12,863,016) 43,958,235
19,707,595 (45,837,502)
(25,429,808) (25,189,062)
(5,722,213) (71,026,564)
1,144,443 14,205,313
(4,577,770) (56,821,251)
(17,440,786) (12,863,016)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company placed some investments as a security

with the Registrar and had some investments placed to guarantee for electricity

consumption as described in Notes 27 and 28 to the financial statements.
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10. Loans
The ending balances of loans are loans provided to employees in accordance with the
Company’s employee welfare plan at the interest rate of not lower than 1.00% and not
higher than MLR-3% per annum. The MLR is reference to that announced by commercial
banks, depending on types of loans granted. The whole amounts of the outstanding
balances were classified as not yet due and no interest was receivable as of the end of the
reporting period.
(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied
and Separate financial statements as at
31 December
2019 2018
Mortgage loans 1,029,648 1,350,532
Total loans 1,029,648 1,350,532
11. Investment in an associate

11.1 Details of an associate

Nature of Country of Issued and paid-up share capital Shareholding percentage held by
Company’s name business incorporation as at 31 December the Company as at 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
(Thousand Baht) (Thousand Baht) (%) (%)
TKI Life Insurance Company Limited  Life insurance Laos 66,118 66,118 32.50 32.50

Company’s name

Fi

nancial statements

in which the equity method is applied

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

TKI Life Insurance Company Limited

Investment value under equity method

as at 31 December

Investment value under cost method as

at 31 December

2019

2018

2019 2018

13

,625 16,102

21,684 21,684
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11.2 Financial information of an associate

Summarised information about financial position

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

TKI Life Insurance Company Limited

31 December

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

Shareholding percentage (%)

Carrying amount of an associate under equity method

2019 2018
44,067 50,607
(2,145) (1,062)
41,922 49,545
32.50 32.50
13,625 16,102

Summarised information of statements of comprehensive income

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

TKI Life Insurance Company Limited

For the years ended 31 December

Total revenues

Loss for the years

Total comprehensive loss for the year

2019 2018
7,345 4,012
(2,227) (5,416)
(2,227) (5,416)

Annual Report 2019 181



usun Tngsus:Nudda 10 (UK3U)

11.3 Share of profit (loss) and other comprehensive income and dividend income

During the years, the Company recognised shares of loss and other comprehensive income
from investment in an associate in the financial statements, in which the equity method is
applied, and recognised dividends received from an associate in the separate financial

statements as below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied Separate financial statements

Share of other comprehensive

Share of loss from investment income from investment in an

in an associate for the years associate for the years ended Dividends received for the
Associate ended 31 December 31 December years ended 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
TKI Life Insurance
Company Limited (825) (2,007) - - - -
(825) (2,007) - - - -

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company presented investment in an associate
under the equity method in the financial statements, in which the equity method is applied,
based on the financial information, as prepared by the associate’s management. However,
the Company obtained the 2018 financial statements of TKI Life Insurance Company
Limited, which were audited by the associate’s auditor under report dated 26 March 2019.
Such audited financial statements presented financial information that was not significantly
different from the financial information prepared by the associate’s management used for

equity-accounting in that year.
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12. Premises and equipment

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

Furniture,
fixture and Motor Construction
Land Buildings equipment Computers vehicles in progress Total

Cost
As at 1 January 2018 17,640,000 33,678,112 6,172,458 2,651,041 3,008,606 1,157,080 64,307,297
Additions - 1,714,593 2,270,742 554,806 - 8,362,681 12,902,822
Transfer in (out) - 1,157,080 - - - (1,157,080) -
Disposals - - (2,501,666) (63,294) (3,008,606) - (5,573,566)
As at 31 December 2018 17,640,000 36,549,785 5,941,534 3,142,553 - 8,362,681 71,636,553
Additions - 986,842 1,036,829 588,350 - - 2,612,021
Transfer in (out) - 6,668,687 1,693,994 - - (8,362,681) -
Disposals - - (337,237) (125,083) - - (462,320)
Adjustment - - - (50,574) - - (50,574)
As at 31 December 2019 17,640,000 44,205,314 8,335,120 3,555,246 - - 73,735,680
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2018 - 10,918,620 3,517,107 793,522 2,758,606 - 17,987,855
Depreciation for the year - 1,776,312 819,255 831,527 - - 3,427,094
Accumulated depreciation

on disposals - - (2,173,223) (58,640) (2,758,606) - (4,990,469)
As at 31 December 2018 - 12,694,932 2,163,139 1,566,409 - - 16,424,480
Depreciation for the year - 2,096,980 1,381,103 1,004,154 - - 4,482,237
Accumulated depreciation -

on disposals - - (324,467) (120,766) - (445,233)
Adjustment - - - (34,177) - - (34,177)
As at 31 December 2019 - 14,791,912 3,219,775 2,415,620 - - 20,427,307
Net book value
31 December 2018 17,640,000 23,854,853 3,778,395 1,576,144 - 8,362,681 55,212,073
31 December 2019 17,640,000 29,413,402 5,115,345 1,139,626 - - 53,308,373
Depreciation for the years
2018 3,427,094
2019 4,482,237

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, certain equipment items have been fully depreciated but
are still in use. The original cost before deducting accumulated depreciation of those assets

amounted to approximately Baht 1.3 million.

Annual Report 2019 183



usun Tngsus:Nudda 10 (UK3U)

13. Intangible assets

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in

which the equity method is
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applied and Separate

financial statements

Computer softwares

Cost

1 January 2018 42,557,704
Additions 2,326,476
Transfer in (out) (472,940)
31 December 2018 44,411,240
Additions 281,838

Adjustment (19,757)
31 December 2019 44,673,321

Accumulated amortisation

1 January 2018 2,278,723

Amortisation during the year 4,440,864

Accumulated amortisation on disposals (143,307)
31 December 2018 6,576,280

Amortisation during the year 4,451,228

Adjustment (4,006)
31 December 2019 11,023,502

Net book value

31 December 2018 37,834,960

31 December 2019 33,649,819




14.1 Deferred tax assets

14. Deferred tax assets and income tax expenses
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As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the components of deferred tax assets were as follows:

Deferred tax assets arose

from:
Loss reserves
Commission payable on
reinsurance
Employee benefit
obligations
Unrealised losses on
available-for-sale

investments

Deferred commission - net

Others
Deferred tax assets

Total changes

Recognition of changes in:

- Statements of income

Financial statements

in which the equity

Separate financial

Financial statements

in which the equity

method is applied

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial

statements

Changes in deferred tax Changes in deferred tax

- Statements of comprehensive income

Total changes

method is applied statements assets for assets for
31 31 31 31 the years ended the years ended
December December December December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
1,558 4,341 1,558 4,341 (2,783) (2,649) (2,783) (2,649)
30,872 34,123 30,872 34,123 (3,251) (8,280) (3,251) (8,280)
2,816 2,174 2,816 2,174 642 356 642 356
4,360 3,216 4,360 3,216 1,144 14,206 1,144 14,206
(15,657) (14,155) (15,657) (14,155) (1,502) (1,037) (1,502) (1,037)
4,643 1,098 3,031 1,098 3,545 50 1,933 50
28,592 30,797 26,980 30,797
(2,205) (16,488) (3,817) (16,488)
(4,252) (11,737) (5,208) (11,737)
2,047 14,383 1,391 14,383
(2,205) 2,646 (3,817) 2,646
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14.2 Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are made up as

follows:

Financial statements in which

the equity method is applied

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

For the years ended

31 December

For the years ended

31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018

Current income taxes:
Interim corporate income tax charge (33,537) (44,818) (33,537) (44,818)
Adjustment of prior year's income tax expenses 40 - 40 -
Deferred income taxes:
Relating to origination and reversal of

temporary differences (4,252) (11,737) (5,208) (11,737)
Income tax expenses reported in the

statements of income (37,749) (56,555) (38,705) (56,555)

Reconciliation between income tax expenses and the product of accounting profits for the

year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 and the applicable tax rate is as follows:

Financial statements in which

the equity method is applied

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

For the years ended

31 December

For the years ended

31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018

Accounting profits before income tax expenses 232,005 310,022 232,830 312,028
Applicable tax rate 20% 20% 20% 20%
Income taxes at the applicable tax rate (46,401) (62,004) (46,566) (62,406)
Adjustment of prior year's income tax expenses 40 - 40 -
Tax effects of:

Non-taxable revenues 8,275 5,649 8,275 5,649

Non-tax deductible expenses (848) (18) (848) (18)

Additional tax-deductible expenses allowed 466 292 466 292

Others 719 (474) (72) (72)
Total 8,612 5,449 7,821 5,851
Income tax expenses reported in the

statements of income (37,749) (56,555) (38,705) (56,555)
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15. Insurance contract liabilities

(Unit: Baht)

Insurance Liabilities on
contract liabilities reinsurance Net

Long-term insurance policy reserves 471,181,653 (2,656,014) 468,525,639
Loss reserves

Claims incurred and reported 347,636 - 347,636

Claims incurred but not yet reported 7,442,576 - 7,442,576
Premium reserves

Unearned premium reserves 298,051,789 (6,323) 298,045,466

Unexpired risk reserves 9,507,891 - 9,507,891
Total 786,531,545 (2,662,337) 783,869,208

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is

applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2019

Financial statements in which the equity method is

applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2018

Insurance Liabilities on
contract liabilities reinsurance Net

Long-term insurance policy reserves 406,751,589 (2,883,108) 403,868,481
Loss reserves

Claims incurred and reported 343,915 - 343,915

Claims incurred but not yet reported 21,358,494 - 21,358,494
Premium reserves

Unearned premium reserves 255,423,506 (7,415) 255,416,091
Total 683,877,504 (2,890,523) 680,986,981
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15.1 Long-term insurance policy reserves

15.2
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Beginning balances

Reserves increased from new policies
and enforced policies

Insurance policy reserves decreased from
benefit paid for lapse, surrender and others

Assumptions changes

Ending balances

Loss reserves

Beginning balances

Claims incurred for the year

Changes in loss reserve

Changes in assumptions for calculating loss
reserves

Claims paid during the year

Ending balances

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2019 2018
406,751,589 321,283,566
120,753,086 143,083,523

(61,865,391)

(41,212,054)

5,542,369 (16,403,446)
471,181,653 406,751,589
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2019 2018
21,702,409 34,949,431
1,003,236,892 979,028,274
1,784,243 56,925,383

(15,700,440)
(1,003,232,892)

(66,185,055)
(983,015,624)

7,790,212

21,702,409
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15.4

15.5

Key assumptions

The key assumptions used in the calculation of long-term insurance policy reserves under

gross premium valuation method for liabilities adequacy test are determined as follows:
a. Mortality rate

The Company uses the Thai mortality table as a base and adjusts it based on the

Company’s experience.
b. Lapse rates

The Company determines the assumptions based on historical actual lapse rates of the

Company.
c. Discount rate

The Company uses zero coupon government bond yield curve as a baseline, which will
be adjusted for the credit spread between these and A-rated corporate debt securities

with 10 years to maturity in order to expiate the illiquidity risk premium.

Key actuarial assumptions in IBNR calculation is the ultimate loss ratio, The ultimate loss

ratio is calculated by dividing estimated ultimate losses by estimated ultimate premiums.

Unearned premium reserves

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2019 2018
Beginning balances 255,423,506 222,128,295
Premium written for the years 1,312,036,745 1,322,323,819
Premium earned during the years (1,269,408,462) (1,289,028,608)
Endmg balances 298,051,789 255,423,506
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15.6 Unexpired risk reserves

Beginning balances
Increase during the years

Dissolved during the years

Ending balances

16. Due to reinsurers

Amounts due to reinsurers

Total due to reinsurers
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(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2019 2018

9,507,891 -

9,507,891 -
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied
and Separate financial statements as at

31 December

2019 2018
137,009,478 184,571,501
137,009,478 184,571,501
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17. Employee benefit obligations

The movements of employee benefit obligations during the years ended 31 December 2019

and 2018 were as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2019 2018
Employee benefit obligations at beginning
of the years 10,871,877 9,087,919
Recognised in statements of income:
Current service costs 1,249,432 765,915
Interest costs 233,209 125,831
Past service costs 2,069,239 -
Total items included in statements of income 3,551,880 891,746
Recognised in statements of comprehensive
income:
Actuarial (gains) losses due to
- Demographic assumptions changes - (135,863)
- Financial assumptions changes 1,148,878 (351,014)
- Experience adjustments 87,554 1,379,089
Total actuarial losses 1,236,432 892,212
Total items included in statements of
comprehensive income 1,236,432 892,212
Benefits paid during the years (1,579,200) -
Employee benefit obligations at end of the years 14,080,989 10,871,877

As at 31 December 2019, the Company expected to pay employee benefits of Baht 0.8

million over the next 1-year period (31 December 2018: Nil).

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the weighted average durations of payments of

employee benefits were approximately 12.0 years and 10.0 years, respectively.
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The significant assumptions used in calculation of the defined benefit plan were

summarised below.

Discount rate
Salary incremental rate

Staff turnover rates

(Unit: % per annum)

For the years ended 31 December

2019 2018
1.7 2.6
6.5 6.5

0.0-225 0.0-225

The impact from sensitivity analysis from significant assumptions that affect employee

benefit obligations as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were summarised below.

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and

Separate financial statements

Increase (decrease) in Increase (decrease) in

employee benefit employee benefit

Assumption obligations as at Assumption obligations as at
increase 31 December 2019 decrease 31 December 2019
% per annum Baht % per annum Baht
Discount rate 1.0 (1,178,774) 1.0 1,381,855
Salary increasing rate 1.0 1,492,685 1.0 (1,298,706)
Staff turnover rate 10.0(M (967,443) 10.0M 1,112,183

M 10% of assumed staff turnover rates.

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and

Separate financial statements

Increase (decrease) in

Increase (decrease) in

employee benefit employee benefit

Assumption obligations as at Assumption obligations as at
increase 31 December 2018 decrease 31 December 2018
% per annum Baht % per annum Baht
Discount rate 1.0 (592,373) 1.0 697,563
Salary increasing rate 1.0 837,411 1.0 (732,019)
Staff turnover rate 10.00 (499,082) 10.0M 577,397

M 10% of assumed staff turnover rates.
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18.

19.

20.

20.1

ThaiRe Life Assurance PCL

On 5 April 2019, the Labor Protection Act (No. 7) B.E. 2562 was announced in the Royal
Gazette, which stipulates additional legal severance pay rates for employees who have
worked for an uninterrupted period of twenty years or more, with such employees entitled to
receive not less than 400 days’ compensation at the latest wage rate. The law is effective
from 5 May 2019. This change is considered a post-employment benefits plan amendment,
resulting in the Company having addition employee benefit obligations of Baht 2 million. The
Company already reflected the effect of such change by recognising past service costs as

expenses in the statement of income.
Share capital

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company’s has the registered, issued and paid-up

share capital consists of about 600 million shares with par value of Baht 1 per share.
Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is
required to set aside a statutory reserve at least 5% of its net income after deducting
accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10% of the registered

capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
Segment information
Operating segment information reporting

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports
that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker in order to make
decisions about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its performance. The

Chief Operating Decision Maker has been identified as President.

For management purposes, the Company is organised into business units based on its
products and services and have two reportable segments are “conventional products” and
“non-conventional products”. Segments are differentiated based on the design of the
product, and specifically whether they are a traditional product line available in the current
market or a new type of product in expectation of market demand and the Company can

continuously service.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating

segments.
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The Chief Operating Decision Maker has reviewed the operating results of the operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions and assessing performance.
Segment performance is measured based on operating profit or loss and on a basis
consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss in the financial statements.
However, in the part of assets and liabilities, segment performance is measured based on
the same basis applied to the financial statements whereby operating segments were not

separately measured.

The basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments is consistent with

that for third party transactions.

Operating segment information for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 can be

classified by type of products as follows:

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Conventional Non-conventional
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Underwriting revenues

Reinsurance premium written

Less: Reinsurance premium ceded

Net reinsurance premium written

Add (Less): Unearned premium reserves
(increased) decreased from prior year

Earned premium

Underwriting expenses

Long-term insurance policy reserves increased

products

products

Total

1,261,692,996
(14,580,307)

1,078,009,862
(1,012,939)

2,339,702,858
(15,593,246)

1,247,112,689

14,384,664

1,076,996,923

(57,014,039)

2,324,109,612

(42,629,375)

1,261,497,353

1,019,982,884

2,281,480,237

(decreased) from prior year (7,662,622) 72,319,780 64,657,158
Unexpired risk reserves increased from prior year 5,097,739 4,410,152 9,507,891
Net benefits and claims 768,945,532 651,688,963 1,420,634,495
Commissions and brokerages expenses - net 335,400,529 198,990,955 534,391,484
Other underwriting expenses 18,268,719 15,609,075 33,877,794
Total underwriting expenses 1,120,049,897 943,018,925 2,063,068,822
Profit from underwriting 141,447,456 76,963,959 218,411,415
Operating expenses (92,155,677)
Profit from operations 126,255,738
Share of loss from investment in an associate (825,217)
Net investment revenue 100,899,873
Other income 5,674,198
Profit before income tax expenses 232,004,592
Income tax expenses (37,748,950)
Profit for the year 194,255,642




20.2

Underwriting revenues

Reinsurance premium written

Less: Reinsurance premium ceded

Net reinsurance premium written

Less: Unearned premium reserves increased

from prior year

Earned premium

Underwriting expenses

Long-term insurance policy reserves increased
(decreased) from prior year

Net benefits and claims

Commissions and brokerages expenses - net

Other underwriting expenses

Total underwriting expenses

Profit from underwriting

Operating expenses

Profit from operations

Share of loss from investment in an associate

Net investment revenue

Other revenue

Profit before income tax expenses

Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Geographic information

ThaiRe Life Assurance PCL

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Conventional

products

Non-conventional

products

Total

1,351,339,445
(18,585,235)

1,048,958,466
(952,913)

2,400,297,911
(19,538,148)

1,332,754,210

(25,988,933)

1,048,005,553

(7,308,429)

2,380,759,763

(33,297,362)

1,306,765,277

1,040,697,124

2,347,462,401

(6,362,832) 92,953,381 86,590,549
733,374,470 637,086,516 1,370,460,986
330,223,226 215,442,210 545,665,436

14,200,994 11,023,325 25,224,319
1,071,435,858 956,505,432 2,027,941,290
235,329,419 84,191,692 319,521,111
(85,419,003)
234,102,108
(2,006,781)
76,124,160
1,802,199
310,021,686

(56,555,171)

253,466,515

The Company operates in Thailand only. As a result, all the revenues and assets as

reflected in these financial statements pertain exclusively to this geographical reportable

segment.
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20.3 Major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had total reinsurance
premium written from each life insurance company for the amount equal to or higher than

10% of total reinsurance premium written as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

For the years end periods ended 31 December

2019 2018
Reinsurance premium written 1,238 1,233
21. Operating expenses
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2019 2018
Personnel expenses 49,526,630 41,533,002
Premises and equipment expenses 15,929,248 17,894,686
Taxes and duties 162,668 200,961
Other operating expenses 26,537,131 25,790,354
Total operating expenses 92,155,677 85,419,003

198 shgvuuds:aU 2562




ThaiRe Life Assurance PCL

22,

23.

24,

Expenses by nature

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2019 2018
Long-term insurance policy reserves increased 64,657,158 86,590,549
Unexpired risk reserves increased 9,507,891 -
Net benefits and claims 1,418,620,263 1,368,268,133
Commission expenses 536,058,822 548,594,785
Other underwriting expenses 5,261,943 6,077,734
Personnel expenses 78,581,025 61,606,758
Premises and equipment expenses 15,929,248 17,894,686
Other expenses 28,275,487 27,256,997
Total expenses by nature 2,156,891,837 2,116,289,642

Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance
with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The fund is contributed to by both the employees
and the Company on a monthly basis, at rates ranging from 5% to 10% of the employees’
basic salaries, based on the length of employment. The fund is managed by Krungsri Fund
Management Company Limited and will be paid to employees upon termination in
accordance with the fund rules. During the years 2019 and 2018, the Company contributed

Baht 3.9 million and Bath 3.4 million, respectively, to the fund.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the years.
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25. Dividends paid

Dividends declared during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 consisted of the

following:

Final dividend from 2018 net profit

Interim dividend for 2019

Total dividends paid during the year of 2019

Final dividend from 2017 net income

Interim dividend for 2018

Total dividend paid during the year of 2018

26. Related party transactions

26.1 Nature of relationship

Total Dividend
Approved by dividend per share

(Million Baht) (Baht)
Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 23 April 2019 90.0 0.15
Board of Director meeting

on 20 August 2019 78.0 0.13

168.0 0.28

Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 25 April 2018 180.0 0.30
Board of Director meeting

on 21 August 2018 120.0 0.20

300.0 0.50

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance

of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

The relationship between the Company and its related parties are summarised below:

Name of related parties

Relationship with the Company

TKI Life Insurance Company Limited

Thai Reinsurance Plc.

Bangkok Life Assurance Plc.

The Navakij Insurance Plc.

Thaire Services Co., Ltd.

Thai Life Insurance Plc.

Thaire Actuarial Consulting Co., Ltd.
EMCS Thai Co., Ltd.

Thaire Innovation Co., Ltd.
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An associate whereby the Company holds 32.50% of its shares

Related by way of having common directors and being the
Company’s shareholder

Related by way of having a common director and being the
Company’s shareholder

Related by way of having a common director and being the
Company’s shareholder

Related by way of having common directors and a shareholder

Related by way of having a common director

Related by way of having a common director and a shareholder

Related by way of having a common director and a shareholder

Related by way of having a common director and a shareholder
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26.2 Significant related party transactions

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had significant
business transactions with its related parties. Such transactions, which have been
concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon in the ordinary course of business

between the Company and those related parties are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
For the years ended

31 December

2019 2018 Pricing policy

Transaction with associates

Revenues

Service revenues( 5,301 276  Mutually agreed rates

Transactions with related parties

Revenues

Reinsurance premium written 512,959 480,317  According to terms of reinsurance
contracts

Commission income 752 662  According to terms of reinsurance
contracts

Service revenues(!) - 208  Mutually agreed rates

Expenses

Reinsurance premium ceded 2,689 2,436  According to terms of reinsurance
contracts

Claim expenses 319,516 301,493  According to the ratios as specified in the
reinsurance contracts

Claims refundable (932) (860) According to the ratios as specified in the
reinsurance contracts

Commission expenses 139,375 118,331 According to terms of reinsurance
contracts

Service fee expenses® 7,749 8,915  Mutually agreed rates

Owner’s equity

Dividend paid 20,782 49,761 As declared

™M Included in “Other income” in statements of income

@ Included in “Operating expenses” in statements of income
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26.3

26.4
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Outstanding balances

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had the outstanding balances with its

related parties as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

31 December

2019 2018

Associate

Other receivables" 5,025 108
Related parties

Insurance reserves refundable from reinsurers® 814 694
Amounts due from reinsurers® 70,592 17,765
Amounts deposited on reinsurance® 28,219 753
Deferred commissions expenses 28,001 17,508
Loss reserves® 3,952 4,326
Amounts due to reinsurers® 44,326 16,735
Deferred commissions income 12 10

() Included in “Other assets” in statements of financial position

@ Included in “Reinsurance assets” in statements of financial position

©) Included in “Reinsurance receivables” in statements of financial position

@) Included in “Insurance contract liabilities” in statements of financial position

®) Included in “Due to reinsurers” in statements of financial position
Directors’ and key management’s remuneration

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had salaries, bonuses,
meeting allowances and post-employment benefits incurred in respect of its directors and

key management personnel as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
For the years ended 31 December

2019 2018
Short-term benefits 35,502 34,654
Post employment benefits 4,876 2,960
Total 40,378 37,614
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27. Assets placed and reserved with the Registrar

28.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had the following assets placed and
reserved with the Registrar of the Office of Insurance Commission in accordance with the
Life Insurance Act.

(Unit: Million Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

31 December

2019 2018
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Assets placed
Government bonds 21.0 21.6 21.0 20.8
Assets reserved as insurance reserves
Government and state enterprise bonds 250.0 255.2 214.0 215.3
Private enterprise debt securities 36.0 37.2 - -

Other assets subject to restrictions

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had placed the following assets as
collateral.

(Unit: Million Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

31 December

2019 2018

Guarantee for electricity consumption

Government bonds 0.1 0.1
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29. Commitments
29.1 Operating lease commitments

The Company entered into a lease agreement in respect of the lease of vehicle. The term of
the agreement is 5 years. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had future

minimum lease payments required under such non-cancellable operating lease contract was

as follows.
(Unit: Million Baht)
31 December 31 December
Payable 2019 2018
Within 1 year 0.8 0.8
Longer than 1 year but within 5 years 1.6 24

29.2 Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had no outstanding capital commitments in relation
to building renovation (As at 31 December 2018, the Company had outstanding capital

commitments in relation to building renovation amounting to Baht 0.9 million).
29.3 Service commitments

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had outstanding service commitments
and future minimum service fees amounting to Baht 0.6 million and Baht 1.2 million,

respectively.
30. Risks and risk management policy
30.1 Life insurance risk

Life Insurance risks arising from the conduct of reinsurance activities are managed as

follows:
a. Product design and development and pricing

The Company has established a Product Development Committee to consider
significant issues that would affect the Company’s financial position. Furthermore, after
new products are launched the Company monitors underwriting results, such as
deviations between premium pricing assumptions and actual experience, so that they

can be used to improve the products.
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b. Underwriting of reinsurance

The Company modifies its underwriting guidelines to keep them up to date, based on
technical knowledge and statistical information. Moreover, training is conducted to
engender staff's application of knowledge and discipline when making underwriting
decisions and reviews of whether underwriting practices correspond to the guidelines
are performed to ensure that the risk retention is consistent with the Company’s

identified risk limits.
c. Claim management

The Company has established a standardised claims management process and claims
management guidelines are consistently updated, with due consideration given to risk
management. Moreover, the Company arranges training to impart knowledge to staff,
and working practices are reviewed to ensure they are in accordance with the

guidelines.
d. Retrocession

An excess of loss retrocession program has been implemented as a risk management
tool. The Company buys retrocession coverage for excess of loss in order to limit the
maximum loss per event and regularly performs adequacy tests of reinsurance
protection in the event of major loss events. In addition, the Company has a policy to

retrocede its business only to retrocessionaires that have credit ratings of at least “A-.”
e. Reserve estimates

The Company’s loss reserves are examined and certified by independent actuarial
fellows. Moreover, the Company periodically analyses and montiors deviations between
the reserve calculation assumptions and actual experience to ensure reserves

adequately cover the Company’s obligations.
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f.
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Reinsurance concentration risk

Reinsurance concentration risk is the risk arising from a concentration of business
written within a particular type of contracts. Reinsurance contracts can be divided into
short-term and long-term, which have different obligations. Long-term reinsurance
contract obliges the Company to provide ongoing coverage without changing premiums
or benefits or canceling the contract whereas short-term contract obliges the Company
on a yearly basis and enables the Company to adjust reinsurance conditions when

renewal is made.

Hence, in order to prevent any volatility to the Company’s financial position, the
Company has the policy to balance the portfolio mix of long-term and short-term
contracts. The proportion of long-term and short-term insurance contract liabilities as at

31 December 2019 and 2018 were as follows;

(Unit: Percent)

31December
2019 2018
Long-term contracts 60 59
Short-term contracts 40 41
Total 100 100

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis is performed to analyse the risk that insurance contract liabilities will
increase or decrease as a result of changes in the assumptions used in calculating,
gross and net reserves, profits before taxes, and owner’s equity. The risk may occur
because the frequency of claims, value of claims, or loss adjustment expenses may not

be as expected.
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(1) Sensitivity analysis on long-term insurance policy reserves

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, impacts from changes in assumptions on

long-term insurance policy reserves were shown below:

Mortality rate
Mortality rate
Lapse rate
Lapse rate
Discount rate

Discount rate

31 December 2019

assumption(”)

Increase
(decrease) in
long-term policy
Change in reserves before

retrocession

Increase
(decrease) in
long-term policy
reserves after

retrocession

Increase
(decrease) in
profits before

income taxes

Increase
(decrease) in

owner'’s equity

™ % of each assumption rate.

Mortality rate
Mortality rate
Lapse rate
Lapse rate
Discount rate

Discount rate

% Baht Baht Baht Baht
+5.0 32,207,986 32,207,986 (32,207,986) (25,766,389)
-5.0 (32,681,415) (32,681,415) 32,681,415 26,145,132
+5.0 3,158,067 3,158,067 (3,158,067) (2,526,454)
-5.0 (3,217,120) (3,217,120) 3,217,120 2,573,696
+5.0 (5,805,492) (5,805,492) 5,805,492 4,644,394
-5.0 5,900,265 5,900,265 (5,900,265) (4,720,212)
31 December 2018
Increase Increase
(decrease) in (decrease) in Increase
long-term policy  long-term policy (decrease) in Increase

Change in reserves before

assumption(”) retrocession

reserves after

retrocession

profits before

income taxes

(decrease) in

owner’s equity

% Baht
+5.0 36,547,056
5.0 (37,226,912)
+5.0 4,307,122
5.0 (4,414,260)
+5.0 (7,002,988)
5.0 7,170,581

() % of each assumption rate.

Baht

36,547,056
(37,226,912)
4,307,122
(4,414,260)
(7,002,988)
7,170,581

Baht

(36,547,056)
37,226,912

(4,307,122)
4,414,260
7,002,988

(7,170,581)

Baht

(29,237,645)
29,781,530

(3,445,698)
3,531,408
5,602,390

(5,736,465)
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(2) Sensitivity analysis on short-term insurance policy reserves

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, impacts from changes in assumptions on loss

reserves are shown below:

31 December 2019

Increase
(decrease) in

loss reserves

Increase
(decrease) in

loss reserves

Increase

(decrease) in

Increase

Change in before after profits before (decrease) in
assumption retrocession retrocession income taxes owner’s equity
% Baht Baht Baht Baht
Ultimate loss ratio +5.0 79,861,440 79,861,440 (79,861,440) (63,889,152)
Ultimate loss ratio -5.0 (7,432,178) (7,432,178) 7,432,178 5,945,742
(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2018
Increase Increase
(decrease) in (decrease) in Increase
loss reserves loss reserves (decrease) in Increase
Change in before after profits before (decrease) in
assumption retrocession retrocession income taxes owner’s equity
% Baht Baht Baht Baht
Ultimate loss ratio +5.0 36,187,012 36,187,012 (36,187,012) (28,949,610)
Ultimate loss ratio -5.0 (6,619,270) (6,619,270) 6,619,270 5,295,416
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30.2 Financial risks
a. Creditrisk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to reinsurance receivables
and investments in debt securities. The Company manages the risk by regularly
evaluating credit quality of its retrocessionaires and issuers of securities and assessing
the ability to pay debt as it comes due, through periodical analysis and monitoring of
their financial positions. The Company has a strict policy to retrocede its business to
foreign retrocessionaires and buy securities from issuers that have credit ratings of at
least A-. Therefore, the Company does not expect to incur material financial losses. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of reinsurance
receivables and investments in debt securities as presented in the statement of financial

position.
b. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that change in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
securities prices may have an effect on the Company’s financial position. The Company
had no significant financial assets denominated in foreign currencies; market risk is

therefore confined only to interest rate risk and equity position risk.
(1) Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks

and investments in debt securities.

The Company has managed interest rate risk by closely monitoring interest rate

movement and incorporating it into investment allocation decision making.

Annual Report 2019 209



usun Tngsus:Nudda 10 (UK3U)

Significant assets and liabilities classified by type of interest rate were summarised

in the table below, with those assets and liabilities that carried fixed interest rates

further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurred

before the maturity date.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2019

Fixed interest rates Non-
Within 1-5 Over Floating interest Effective
1 year years 5 years interest rate bearing Total interest rate
(% per annum)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 33,794 4 33,798 0.10-1.00
Investments in securities
Government and state enterprise
securities 445,675 132,718 65,383 65,306 - 709,082 1.24
Private enterprise debt securities 30,000 133,000 51,648 - - 214,648 2.03
Equity securities - - - - 878,405 878,405 -
Deposits at financial institutions 145,000 - - - - 145,000 1.52
Loans - - - 1,030 - 1,030 3.25
Assets under insurance contracts
Reinsurance assets
- long-term insurance policy
reserves - - - - 2,656 2,656 -
Reinsurance receivables - - - - 214,596 214,596 -
Liabilities under insurance
contracts
Insurance contract liabilities
- long-term insurance policy
reserves - - - - 471,182 471,182 -
- loss reserves - - - - 7,790 7,790 -
Due to reinsurers - - - - 137,009 137,009 -
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Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments in securities
Government and state enterprise
securities
Private enterprise debt securities
Equity securities
Deposits at financial institutions
Loans
Assets under insurance contracts
Reinsurance assets
- long-term insurance policy
reserves
Reinsurance receivables
Liabilities under insurance
contracts
Insurance contract liabilities
- long-term insurance policy
reserves
- loss reserves

Due to reinsurers

ThaiRe Life Assurance PCL

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2018

Fixed interest rates Non-
Within 1-5 Over Floating interest Effective
1 year years 5 years interest rate bearing Total interest rate
(% per annum)
- - - 55,098 9 55,107 0.10-1.00
411,085 69,940 - 65,343 - 546,368 1.69
120,000 60,000 - - - 180,000 2.06
- - - - 1,023,953 1,023,953 -
130,000 - - - - 130,000 1.80
- - - 1,351 - 1,351 3.25
- - - - 2,883 2,883 -
- - - - 195,504 195,504 -
- - - - 406,752 406,752 -
- - - - 21,702 21,702 -
- - - - 184,572 184,572 -

(2) Securities price risk

Securities price risk is the risk that change in the market prices of securities will

result in fluctuations in revenues and in the value of assets.

The Company manages the price risk by continually analysing and monitoring

changes in any factors that might lead to adverse movement in the market price of

the invested securities. The Company has adopted a prudent investment policy and

avoids speculative investments that would jeopardise its capital. The Company

invests in high quality securities that are expected to generate reasonable and

consistent returns.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had risk from its investments in

securities of which the price would change following market conditions.
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c.  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to liquidate its financial assets

and/or procure sufficient funds to discharge its obligations in a timely manner, resulting

in the occurrence of a financial loss.

The Company manages its liquidity position through prudent investment decisions, cash

flow matching of assets and liabilities, and diversification of assets and liabilities to

ensure that adequate cash is available when needed. Moreover, the Company sets its

liquidity position at a higher than that required by the Office of Insurance Commission.

Counting from the financial position date, the periods to maturity of assets and liabilities

held as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2019

At call Within 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Unspecified Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 33,794,015 - - - 4,052 33,798,067
Investments in securities 876,298,782 620,675,238 265,717,416 182,337,680 2,105,720 1,947,134,836
Loans - 394,225 635,423 - - 1,029,648
Assets under insurance

contracts
Reinsurance receivables - 214,516,953 79,546 - - 214,596,499
Liabilities under

insurance contracts
Due to reinsurers - 136,786,262 223,216 - - 137,009,478

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2018

At call Within 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Unspecified Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 55,098,716 - - - 8,783 55,107,499
Investments in securities 1,021,846,970 661,084,711 129,940,372 65,342,643 2,105,720 1,880,320,416
Loans - 320,885 1,029,647 - - 1,350,532
Assets under insurance

contracts
Reinsurance receivables - 195,294,534 209,791 - - 195,504,325
Liabilities under

insurance contracts
Due to reinsurers - 183,958,754 612,747 - - 184,571,501

212 sgvuds:U 2562




ThaiRe Life Assurance PCL

31.

The Company’s reinsurance contracts generate an annual reinsurance premium, net of
underwriting expenses throughout term of contracts whereby remaining periods to
maturity of insurance contract liabilities, counted from the statement of financial position

as at 31 December 2019 and 2018, were shown below:

(Unit: Percent)

Remaining periods to maturity 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
1 year 17.6 16.8
1 year to 5 years 37.2 36.0
Over 5 years 452 47.2
Total 100.0 100.0

Fair value of financial instruments

As of 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had the following financial assets that
were measured at fair value, and had financial assets that were measured at cost but had

to disclose fair value, using different levels of inputs as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2019
Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Book value

Assets measured at fair value
Trading investments 72,336,094 - - 72,336,094 72,336,094
Available-for-sale investments 452,475,752 351,486,936 - 803,962,688 803,962,688
Assets for which fair value were

disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents 33,798,067 - - 33,798,067 33,798,067
Held-to-maturity investments

Government and state enterprise 709,081,922

securities - 715,993,870 - 715,993,870

Private enterprise debt securities - 218,791,589 - 218,791,589 214,648,412

Deposits at banks - 145,000,000 - 145,000,000 145,000,000
General investments - - 2,272,072 2,272,072 2,105,720
Loans - - 1,029,648 1,029,648 1,029,648
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(Unit: Baht)
31 December 2018
Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Book value
Assets measured at fair value
Trading investments 78,514,664 - - 78,514,664 78,514,664
Available-for-sale investments 584,809,424 358,522,882 - 943,332,306 943,332,306
Assets for which fair value were
disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents 55,107,499 - - 55,107,499 55,107,499
Held-to-maturity investments
Government and state enterprise
securities - 549,282,590 - 549,282,590 546,367,877
Private enterprise debt securities - 180,282,632 - 180,282,632 179,999,849
Deposits at financial institutions - 130,000,000 - 130,000,000 130,000,000
General investments - - 3,929,274 3,929,274 2,105,720
Loans - - 1,350,532 1,350,532 1,350,532

The fair value hierarchy of financial assets is presented according to Note 4.18 to financial

statements.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, fair value of financial assets was not significantly

different from their carrying value.

The methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating the fair value of financial

instruments were as follows:

(@) Financial assets and liabilities having short-term maturity periods as cash and cash
equivalents, and deposits at banks with an original maturity period of within 1 year
were presented at fair values, which approximate their carrying amounts in the

statement of financial position.

(b) Investments in debts securities were presented at fair values based on market prices
or prices determined using the yield curves as announced by the Thai Bond Market

Association.
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33.
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(c) Investments in equity securities are presented at fair values using market price. In
case of non-marketable equity securities, the fair values are approximately
determined, using the discount cash flow method and discounted by the Weighted
Average Cost of Capital (WACC). For investments in non-listed investment units, their

fair values are the net asset value per unit as announced by the fund manager.

(d) Loans are presented at fair value, which is estimated by discounting expected future

cash flow by the current market interest rate.
During the current year, there were no transfers within the fair value hierarchy.
Capital management for life insurance companies

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management are to ensure that it has
ability to continue its business as a going concern and to maintain risk-based capital in

accordance with the requirements of the Office of the insurance Commission.
Events after the reporting period

On 18 February 2020, the Meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution
approving the proposal to the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders to be
held in April 2020 for an approval of dividend payment from the operating results of the
second-half of 2019 at Baht 0.13 per share or a total of Baht 78 million.

Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on 18 February 2020.
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General Information

Company Name Thaire Life Assurance PCL

Head office
Location

Nature of
Business

Registered
Number

Home Page

Registered

48/15 Rajchadapisek Soi 20,
Rajchadapisek Road, Samsennok,
Huaykwang, Bangkok 10310
Phone: 0-2666-9000

Fax: 0-2277-6227

Provision of reinsurance
(life insurance business)

0107554000241

www.thairelife.co.th

600 million ordinary shares of THB 1

Capital, Issued each, Total THB 600 million

and Paid-up

Legal Entities in which the Company
holds shares more than 10 percent

Company Name TKl Life Insurance Company Limited

Head office
Location

Nature of
Business

Registered
Number

Home Page
Issued

and Paid-up

Percentage
Owned

level 4, Zone A office Unit, The
Iconic, Unit 11, Phonxay Road,
Phonxay Village, Saysettha District,
Vientiane Capital 01000 Lao PDR.
Phone: 856-21417707

Fax: 856-21417705

Provision of insurance
(life insurance business)

305013561-9-00

www.tki-insurance.com

8 million ordinary shares of LAK
2,000 each, Total LAK 16,000 million
or approximately THB 66 million

32.5 percent
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Other References

Share Registrar

Thailand Securities Depository
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Ms. Rachada Yongsawadvanich

Certified Public Accountant
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Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110
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